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Capital Adequacy Framework
2015

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 BACKGROUND:

Prior to 1988, there was no uniform international regulatory standard for setting bank capital
requirements. In 1988, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)" developed the Capital
Accord, which is known as Basel I, to align the capital adequacy requirements applicable especially to
banks in G-10 countries. Basel I introduced two key concepts. First, it defined what banks could hold as
capital, as well as designating capital as Tier 1 or Tier 2 according to its loss-absorbing or creditor-
protecting characteristics. The second key concept introduced in Basel | was that capital should be held
by banks in relation to the risks that they face. The major risks faced by banks relate to the assets held on
balance sheet. Thus, Basel I calculated banks’ minimum capital requirements as a percentage of assets,
which are adjusted in accordance with their riskiness and assigning risk weights to assets. Higher weights
are assigned to riskier assets such as corporate loans, and lower weights are assigned to less risky assets,
such as exposures to government.

The BCBS released the "International Convergence of Capital Measurements and Capital Standards:
Revised Framework", popularly known as Basel 1l, on June 26, 2004. This framework was updated in
November 2005 and a comprehensive version of the framework was issued in June 2006. Basel 1l builds
significantly on Basel | by increasing the sensitivity of capital to key bank risks. In addition, Basel Il
recognizes that banks can face a multitude of risks, ranging from the traditional risks associated with
financial intermediation to the day-to-day risks of operating a business as well as the risks associated with
the ups and downs of the local and international economies. As a result, the framework more explicitly
associates capital requirements with the particular categories of major risks that banks face.

The Basel Il capital framework also recognizes that large, usually internationally active banks have
already put in place sophisticated approaches to risk measurement and management based on statistical
inference rather than judgment alone. Thus, the framework allows banks, under certain conditions, to use
their own ‘internal’ models and techniques to measure the key risks that they face, the probability of loss,
and the capital required to meet those losses. In developing the new framework, the Basel Committee
incorporated many elements that help to promote a sound and efficient financial system over and above
the setting of minimum capital requirements. Keeping this in mind, the Basel 11 framework incorporates
three complementary ‘pillars’ that draw on the range of approaches to help ensure that banks are
adequately capitalized in commensurate with their risk profile.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) released a comprehensive reform package entitled
“Basel III: A global regulatory framework for more resilient banks and banking systems” (known as
Basel Il capital regulations) in December 2010. Basel Il reforms are the response of the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) to improve the banking sector’s ability to absorb shocks
arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spill over from
the financial sector to the real economy. Basel Il reforms strengthen the bank-level i.e. micro prudential
regulation, with the intention to raise the resilience of individual banking institutions in periods of stress.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision is a committee of banking supervisory authorities that was established by the
central bank governors of the Group of Ten countries in 1975. It consists of senior representatives of bank supervisory
authorities and central banks from Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the United States. It usually meets at the Bank for International Settlements in
Basel, Switzerland where its permanent Secretariat is located.
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Besides, the reforms have a macro prudential focus also, addressing system wide risks, which can build
up across the banking sector, as well as the procyclical amplification of these risks over time. These new
global regulatory and supervisory standards mainly seek to raise the quality and level of capital (Pillar 1)
to ensure that banks are better able to absorb losses on both a going concern and a gone concern basis,
increase the risk coverage of the capital framework, introduce leverage ratio to serve as a backstop to the
risk-based capital measure, raise the standards for the supervisory review process (Pillar 2) and public
disclosures (Pillar 3) etc. The macro prudential aspects of Basel Il are largely enshrined in the capital
buffers. Both the buffers i.e. the capital conservation buffer and the countercyclical buffer are intended to
protect the banking sector from periods of excess credit growth.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's (BCBS) recommendations on capital accord are
important guiding frameworks for the regulatory capital requirement to the banking industry all over the
world and Nepal is no exception. Realizing the significance of capital for ensuring the safety and
soundness of the banks and the banking system, at large, Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has developed and
enforced capital adequacy requirement based on international practices with an appropriate level of
customization based on domestic state of market developments.

With a view of adopting the international best practices, NRB has already issued the Basel Il
implementation action plan and expressed its intention to adopt the Basel 11l framework, albeit in a
simplified form. In line with the international development and thorough discussion with the stakeholders,
evaluation and assessment of impact studies at various phases, this framework has been drafted. This
framework provides the guidelines for the implementation of Basel 11l framework in Nepal. The Basel 111
capital regulations continue to be based on three-mutually reinforcing Pillars, viz. minimum capital
requirements, supervisory review of capital adequacy, and market discipline of the Basel Il capital
adequacy framework.

1.2 OBJECTIVE:

The main objective of this framework is to develop safe and sound financial system by way of
sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. This framework is intended
to ensure that each bank maintain a level of capital which,

0] is adequate to protect its depositors and creditors.
(i) is commensurate with the risk associated activities and profile of the banks.
(iti)  promotes public confidence in the banking system.

1.3 PRE-REQUISITES:

The effective implementation of this framework is dependent on various factors. Some such pre-
requisites are:

0] Implementation of Basel Core Principles for effective Banking Supervision
(i) Adoption of the sound practices for the management of Operational Risk
(iii) Formulation and adoption of comprehensive risk management policy
(iv) Adherence to high degree of corporate governance

14 RESPONSIBILITY:

The board of directors of each bank shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining, at all
times, an adequate level of capital. The capital standards herein are the minimum that is acceptable
for banks that are fundamentally sound, well managed, and have no material financial or
operational weaknesses. Thus, banks are generally expected to operate above the limits prescribed
by this framework.
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1.5 SCOPE OF APPLICATION:

This framework shall be applicable to all "A" Class financial institutions? licensed to conduct
banking business in Nepal under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

This capital adequacy framework shall be applicable uniformly to all "A" class financial institutions
on a stand-alone basis and as well as on a consolidated basis, where the bank is member of a
consolidated banking group. For the purpose of capital adequacy, the consolidated bank means a
group of financial entities, parent or holding company of which a bank is a subsidiary. All banking
and other relevant financial activities (both regulated and unregulated) conducted within a group
including a bank shall be captured through consolidation. Thus, majority owned or controlled
financial entities should be fully consolidated. If any majority owned subsidiary institutions are not
consolidated for capital purposes, all equity and other regulatory capital investments in those
entities attributable to the group will be deducted except otherwise prescribed and the assets and
liabilities, as well as third party capital investments in the subsidiary will be removed from the
bank"s balance sheet for capital adequacy purposes.

1.6 APPROACHES TO IMPLEMENTATION:

"International Convergence for Capital Measurements and Capital Standards: Revised Framework"
alias Basel Il under Pillar 1, provides three distinct approaches for computing capital requirements
for credit risk and three other approaches for computing capital requirements for operational risk.
These approaches for credit and operational risk are based on increasing risk sensitivity and allow
banks to select an approach that is most appropriate to the stage of development of banks’
operations.

The product and services offered by the Nepalese Banks are still largely conventional, in
comparison with other economies. This coupled with the various inherent limitations of our system
like the limitation of credit rating practices makes the advanced approaches like Internal Ratings
Based Approach or even Standardized Approach impractical and unfeasible. Thus, at this juncture,
this framework prescribes Simplified Standardized Approach (SSA) to measure credit risk while
Basic Indicator Approach and an indigenous Net Open Position Approach for measurement of
Operational Risk and Market Risk respectively.

1.7 IMPLEMENTATION OF ADVANCED APPROACHES:

This framework prescribes the simplest of the available approaches at the initial phase with a vision
to move onto more complex and risk sensitive approaches as the market gradually gains maturity.
Banks willing to adopt advanced approaches, even for internal purposes, should obtain prior written
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank on providing evidence that they have the resources and the
capability to adopt the proposed approaches.

A bank will not be allowed to choose to revert to a simpler approach once it has been approved for
a more advanced approach without supervisory approval. However, if a supervisor determines that
a bank using a more advanced approach no longer meets the qualifying criteria for an advanced
approach, it may allow the bank to revert to a simpler approach for some or all of its operations,
until it meets the conditions specified by the supervisor for returning to a more advanced approach.

2 «A” class financial institutions refers to “Commercial Banks”
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TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

In order to ensure smooth migration to Basel Il without aggravating any near term stress,
appropriate transitional arrangements have been made. The transitional arrangements for capital
ratios will begin from Mid July, 2016 (Shrawan 2073). Capital ratios and deductions from
Common Equity will be fully phased-in and implemented as on mid july, 2019. The phase-in
arrangements for banks are indicated in the following Table:

BASEL Il in Nepal

Transition Period

( Mid July)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Minimum Common Equity Capital Ratio 4.00% 4.50% 4.50% 450% | 4.50%
Capital Conservation Buffer 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 2.00% | 2.50%

Minimum common equity plus capital
conservation buffer

5.00% 5.75% 6.00% 6.50% | 7.00%

Minimum Tier 1 Capital
(Excluding conservation buffer)

6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% | 6.00%

Minimum Total Capital
Excluding conservation buffer)

10.00% 9.75% 9.50% 9.00% | 8.50%

Minimum  Total  Capital  (including
conservation buffer )

11.00% | 11.00% | 11.00% | 11.00% | 11.00%

Introduce
Counter Cyclical Buffers minimum | 0-25% | 0-25% | 0-2.5% | 0-2.5%
standard
Introduce Offsite Monitoring Migration
Leverage Ratio minimum 4.00% to
standard Pillar 1
- . Review Existing LCR LCR
Liquidity coverage ratio Eramework LCR 100% 100% 100%
Observation Introduce
Net stable funding ratio and Parallel Run minimum Implemented
standard
SIFI Measures NRB shall issue the regulation.

19

EFFECTIVE DATE:

All banks within the scope of this framework should adopt the prescribed approaches from Mid
July 2016 (Fiscal Year 2073/74). In order to ensure smooth transition to new approach prescribed
by this framework, a parallel run from Mid January 2016 (Poush End, 2072) to Mid July 2016
(Asar End, 2073) will be conducted. The banks are required to submit their capital adequacy report
to the Bank Supervision Department on a monthly basis. Based on the findings of the parallel run,
further amendments and modification will be incorporated in the framework wherever deemed
necessary.
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2.1

REQUIREMENTS FOR CAPITAL FUNDS

DEFINITION OF CAPITAL.:
The qualifying regulatory capital shall consist of the sum of the following components:
a.Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)
A. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
B. Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
b.Tier 2 Capital (Supplementary Capital)
The detailed description of the components of regulatory capital and their elements are as follows:
Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)

The key element of capital on which the main emphasis should be placed is Tier 1 (core)
capital, which is comprised of equity capital and disclosed reserves. This key element of capital
is the basis on which most market judgments of capital adequacy are made; and it has a crucial
bearing on profit margins and a bank's ability to compete.

The BCBS has therefore concluded that capital, for supervisory purposes, should be defined in
two tiers in a way, which will have the effect of requiring at least 50% of a bank's capital base
to consist of a core element comprised of equity capital and published reserves from post-tax
retained earnings.

In order to rank as Tier 1, capital must be fully paid up, have no fixed servicing or dividend
costs attached to it and be freely available to absorb losses ahead of general creditors. Capital
also needs to have a very high degree of permanence if it is to be treated as Tier 1.

Tier 1 Capital shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 Capital and Additional Tier 1 Capital and
the sum of these two capital shall be total Tier 1 Capital.

. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital

Common Equity is recognized as the highest quality component of capital and is the primary
form of funding which ensures that a bank remains solvent. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
consists of the sum of the following elements:

(i) Common shares issued by the bank that meet the criteria for classification as common shares

for regulatory purposes;

(i)  Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in
Common Equity Tier 1;

(iii)  Statutory General Reserve;
(iv) Retained Earnings available for distribution to shareholders;

(v)  Un-audited current year cumulative profit, after all provisions including staff bonus and
taxes as well as regulatory adjustments. Where such provisions and regulatory
adjustments are not made, this amount shall not qualify as Common Equity Tier 1 capital,

(vi) Capital Redemption Reserves created in lieu of redeemable instruments
(vii) Capital Adjustment reserves created in respect of increasing the capital base of the bank

(viii) Dividend Equalization Reserves;
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(ix) Other free reserves if any

(x) Bargain purchase gain arises on merger and acquisitions. However, prior approval of
NRB is required for it to include in Common Equity Tier 1 Capital,

(xi) Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in
Common Equity Tier 1 capital; and

(xii) Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Common Equity
Tier 1 capital.

Criteria for common shares issued by the bank for inclusion in Common Equity:

Common shares must meet the following criteria to be included in Common Equity Tier 1
Capital:

1. All common shares should be voting shares.
2.  Represent the most subordinate claim in liquidation of the bank.

3.  Be entitled to a claim on the residual assets which is proportional to its share of paid up
capital, after all senior claims have been repaid in liquidation (i.e. has an unlimited and
variable claim, not a fixed or capped claim).

4.  Principal is perpetual and never repaid outside of liquidation (except discretionary
repurchases / buy backs or other means of effectively reducing capital in a discretionary
manner with the prior approval of NRB which is allowable under relevant law as well as
guidelines, if any, issued by NRB in the matter).

5. The bank does nothing to create an expectation at issuance that the instrument will be
bought back, redeemed or cancelled nor do the statutory or contractual terms provide any
feature which might give rise to such an expectation.

6.  Distributions are paid out of distributable items. The level of distributions is not in any
way tied or linked to the amount paid up at issuance and is not subject to a contractual
cap (except to the extent that a bank is unable to pay distributions that exceed the level of
distributable items). As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on
common shares will be paid out of the current year’s profit and retained earnings only.

7. There are no circumstances under which the distributions are obligatory. Non-payment is
therefore not an event of default.

8.  Distributions are paid only after all legal and contractual obligations have been met and
payments on more senior capital instruments have been made. This means that there are
no preferential distributions, including in respect of other elements classified as the
highest quality issued capital.

9. It is the paid up capital that takes the first and proportionately greatest share of any losses
as they occur. Within the highest quality capital, each instrument absorbs losses on a
going concern basis proportionately and pari passu with all the others.

10. The paid up amount is classified as equity capital (i.e. not recognised as a liability) for
determining balance sheet insolvency.

11. The paid up amount is classified as equity under the relevant accounting standards.

12. Itis directly issued and paid up and the bank cannot directly or indirectly have funded the
purchase of the instrument. Banks should also not extend loans against their own shares.
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13.  The paid up amount is neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related
entity nor subject to any other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the
seniority of the claim.

14.  Paid up capital is only issued with the approval of the owners of the issuing bank, either
given directly by the owners or, if permitted by applicable law, given by the Board of
Directors or by other persons duly authorized by the owners.

15. Paid up capital is clearly and separately disclosed in the bank’s balance sheet.
B. Additional Tier 1 Capital

Additional Tier 1 Capital mainly include the instruments either classified as equity under
relevant accounting standards but are not the common equity share and hence not includible in
common equity tier 1 or the instrument which are classified as liabilities under relevent
accounting standards, however it is includible in additional tier 1 capital. Under Basel Ill non-
common equity elements to be included in Tier 1 capital should absorb losses while the bank
remains a going concern. Towards this end, one of the important criteria for Additional Tier 1
instruments is that these instruments should have principal loss absorption through either (i)
conversion into common shares at an objective pre-specified trigger point or (ii) a write-down
mechanism which allocates losses to the instrument at a pre-specified trigger point. Banks
should not issue Additional Tier 1 capital instruments to the retail investors.

Additional Tier 1 capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

(i)  Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments
(PDI) issued by the bank that meet the criteria for inclusion in Additional Tier 1 capital;

(i)  Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of PNCPS instruments included in
Additional Tier 1 capital; and

(iii) Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Additional Tier 1
capital.

Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Additional Tier 1:

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI)
issued by the bank must meet the following criteria to be included in Additional Tier 1 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’
etc. set up by the bank for this purpose) and fully paid up.

2. The claim of investors of the instruments shall be:
(A) In case of Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares:
(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares; and

(ii) Subordinated to the claims of PDIs, all Tier 2 regulatory capital instruments,
depositors and general creditors of the bank.

(B) In case of Perpetual Debt Instruments:

(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares;

(ii) Subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and subordinated debt
of the bank;

3. The instruments should be neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or
related entity or other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of
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the claim vis-a-vis bank creditors

4. The instruments should be perpetual, ie there is no maturity date and there are no step-ups
or other incentives to redeem

5. The Instruments may be callable at the initiative of the issuer. This means that the
instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, banks may issue instruments
with a “Call Option” at a particular date subject to following conditions:

a)  The call option on the instrument is permissible after ten years of issuance;
b)  To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB;

¢) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be
exercised; and

d)  Banks must not exercise a call unless:

i. The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better quality
and the replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for
the income capacity of the bank; or

ii. The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum
capital requirements after the call option is exercised.

6. Any repayment of principal (eg through repurchase, buy-back or redemption) must be with
prior approval of NRB and banks should not assume or create market expectations that
supervisory approval will be given. Banks may repurchase / buy-back / redeem the
instruments only if:

(a) The bank replaces such instrument with capital of the same or better quality and
the replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for the
income capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the repurchase / buy-back / redemption.

7. Dividend/coupon discretion:
a.the bank must have full discretion at all times to cancel distributions/payments,
b.cancellation of discretionary payments must not be an event of default,

c.banks must have full access to cancelled payments to meet obligations as they fall due;
and

d.cancellation of distributions/payments must not impose restrictions on the bank except in
relation to distributions to common stockholders.

8. Dividends/coupons must be paid out of ‘distributable items’:

As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on perpetual non-
cumulative preference shares (PNCPS) will be paid out of current year’s profit only.

In case of coupon on perpetual debt instruments (PDI), it is clarified that if the payment of
coupons on perpetual debt instrument (PDI) is likely to result in losses in the current year,
their declaration should be precluded to that extent.

Dividend on PNCPS and coupons on PDI should not be paid out of retained earnings /
reserves. In other words, payment of dividend/coupons should not have the effect of
reducing retained earnings / reserves.

9. The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive dividend/coupon feature, that is a
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dividend/coupon that is reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banking
organization's credit standing.

10. The dividend/coupon shall not be cumulative. i.e., dividend/coupon missed in a year will
not be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available and the level of CAR
conforms to the regulatory minimum. When dividend/coupon is paid at a rate lesser than
the prescribed rate, the unpaid amount will not be paid in future years, even if adequate
profit is available and the level of CAR conforms to the regulatory minimum.

11. The instrument cannot contribute to liabilities exceeding assets if such a balance sheet test
forms part of requirement to prove insolvency by any law or otherwise.

12. Instruments classified as liabilities for accounting purposes must have principal loss
absorption through either (i) conversion to common shares at an objective pre-specified
trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates losses to the instrument at a
pre-specified trigger point. The write-down will have the following effects:

a. Reduce the claim of the instrument in liquidation;
b. Reduce the amount re-paid when a call is exercised; and
c. Partially or fully reduce coupon/dividend payments on the instrument.

13. Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence (as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) can have
purchased the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly have funded the purchase
of the instrument

14. The instrument cannot have any features that hinder recapitalization, such as provisions that
require the issuer to compensate investors if a new instrument is issued at a lower price
during a specified time frame.

Il. Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital

The Supplementary (Tier 2) Capital includes reserves which have been passed through the profit
and loss account and all other capital instruments eligible and acceptable for capital purposes.
Elements of the Tier 2 capital will be reckoned as capital funds up to a maximum of 100 percent
of Tier 1 capital arrived at, after making regulatory adjustments/deductions. In case, where the
Tier 1 capital of a bank is negative, the Tier 2 capital for regulatory purposes shall be considered
as zero and hence the capital fund, in such cases, shall be equal to the core capital.

The Tier 2 Capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

(i)  Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares (RCPS)] issued by the bank with the maturity of 5 years or above;

(i)  Subordinated term debt fully paid up with a maturity of 5 years or above; unsecured and
subordinated to the claim of other creditors, free of restrictive clauses and not redeemable
before maturity. Since, subordinated term debt is not normally available to participate in
the losses; the amount eligible for inclusion in the capital adequacy calculations is limited
to 50% of core capital. Moreover, to reflect the diminishing value of these instruments as
a continuing source of strength, a cumulative discount (amortization) factor of 20% per
annum shall be applied for capital adequacy computations, during the last 5 years to
maturity.

(iii) Hybrid capital instruments combine certain characteristics of debt and certain
characteristics of equity. Each such instrument has a particular feature, which can be
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considered to affect its quality as capital. Where these instruments have close similarities
to equity, in particular when they are able to support losses on an ongoing basis without
triggering liquidation, they may be included in Tier 2 capital with approval from Nepal
Rastra Bank.

(iv) Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Tier 2
capital;

(v) General loan loss provision limited to a maximum of 1.25% of total Credit Risk
Weighted Exposures. General loan loss provision refers to provisions or loan- loss
reserves held against future, presently unidentified losses are freely available to meet
losses which subsequently materialize and therefore qualify for inclusion in Tier 2
Capital. However, impairment loss booked under NFRS as per Incurred Loss Model shall
not be eligible to be included in Tier 2 Capital as the impairment is recognized on loss
incurred and not for the future.

Loan loss provision created on pass loan as per regulatory requirement shall be eligible
for inclusion Tier 2 Capital.

(vi) Exchange equalization reserves created by banks as a cushion for unexpected losses
arising out of adverse movements in foreign currencies.

(vii) Investment adjustment reserves to the extent created out of retained earning i.e.
appropriation of profit.

(viii) Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Tier 2
capital

(ix) Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Tier 2 capital .

Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital:

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares (RCPS)], Subordinated Term Debt and Hybrid Capital Instrument issued by the bank
must meet the following criteria to be included in Tier 2 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’
etc. set up by the bank for this purpose) and fully paid up.

2. These instruments could be either perpetual or dated with a maturity period of minimum 5
years or more and there should be no step-ups or other incentives to redeem. The perpetual
instruments shall be cumulative. The dated instruments could be cumulative or non-
cumulative.

3. The dated instruments (both cumulative and non-cumulative) shall be subjected to a
progressive discount for capital adequacy purposes over the last five years of their tenor, as
they approach maturity as indicated in the table below for being eligible for inclusion in

Tier 2 capital.
Remaining Maturity of Instruments Rate 01(‘0/[());scount
Less than one year 100
One year and more but less than two years 80
Two years and more but less than three years 60
Three years and more but less than four years 40
Four years and more but less than five years 20
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4. Dividend/Coupon/Rate of Interest

(i)  The dividend/coupon payable to the investors may be either at a fixed rate or at a
floating rate referenced to a market determined rupee interest benchmark rate.

(i)  The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive coupon feature, i.e. a coupon that is
reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banks’ credit standing.

5. The claims of the investors in instruments shall be:

(i) senior to the claims of investors in instruments eligible for inclusion in Tier 1
capital;

(if)  subordinate to the claims of all depositors and general creditors of the bank; and

(iii) Neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related entity or other
arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim vis-a-
vis bank creditors.

6. The instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, the Instruments may be
callable at the initiative of the issuer. Banks may issue instruments with a “Call Option™ at
a particular date subject to the following conditions:

(i)  The call option on the instrument is permissible after five years of issuance;
(i)  To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB; and

(iii)) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be
exercised; and

(iv) Banks must not exercise a call unless:

(@) The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better
quality and the replacement of this capital is done on conditions which are
sustainable for the income capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum
capital requirements after the call option is exercised.

7. Treatment in Bankruptcy / Liquidation

The investor must have no rights to accelerate the repayment of future scheduled payments
(coupon or principal) except in bankruptcy and liquidation

8. Prohibition on Purchase / Funding of Instruments

Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence (as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) should purchase
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly should fund the purchase of the
instrument. Banks should also not grant advances against the security of the debt
instruments issued by them.

AT T FFAIE “F G T T FIE FAGTITII FLEATE TR TRTP THIpe 3977 - 7066 AL



2.2 LOSS ABSORPTION OF ADDITIONAL TIER 1 INSTRUMENTS (AT1) AT THE PRE-
SPECIFIED TRIGGER

Level of Pre-specified Trigger and Amount of Equity to be Created by Conversion /
Write-down

As a bank’s capital conservation buffer falls to 0.625% of RWE, it will be subject to
100% profit retention requirements. One of the important objectives of capital
conservation buffer is to ensure that a bank always operates above minimum Common
Equity Tier 1 (CETL1) level. Therefore, a pre-specified trigger for loss absorption through
conversion / write-down of the level of Additional Tier 1 (AT1) instruments (PNCPS and
PDI) at CET1 of 5.125% of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + 25% of capital
conservation buffer of 2.5% i.e. 0.625%) has been fixed.

The write-down / conversion must generate CET1 under applicable Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards equal to the written-down / converted amount net of tax, if any.

The aggregate amount to be written-down / converted for all such instruments on
breaching the trigger level must be at least the amount needed to immediately return the
bank’s CET1 ratio to the trigger level or, if this is not sufficient, the full principal value
of the instruments. Further, the issuer should have full discretion to determine the amount
of ATL1 instruments to be converted/written-down subject to the amount of
conversion/write-down not exceeding the amount which would be required to bring the
total Common Equity ratio to 7% of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + capital
conservation buffer of 2.5%).

The conversion / write-down of AT1 instruments are primarily intended to replenish the
equity in the event it is depleted by losses. Therefore, banks should not use conversion /
write-down of AT1 instruments to support expansion of balance sheet by incurring
further obligations / booking assets. Accordingly, a bank whose total Common Equity
ratio slips below 7% due to losses and is still above 5.125% i.e. trigger point, should seek
to expand its balance sheet further only by raising fresh equity from its existing
shareholders or market and the internal accruals. However, fresh exposures can be taken
to the extent of amortization of the existing ones. If any expansion in exposures, such as
due to drawdown of sanctioned borrowing limits, is inevitable, this should be
compensated within the shortest possible time by reducing other exposures. The bank
should maintain proper records to facilitate verification of these transactions by its
internal auditors, statutory auditors and supervisors.

Il. Types of Loss Absorption Features

5.

6.

Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion / write-down features. Further, banks
may issue single AT1 instrument having both conversion and write-down features with
the option for conversion or write-down to be exercised by the bank. Whichever option is
exercised, it should be exercised across all investors of a particular issue.

When a bank breaches the pre-specified trigger of loss absorbency of AT1 and the equity
is replenished either through conversion or write-down, such replenished amount of
equity will be excluded from the common equity tier 1 of the bank for the purpose of
determining the proportion of earnings to be paid out as dividend in terms of rules laid
down for maintaining capital conservation buffer. However, once the bank has attained a
total Common Equity ratio of 7% without counting the replenished equity capital, that
point onwards, the bank may include the replenished equity capital for all purposes.
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7.

The conversion / write-down may be allowed more than once in case a bank hits the pre-
specified trigger level subsequent to the first conversion / write-down which was partial.

I11. Treatment of AT1 Instruments in the event of Liquidation, Merger, Acquisition of the
Bank

8.

10.

11.

If a bank goes into liquidation before the AT1 instruments have been written-down/
converted, these instruments will absorb losses in accordance with the order of seniority
indicated in the offer document, and legal provisions governing priority of charges. The
order of seniority indicated in the offer document should be in compliance with the
provision of Banking Act.

If a bank goes into liquidation after the AT1 instruments have been written-down, the
holders of these instruments will have no claim on the proceeds of liquidation.

If a bank is merged with/acquired by any other bank before the AT1 instruments have
been written-down/converted, these instruments will become part of the corresponding
categories of regulatory capital of the new bank emerging after the merger/acquisition.

If a bank is merged with any other bank after the non-equity regulatory capital
instruments have been written-down, these cannot be written-up by the merged entity.

IV. Fixation of Conversion Price, Capping of Number of Shares / Voting Rights

12.

13.

Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion features either based on price fixed at
the time of issuance or based on the market price prevailing at the time of conversion.

There will be a possibility of the debt holders receiving a large number of shares in the
event the share price is very low at the time of conversion. Thus, debt holders will end up
holding the number of shares and attached voting rights exceeding the legally permissible
limits. Banks should therefore, always keep sufficient headroom to accommodate the
additional equity due to conversion without breaching any of the statutory / regulatory
ceilings especially that for maximum shareholdings and maximum voting rights per
investors / group of related investors. In order to achieve this, banks should cap the
number of shares and / or voting rights in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
on Ownership and Governance of banks. Banks should adequately incorporate these
features in the terms and conditions of the instruments in the offer document.

V. Order of Conversion / Write-down of Various Types of AT1 Instruments
14.

The instruments should be converted / written-down in order in which they would absorb
losses in a gone concern situation. Banks should indicate in the offer document clearly
the order of conversion / write-down of the instrument in question vis-a-vis other capital
instruments which the bank has already issued or may issue in future.

2.3 DEDUCTIONS FROM CORE (TIER 1) CAPITAL:

Banks shall be required to deduct the following from the Common Equity Tier 1 capital for capital
adequacy purposes. The claims that have been deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital shall
be exempt from risk weights for the measurement of credit risk.

a.

Book value of goodwill and all other intangible assets.

Goodwill and all other intangible assets should be deducted from Common Equity Tier 1
capital including any goodwill included in the valuation of significant investments in the
capital of banking, financial and insurance entities which are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation.
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The full amount of the intangible assets is to be a deducted net of any associated deferred tax
liabilities which would be extinguished if the intangible assets become impaired or
derecognized under the relevant accounting standards. For this purpose, the definition of
intangible assets would be in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

b.  Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Assets computed as under should be deducted from Common Equity Tier 1
(i) Deferred Tax Assets associated with the accumulated tax losses

(ii) Deferred Tax Assets other than associated with the accumulated tax losses, net of
Deferred Tax Liabilities, if any. Where the Deferred Tax Liabilities is in excess of the
Deferred Tax Assets (excluding Deferred Tax Assets associated with accumulated
losses), the excess shall neither be adjusted against item (i) nor added to Common
Equity Tier 1 capital.

C. Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent not written off. e.g. VRS expense, preliminary
expense, share issue expense, deferred revenue expenditure, etc.

Investment in Securities of financial institutions licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank®.
All Investments in equity of institutions with financial interest.

Investments in equity of institutions in excess of the prescribed limits.

@ - o o

Investments arising out of underwriting commitments that have not been disposed within a
year from the date of commitment.

h. Reciprocal crossholdings of bank capital artificially designed to inflate the capital position of
the bank.

I.  Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

The amount of the cash flow hedge reserve which relates to the hedging of items that are not
fair valued on the balance sheet (including projected cash flows) should be derecognized in
the calculation of Common Equity Tier 1. This means that positive amounts should be
deducted and negative amounts should be added back. This treatment specifically identifies
the element of the cash flow hedge reserve that is to be derecognized for prudential purposes.
It removes the element that gives rise to artificial volatility in Common Equity, as in this case
the reserve only reflects one half of the picture (the fair value of the derivative, but not the
changes in fair value of the hedged future cash flow).

J.  Defined Benefit Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

Defined benefit pension fund liabilities, as included on the balance sheet, must be fully
recognized in the calculation of Common Equity Tier 1 capital (i.e. Common Equity Tier 1
capital cannot be increased through derecognizing or unrecognition of these liabilities). For
each defined benefit pension fund that is an asset on the balance sheet, the asset should be
deducted in the calculation of Common Equity Tier 1 net of any associated deferred tax
liability which would be extinguished if the asset should become impaired or derecognized
under the relevant accounting standards.

k.  Negative balance of Reserve Accounts

®  Investment in shares of institutions, where the waiver has been explicitly provided by NRB are subject to risk weight of

100% and shall not be deducted from Tier 1 capital.
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Negative balances of any reserve such as which is recognized directly or through other
comprehensive income in equity such as revaluation reserve, fair value reserve, actuarial loss
etc. shall be deducted from Core (Common Equity Tier 1) Capital. However, the
corresponding assets shall not be exempted from risk weights for the measurement of credit
risk as the loss recognized in equity has already been adjusted in carrying amount of related
assets. Since, full amount of assets has not been deducted from Core Capital, risk weights on
carrying amount of assets shall be applied to measure credit risk.

I.  Any other instruments as stipulated by Nepal Rastra Bank, from time to time.
2.4 CAPITAL FUNDS:

The capital fund is the summation of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital and Tier 1 capital is the total of
common equity Tier 1 and additional Tier 1 capital. A bank should compute capital ratios in the
following manner:

Common Equity tier 1 capital ratio = Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Total Risk Weighted Exposure*

Tier 1 capital ratio = Eligible tier 1 Capital
Total Risk Weighted Exposure

Total Capital Ratio (CAR") = Eligible Total Capital
Total Risk Weighted Exposure

*Total Risk Weighted Exposure = Credit Risk RWE¥+Market Risk RWE+ Operational Risk
RWE + Supervisory Adjustment under Pillar I

¥ RWE= Risk weighted Exposure;
# CAR=Capital Adequacy Ratio

0] Banks shall maintain a minimum total capital (MTC) of 8.5% of total risk weighted
assets (RWALS) i.e. capital to risk weighted assets (CRAR).
(i) Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital must be at least 4.5% of risk-weighted assets

(RWAS) i.e. for credit risk + market risk + operational risk on an ongoing basis.

(iii) Tier 1 capital must be at least 6% of RWAs on an ongoing basis. Thus, within the
minimum Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted maximum at 1.5% of
RWA:s.

(iv) Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Capital) must be at least 8.5% of RWAs on an
ongoing basis. The sum total of the different components of the Tier 2 capitals will be
limited to the sum total of the various components of the Tier 1 capital net of deductions
as specified in paragraph 2.3. In case the Tier 1 capital is negative, Tier 2 capital shall be
considered to be "Nil" for regulatory capital adequacy purposes and hence, in such a
situation, the capital fund shall be equal to the Tier 1 capital.

(v) If a bank has complied with the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 and Tier 1 capital
ratios, then the excess Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted for compliance with the
minimum CRAR of 8.5% of RWA:s.
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(vi) In addition to the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 4.5% of RWAs, banks are
also required to maintain a capital conservation buffer (CCB) of 2.5% of RWAs in the
form of Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

Thus, with full implementation of capital ratios and CCB the capital requirements are
summarized as follows:

Regulatory Capital As % to
RWAs
() Minimum Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 4.5
(i) | Capital Conservation Buffer ( Comprised of Common Equity) 2.5
(iii) | Minimum Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio plus Capital 7.0
Conservation Buffer [(i)+(ii)]
(iv) | Minimum Tier 1 Capital Ratio 6.0
(v) | Minimum Total Capital Ratio (MTC) 8.5
(vi) | Minimum Total Capital Ratio plus Capital Conservation Buffer 11.0

For the purpose of all prudential exposure limits linked to capital funds, the ‘capital
funds’ will exclude the applicable capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital
buffer as and when activated, but include Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. It
may be noted that the term ‘Common Equity Tier 1 capital’ does not include capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer.

2.5 CAPITAL CONSERVATION BUFFER
A. Objective

1. The capital conservation buffer (CCB) is designed to ensure that banks build up capital buffers
during normal times (i.e. outside periods of stress) which can be drawn down as losses are
incurred during a stressed period. The requirement is based on simple capital conservation rules
designed to avoid breaches of minimum capital requirements.

2. Outside the period of stress, banks should hold buffers of capital above the regulatory
minimum. When buffers have been drawn down, one way banks should look to rebuild them is
through reducing discretionary distributions of earnings. Banks may also choose to raise new
capital from the market as an alternative to conserving internally generated capital. However, if
a bank decides to make payments in excess of the constraints imposed as explained above, the
bank, with the prior approval of NRB, would have to use the option of raising capital from the
market equal to the amount above the constraint which it wishes to distribute.

3. The capital conservation buffer can be drawn down only when a bank faces a systemic or
idiosyncratic stress. A bank should not choose in normal times to operate in the buffer range
simply to compete with other banks and win market share. This aspect would be specifically
looked into by NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process. If, at any time, a
bank is found to have allowed its capital conservation buffer to fall in normal times, particularly
by increasing its risk weighted assets without a commensurate increase in the Common Equity
Tier 1 Ratio (although adhering to the restrictions on distributions), this would be viewed
seriously. In addition, such a bank will be required to bring the buffer to the desired level
within a time limit prescribed by NRB. The banks which draw down their capital conservation
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buffer during a stressed period should also have a definite plan to replenish the buffer as part of
its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process and strive to bring the buffer to the desired
level within a time limit agreed to with NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation
Process.

4. The framework of capital conservation buffer will strengthen the ability of banks to withstand
adverse economic environment conditions, will help increase banking sector resilience both
going into a downturn, and provide the mechanism for rebuilding capital during the early stages
of economic recovery. Thus, by retaining a greater proportion of earnings during a downturn,
banks will be able to help ensure that capital remains available to support the ongoing business
operations / lending activities during the period of stress. Therefore, this framework is expected
to help reduce pro-cyclicality.

B. The Framework

5. Banks are required to maintain a capital conservation buffer of 2.5%, comprised of Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, above the regulatory minimum capital requirement of 8.50%. Banks
should not distribute capital (i.e. pay dividends or bonuses in any form) in case capital level
falls within this range. However, they will be able to conduct business as normal when their
capital levels fall into the conservation range as they experience losses. Therefore, the
constraints imposed are related to the distributions only and are not related to the operations of
banks. The distribution constraints imposed on banks when their capital levels fall into the
range increase as the banks’ capital levels approach the minimum requirements. The Table
below shows the minimum capital conservation ratios a bank must meet at various levels of the
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratios.

Minimum capital conservation standards for individual bank

Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio Minimum Capital Conservation Ratios
(expressed as a percentage of earnings)

4.5% - 5.125% 100%

>5.125% - 5.75% 80%

>5.75% - 6.375% 60%

>6.375% - 7.0% 40%

>7.0% 0%

For example, a bank with a Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio in the range of 5.125% to
5.75% is required to conserve 80% of its earnings in the subsequent financial year (i.e. payout
no more than 20%).

6. The capital conservation buffer will be phased in between mid July 2016 and becoming fully
effective on mid July 2019. It will begin at 1.25% of RWEs on mid July 2016, 1.5% on mid
July 2017 and increase each subsequent year by an additional 0.50 percentage points, to reach
its final level of 2.5% of RWASs on mid July 2019. The minimum capital conservation standards
apply with reference to the applicable minimum CETL1 capital and applicable CCB. Therefore,
during the transition period, banks may refer to the following Table for meeting the minimum
capital conservation ratios at various levels of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratios:
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Minimum capital conservation standards for individual bank
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio after including the current periods retained | Minimum

earnings Capital
Conservation
Mid July, 2016 Mid July, 2017 Mid July, 2018 Ratios

(expressed as
% of earnings)

4.50% - 4.81% 4.5% - 4.875% 4.5% - 5.00% 100%
>4.81% - 5.13% >4.875% - 5.25% >5.00% - 5.50% 80%
>5.13% - 5.44% >5.25% - 5.625% >5.50% - 6.00% 60%
>5.44% - 5.75% >5.625% - 6.00% >6.00% - 6.50% 40%
>5.75% >6.00% >6.50% 0%

Banks that already meet the minimum ratio requirement during the transition period but remain
below the 7% Common Equity Tier 1 target (minimum of 4.5% plus conservation buffer of
2.5%) should maintain prudent earnings retention policies with a view to meeting the
conservation buffer as soon as reasonably possible. However, NRB may consider accelerating
the build-up of the capital conservation buffer and shorten the transition periods, if the situation
warrants so.

7. The Common Equity Tier 1 ratio includes amounts used to meet the minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital requirement of 4.5%, but excludes any additional Common Equity Tier 1 needed
to meet the 7% Tier 1 and 8.5% Total Capital requirements. For example, a bank maintains
Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 8.5% and has no Additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital.
Therefore, the bank would meet all minimum capital requirements, but would have a zero
conservation buffer and therefore, the bank would be subjected to 100% constraint on
distributions of capital by way of dividends, share-buybacks and discretionary bonuses.

8. The following represents other key aspects of the capital conservation buffer requirements:

(i) Elements subject to the restriction on distributions: Dividends and share buybacks,
discretionary payments on other Tier 1 capital instruments and discretionary bonus
payments to staff would constitute items considered to be distributions. Payments which do
not result in depletion of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, (for example includes certain scrip
dividend) are not considered distributions.

(if) Definition of earnings: Earnings are defined as distributable profits before the deduction
of elements subject to the restriction on distributions mentioned at (i) above. Earnings are
calculated after the tax which would have been reported had none of the distributable items
been paid. As such, any tax impact of making such distributions are reversed out. If a bank
does not have positive earnings and has a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio less than 7%, it
should not make positive net distributions.

(iii) Additional supervisory discretion: Supervisors have the additional discretion to impose
time limits on banks operating within the buffer range on a case-by-case basis. In any case,
supervisors should ensure that the capital plans of banks seek to rebuild buffers over an
appropriate timeframe.
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26 COUNTERCYCLICAL BUFFER

A.

1.

Introduction
Losses incurred in the banking sector can be extremely large when a downturn is preceded by a

period of excess credit growth. These losses can destabilise the banking sector and spark a
vicious circle, whereby problems in the financial system can contribute to a downturn in the
real economy that then feeds back on to the banking sector. These interactions highlight the
particular importance of the banking sector building up additional capital defences in periods
where the risks of system-wide stress are growing markedly.

The countercyclical buffer aims to ensure that banking sector capital requirements take account
of the macro-financial environment in which banks operate. The primary aim of the
countercyclical capital buffer requirement is to use a buffer of capital to achieve the broader
macroprudential goal of protecting the banking sector from periods of excess aggregate credit
growth that have often been associated with the build up of system-wide risk. Protecting the
banking sector in this context is not simply ensuring that individual banks remain solvent
through a period of stress, as the minimum capital requirement and capital conservation buffer
are together designed to fulfill this objective. Rather, the aim is to ensure that the banking
sector in aggregate has the capital on hand to help maintain the flow of credit in the economy
without its solvency being questioned, when the broader financial system experiences stress
after a period of excess credit growth. Therefore, excess aggregate credit growth is judged to be
associated with a build-up of system-wide risk to ensure the banking system has a buffer of
capital to protect it against future potential losses.

The countercyclical buffer regime consists of the following elements:

a) Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor credit growth and other indicators that may signal a
buildup of system-wide risk and make assessments of whether credit growth is excessive
and is leading to the buildup of system-wide risk. Based on this assessment Nepal Rastra
Bank will put in place a countercyclical buffer requirement when circumstances warrant.
This requirement will be released when system-wide risk crystallises or dissipates.

b) The countercyclical buffer requirement to which a bank is subject will extend the size of
the capital conservation buffer. Banks will be subject to restrictions on distributions if they
do not meet the requirement.

Countercyclical buffer requirements

Nepal Rastra Bank has adopted the Credit to GDP ratio, macro-economic variable, as guide for
reference point for taking buffer decisions. Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor Credit to GDP
ratio at least annually and calculate Credit to GDP gap, i.e. the gap between Credit to GDP
ratio and its Trend. The intensity of Credit to GDP gap shall be the indication of the extent of
the buildup of system-wide risk i.e. If the credit-to-GDP ratio is significantly above its trend (ie
there is a large positive gap) then this is an indication that credit may have grown to excessive
levels relative to GDP. The Credit to GDP gap shall be calculated as follows:
Creditto GDP Gapy = Credit to GDP Ratiog— Trend

The countercyclical buffer requirement will vary between zero and 2.5% of risk weighted
exposure , depending on the extent of the build up of system-wide risk. The credit to GDP gap
of 5 points shall be taken as cut off points of excess credit growth level. The increase by
additional 2.5 point of credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 point shall require buffer requirement
of 0.5% i.e. each increase in every 2.5 points in credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 points shall
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require to raise the buffer requirement by each 0.5%. For this purpose trend is defined as
average of credit to GDP ratio of past 5 years. The following table shows the countercyclical
buffer requirement in case of excess credit growth:

Countercyclical Buffer Requirement

Credit to GDP Gap Buffer Requirement in Terms of CET 1
Up to 5 points 0%
above 5 to 7.5 points 0.5%
above 7.5 to 10 points 1.0%
above 10 to 12.5 points 1.5%
above 12.5 to 15 points 2.0%
above 15 points 2.5%

The banks are required to raise level of the buffer by up to 12 months, but shall be allowed to
decrease the level of the buffer with immediate effect. The bank, not being able to maintain the
countercyclical buffer requirement, shall not be allowed to distribute its earnings.

2.7 LEVERAGE RATIO
A. Rationale and Objective

One of the underlying features of the crisis was the build-up of excessive on- and off-balance
sheet leverage in the banking system. In many cases, banks built up excessive leverage while
still showing strong risk based capital ratios. During the most severe part of the crisis, the
banking sector was forced by the market to reduce its leverage in a manner that amplified
downward pressure on asset prices, further exacerbating the positive feedback loop between
losses, declines in bank capital, and contraction in credit availability. Therefore, under Basel
I11, a simple, transparent, non-risk based leverage ratio has been introduced. The leverage ratio
is calibrated to act as a credible supplementary measure to the risk based capital requirements.
The leverage ratio is intended to achieve the following objectives:

a) constrain the build-up of leverage in the banking sector, helping avoid destabilising
deleveraging processes which can damage the broader financial system and the economy;
and

b) reinforce the risk based requirements with a simple, non-risk based “backstop” measure.

B. Definition and Calculation of the Leverage Ratio

a) The provisions relating to leverage ratio are intended to serve as the basis for testing the
leverage ratio during the parallel run period. Banks are required to maintain minimum Tier
1 leverage ratio of 4% during the parallel run period from Mid July, 2016 to mid July,
2018. After the parallel run final leverage ratio requirement might be revised by NRB after
taking into account the prescriptions given by the Basel Committee.

b) The leverage ratio shall be maintained on a quarterly basis. The Leverage Ratio shall be
calculated as:

Leverage Ratio = Capital Measure
Exposure Measure
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l. Capital Measure

a) The capital measure for the leverage ratio should be based on the definition of Tier 1
capital as set out in paragraph 2.1

b) Items that are deducted completely from capital do not contribute to leverage, and
should therefore also be deducted from the measure of exposure.

I1.  Exposure Measure

The exposure measure for the leverage ratio should generally follow the accounting
measure of exposure. In order to measure the exposure consistently with financial accounts,
the following should be applied by banks:

a) On-balance sheet, non-derivative exposures will be net of specific provisions and
valuation adjustments to the extent it is recognized on equity (e.g. fair value
adjustment and revaluation adjustment as per NFRS directly recognized on equity
or through other comprehensive income);

b) physical or financial collateral, guarantees or credit risk mitigation purchased is not
allowed to reduce on-balance sheet exposures; and

C) netting of loans and deposits is not allowed.

Component of Exposure Measure
(i) On-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should include all items of assets reported in their accounting balance sheet for the
purposes of calculation of the leverage ratio. In addition, the exposure measure should
include the following treatments for Securities Financing Transactions (e.g. repo and
reverse repo agreements, CBLO) and derivatives.

(if) Repurchase agreements and securities finance

Securities Financing Transactions (SFTs) are a form of secured funding and therefore, an
important source of balance sheet leverage that should be included in the leverage ratio.
Therefore, banks should calculate SFT for the purposes of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) the accounting measure of exposure; and
(b) without netting various long and short positions with the same counterparty.
(iii) Derivatives

Derivatives create two types of exposure: an “on-balance sheet” present value reflecting the
fair value of the contract (often zero at outset but subsequently positive or negative
depending on the performance of the contract), and a notional economic exposure
representing the underlying economic interest of the contract. Banks should calculate
exposure in respect of derivatives, including where a bank sells protection using a credit
derivative, for the purposes of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) the accounting measure of exposure (positive Marked to Market (MTM) value) plus an
add-on for Potential Future Exposure (PFE) calculated according to the Current
Exposure Method; and
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3.2

(b) without netting the MTM values and PFEs in respect of various long and short
positions with the same counterparty.

(iv) Other Off-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should calculate the off balance sheet items . These include commitments (including
liquidity facilities), unconditionally cancellable commitments, direct credit substitutes,
acceptances, standby letters of credit, trade letters of credit, failed transactions and
unsettled securities. The off balance sheet items are source of the potentially significant
leverage. Therefore, bank should calculate the above off balance sheet items for the
purposes of the leverage ratio by applying a uniform 100% credit conversion factor (CCF).

CREDIT RISK
GENERAL:

Credit risk is the major risk that banks are exposed to during the normal course of lending and
credit underwriting. There are two approaches for credit risk measurement: the standardized
approach and the internal ratings based (IRB) approach. Due to various inherent constraints of the
Nepalese banking system, the standardized approach in its simplified form, Simplified Standardized
Approach (SSA), has been prescribed in the initial phase.

SIMPLIFIED STANDARDIZED APPROACH (SSA):

In comparison to Basel I, SSA aligns regulatory capital requirements more closely with the key
elements of banking risk by introducing a wider differentiation of risk weights and a wider
recognition of credit risk mitigation techniques. The advantage of implementing this approach is
twofold. This approach allows transitional advantage by avoiding excessive complexities associated
with the advanced approaches of Basel Il while at the same time it will produce capital ratios more
in line with the actual economic risks that banks are facing, compared to the present Accord.

Under this approach commercial banks are required to assign a risk weight to their balance sheet
and off-balance sheet exposures. These risk weights are based on a fixed weight that is broadly
aligned with the likelihood of a counterparty default. As a general rule, the claims that have already
been deducted from the core capital shall be exempt from risk weights for the measurement of
credit risk.

Claims on foreign government, their central banks as well as foreign corporates shall be generally
risk-weighed on the basis of the consensus country risk scores of export credit agencies (ECA)*.
Wherever there are claims relating to unrated countries, they shall generally be risk weighed at 100
percent. However, these claims shall be subject to supervisory review and higher risk weight shall
be assigned where the review process is deemed appropriate.

All kinds of claims including loans & advances as well as investments shall be a risk weighed net
of specific provisions and valuation adjustments which are, directly or through other
comprehensive income, recognized on equity. Generally provision related to any receivable or
investment is not defined as general or specific. In such a situation, the total provision against any
claim/exposure (other than the loans and advances) shall be regarded as specific provision.

However, provisions eligible for the supplementary capital shall not be allowed for netting while
calculating risk weighted exposuresin case of loans, advances and bills purchased the provisions

4 The consensus country risk classification is available on the OECD’s website (http://www.oecd.org) in the Export Credit
Arrangement web page of the Trade Directorate. Each bank while computing the risk weight in any claim should use the
updated risk score.
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created in lieu of Performing loans only are classified as General loan loss provision. All other
provisions are components of specific loan loss provision. Hence, general loan loss provision
doesn’t comprise provisions created in respect of rescheduled/restructured and non performing
loans. It also doesn’t include additional provisions created for personal guarantee loans or lending
in excess of Single Obligor Limits. However, provisions created in excess of the regulatory
requirements and not attributable to identifiable losses in any specific loans shall be allowed to be
included in the General Loan Loss Provision.

In order to be consistent with the Basel framework, the credit risk for the regulatory capital purpose
shall be computed by segregating the exposure in the following 11 categories:

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
9)
h)
i)
)
K)

Claims on government & central bank
Claims on other official entities

Claims on banks

Claims on corporate & securities firms
Claims on regulatory retail portfolio
Claims secured by residential properties
Claims secured by commercial real state
Past due claims

High risk claims

Other assets

Off balance sheet items

3.3 RISK MEASUREMENT AND RISK WEIGHTS:
Claims on government & central bank

a.

b.

1. All claims on Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank shall be risk weighed at 0 %.

2.

Claims on foreign government and their central banks shall be risk-weighted on the basis
of the consensus country risk scores as follows:

ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3 4t06 7

Risk weights 0% 20% 50% 100% 150%

Claims on other official entities

1.

Claims on the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the
European Central Bank and the European Community will receive a 0% risk weight.

Following Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs) will be eligible for a 0% risk
weight.

e World Bank Group, comprised of the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (IBRD) and the International Finance Corporation (IFC),

Asian Development Bank (ADB),

African Development Bank (AfDB),

European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD),

Inter-American Development Bank (IADB),

European Investment Bank (EIB),

European Investment Fund (EIF),

Nordic Investment Bank (NIB),

Caribbean Development Bank (CDB),

Islamic Development Bank (IDB), and

e Council of Europe Development Bank (CEDB).

The standard risk weight for claims on other Multilateral Development Banks will be
100%.
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Claims on public sector entities (PSEs)°
i. Claims on domestic public sector entities:

The risk weight for claims on domestic pubic sector entities will be 100%.

ii. Claims on foreign public sector entities_will be risk-weighed as per the ECA country
risk scores.

ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3to6 7

Risk weights 20% 50% 100% 150%

C. Claims on banks

1.

All claims, irrespective of currency, excluding investment in equity shares and other
instruments eligible for capital funds, on domestic banks/financial institutions that
fulfill Capital Adequacy Requirements will be risk weighed at 20% while for the rest, it
will be 100%.

Banks should make use of the publicly available information of the immediately
preceding quarter of the respective banks to gauge their status on capital adequacy.

Claims on a foreign bank excluding investment in equity shares and other instruments
eligible for capital funds shall be risk weighed as per the ECA Country risk score
subject to the floor of 20%. The primary basis for applying the ECA Country Risk
score shall be the country of incorporation of the bank. Where the bank is a branch
office, the ECA score of the country where the corporate office is located shall be used
while in the case of a subsidiary the basis shall be the country where the subsidiary is
incorporated.

ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3to6 7

Risk weights 20% 50% 100% 150%

However, the claims on foreign banks incorporated in the SAARC region and China,
which operate with a buffer of 1% above their respective regulatory minimum capital
requirements may be risk weighed at 20%. The banks shall be responsible to submit
the latest capital adequacy position of such banks and demonstrate that they fulfill the
eligibility requirements. Such capital adequacy position submitted by the banks should
not be prior to one financial year. Moreover, such claims shall be subject to a
supervisory review and supervisors may require the bank to risk-weigh the claims on
ECA country risk scores where the review process is deemed necessary.

d. Claims on corporate & securities firms

1. Domestic corporate includes all firms and companies incorporated in Nepal as per
prevailing Acts and regulations. The claims on domestic corporate, including claims
on insurance companies and securities firm shall be risk weighed as per the credit
rating score provided by licensed credit rating agency subject to the floor of 80% as

follows:

5
NRB.
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Credit rating score | AAA 'tA(‘)A 'tA(‘) BBB'& Unrated
equivalent to AA A below
Risk weights 80% 85% 909, | 100% 100%

2. The claims on foreign corporate shall be risk weighed as per the ECA Country risk
score subject to the floor of 20% as follows:

ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3t06 7
Risk weights 20% 50% 100% 150%

e. Claims on requlatory retail portfolio

1. Claims® that qualify all criteria listed below may be considered as regulatory retail
portfolio and risk weighed at 75%, except for past due loans. Such claims however,
have to be in strict compliance with the Product paper developed by the bank and
approved by their respective board of directors

Criteria:

e Orientation criteria :- exposure is to an individual person or persons or to a small
business. Bank should obtain written declaration from the borrower to the effect
that their indebtedness is within the threshold across all banks and FIs..

e Product criteria :- The exposure takes the form of any of the following:
— Revolving credits and lines of credit, (including overdraft, hypothecation etc.)

— Term loans and leases (e.g. hire purchase, auto loans and leases, student and
educational loans’) and,

— Small business facilities and commitments,
— Deprived sector loans up to a threshold of Rs.10 million (Ten Million only)

e Granularity criteria:- NRB must be satisfied that the regulatory retail portfolio is
sufficiently diversified to a degree that reduces the risks in the portfolio, warranting
the 75% risk weight. No aggregate exposure® to one counterpart can exceed 0.5 %
of the overall regulatory retail portfolio.

e Low value individual criteria :- The total aggregated exposure to one counterpart®
cannot exceed an absolute threshold of Rs.10 million (Nepalese Rupees Ten
Million only)

2. Banks which have claims that fulfill all criterion except for granularity may risk weigh
those claims at 100%

Lending against securities (such as equities and bonds) whether listed or not, are specifically excluded from this category.
Likewise credit card receivables are excluded from this category. However, lending against personal guarantee and fully
backed by guaranteed cash flow such as pension etc. that has negligible risk of failure can be included in this category.
Personal finance includes overseas employment loan, home loan (to the extent they do not qualify for treatment
as claims secured by residential property), direct deprived sector loan.

Aggregated exposure means gross amount (i.e. not taking any credit risk mitigation into account) of all forms of credit
exposures availed from the bank .

Counterpart refers to one or a group of borrowers defined by the NRB directives as a single obligor.
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f. Claims secured by residential properties

1.

Lending to individuals meant for acquiring or developing residential property which
are fully secured by mortgages on residential property, that is or will be occupied by
the borrower or that is rented, will be risk-weighted at 60%. However, banks should
ensure the existence of adequate margin of security over the amount of loan based on
strict valuation rules.

Banks have to develop product paper and get it approved from the board of directors to
regulate this kind of lending. The claims in order to be eligible for this category have to
be in strict compliance with this product paper

Where the loan is not fully secured, such claims have to risk weighed at 150%

When claims secured by residential properties are or have been past due' at any point
of time during the last two years, they shall be risk-weighted at 100%, net of specific
provisions.

g.  Claims secured by commercial real estate

1.

Claims secured by mortgages on commercial real estate, except past due, shall be risk-
weighed at 100%. Commercial real estate hereby refers to mortgage of Office
buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction etc.

h. Past due claims

1.

Any loan, except for claim secured by residential property, which is or has been past
due at any point of time during the last two years, will be risk-weighted at 150% net of
specific provision.

i. High risk claims

1. 150% risk weight shall be applied for venture capital and private equity investments.
2. Exposures on Personal loan in excess of the threshold of regulatory retail
portfolio and exposures on credit card shall warrant a risk weight of 150%.

3. Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are not
listed in the stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be
risk weighed at 150% net of provisions and valuation adjustments which are,
directly or through other comprehensive income, recognized on equity.

4.  The claims which are not fully secured or are only backed up by personal guarantee
shall attract 150% risk weight.

5. Where loan cannot be segregated/or identified as regulatory retail portfolio or
qualifying residential mortgage loan or under other categories, it shall be risk weighed
at 150%.

J. Other assets
1. With regard to other assets, following provisions have been made;

10

An exposure is past due if it falls into any other category other than Performing loan as per provisions of NRB directive on

Loan classification.
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K.

a. Interest receivable/claim on government securities will be risk-weighed at 0%.

b.  Staff loan given as per Employee By-laws and secured by residential property,
that is or will be occupied by the staff or that is rented, will be risk-weighed at
50%. However, banks should ensure the existence of adequate margin of security
over the amount of loan based on strict valuation rules.

c. Investments in equity or regulatory capital instruments issued by securities firms
will be risk-weighed at 100% net of valuation adjustments which are, directly or
through other comprehensive income, recognized on equity.

d.  Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of collection will be risk-
weighed at 20%. For this purpose, cash items shall include Cheque and Draft.

e. Fictitious assets that have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital shall be risk
weighed at 100%.

f. Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions,
which are listed in the stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier
1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 100% net of provisions and valuation
adjustments which are, directly or through other comprehensive income,
recognized on equity. Investments in mutual fund shall also be risk weighted
at 100% net of valuation adjustments as described above.

g.  All Other assets will be risk-weighed at 100% net of specific provision and
valuation adjustments which are, directly or through other comprehensive
income, recognized on equity.

h. Lending against securities (bonds and shares) shall attract risk weight of 100 % .

Off balance sheet items

1.  Off-balance sheet items under the simplified standardized approach will be converted
into equivalent risk weight exposure using risk weight as follows:
Off Balance Sheet Exposure Risk
Weight
Any commitments those are unconditionally cancelable at any time by the bank | 0%
without prior notice, or that effectively provide for automatic cancellation due to
deterioration in a borrower’s creditworthiness (for example bills under collection)
Forward exchange contracts. 10%
Short Term Trade-related contingencies 20%
Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against
an underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are short
term in nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued
and any other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity up to six months.
Undertaking to provide a commitment on an off-balance sheet items 20%
Unsettled" securities and foreign exchange transactions between bank to bank and | 20%
between bank and customer

11
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Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of more
than 1 year.

Performance-related contingencies 40%

Contingent liabilities, which involve an irrevocable obligation to pay a third party in
the event that counterparty fails to fulfill or perform a contractual non-monetary
obligation, such as delivery of goods by a specified date etc. This includes issue of
performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, indemnities, underwriting commitments and
standby letters of credit in relation to a non-monetary obligation of counterparty under
a particular transaction.

Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of more than 1
year. This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital
loans e.g. overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance
exposures.

Short term irrevocable Credit Commitments 20%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of upto 1 year.
This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital loans e.g.
overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance exposures.

Repurchase agreements, securities lending, securities borrowing, reverse repurchase | 100%
agreements and equivalent transactions

This includes sale and repurchase agreements and asset sales with recourse, where the
credit risk remains with the purchasing bank.

Direct credit substitutes 100%

Any irrevocable off-balance sheet obligations which carry the same credit risk as a
direct extension of credit, such as an undertaking to make a payment to a third party in
the event that a counterparty fails to meet a financial obligation or an undertaking to a
counterparty to acquire a potential claim on another party in the event of default by that
party, constitutes a direct credit substitute. This includes potential credit exposures
arising from the issue of financial guarantees and credit derivatives, confirmation of
letters of credit (acceptances and endorsements), issue of standby letters of credit
serving as financial guarantees for loans, securities and any other financial liabilities,
and bills endorsed under bill endorsement lines (but which are not accepted by, or have
the prior endorsement of, another bank).

Unpaid portion of partly paid shares and securities 100%
Unpaid Guarantee Claim 200%
Other Contingent Liabilities 100%

3.4 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION:

Banks may use a number of techniques to mitigate the risks to which they are exposed. The prime
objective of this provision is to encourage the banks to manage credit risk in a prudent and effective
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manner. As such, credit risks exposures may be collateralized"? in whole or in part with cash or
securities, or a loan exposure may be guaranteed by a third party. Where these various techniques
meet the minimum conditions mentioned below, banks which take eligible financial collateral are
allowed to reduce their credit exposure to counterparty when calculating their capital requirements
to take account of the risk mitigating effect of the collateral. However, credit risk mitigation is
allowed only on an account by account basis, even within regulatory retail portfolio.

As a general rule, no secured claim should receive a higher capital requirement than an otherwise
identical claim on which there is no collateral. Similarly, the effects of the CRM shall not be double
counted and capital requirement will be applied to banks on either side of the collateralized
transaction: for example, both repos and reverse repos will be subject to capital requirements.

Those portions of claims collateralized by the market value of recognized collateral receive the risk
weight applicable to the collateral instrument. The remainder of the claim should be assigned the
risk weight appropriate to the counter party.

Where the same security has been pledged for both the funded and non funded facilities, banks
should clearly demarcate the value of security held for funded and non funded facilities. In cases
where the bank has obtained the same security for various forms of facilities; banks are eligible to
claim the CRM benefit across all such exposures upto the eligible value of CRM.

a. Minimum conditions for eligibility:

In order to obtain capital relief towards credit risk mitigation, there are certain basic
conditions that need to be fulfilled. Supervisors will monitor the extent to which banks satisfy
these conditions, both at the outset of a collateralized transaction and on an on-going basis.

1.  Legal certainty:- Collateral is effective only if the legal mechanism by which collateral
given is robust and ensures that the lender has clear rights over the collateral to
liquidate or retain it in the event of default. Thus, banks must take all necessary steps to
fulfill local contractual requirements in respect of the enforceability of security interest.
The collateral arrangements must be properly documented, with a clear and robust
procedure for the timely liquidation of collateral. A bank's procedures should ensure
that any legal conditions required for declaring the default of the customer and
liquidating the collateral are observed. Where the collateral is held by a custodian, the
bank must seek to ensure that the custodian ensures adequate segregation of the
collateral instruments and the custodian's own assets. Besides that, banks must obtain
legal opinions confirming the enforceability of the collateral arrangements in all
relevant jurisdictions.

2. Low correlation with exposure:- In order for collateral to provide protection, the credit
quality of the obligor and the value of the collateral must not have a material positive
correlation. For example, securities issued by the collateral provider - or by any related
group entity - would provide little protection and so would be ineligible.

3. Maturity Mismatch:- The maturity of the underlying exposure and the maturity of the
hedge should both be defined conservatively. The effective maturity of the underlying
should be gauged as the longest possible remaining time before the obligor is scheduled
to fulfill its obligation. The collateral must be pledged for at least the life of the
exposure. In case of mismatches in the maturity of the underlying exposure and the
collateral, it shall not be eligible for CRM benefits.

12" A collateralized transaction is one in which: a) banks have a credit exposure or potential credit exposure; and b) that credit

exposures or potential credit exposure is hedged in whole or in part by collateral posted by the counter party or by a third
party on behalf of the counter party.
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Currency Mismatch:- Ideally the currency of the underlying exposure and the collateral
should be the same. Where the credit exposure is denominated in a currency that differs
from that in which the underlying exposure is denominated, there is a currency
mismatch. Where mismatches occur, it shall be subject to supervisory haircut of 10%.

Risk Management:- While CRM reduces credit risk, it simultaneously may increase
other risks to which a bank is exposed, such as legal, operational, liquidity and market
risks. Therefore, it is imperative that banks employ robust procedures and processes to
control these risks, including strategy; consideration of the underlying credit; valuation;
policies and procedures; systems; control of roll-off risks; and management of
concentration risk arising from the bank's use of CRM techniques and its effect with the
bank's overall credit profile. In case where these requirements are not fulfilled, NRB
may not recognize the benefit of CRM techniques.

Qualifying criteria for guarantee:- A guarantee (counter guarantee) to be eligible must
represent a direct claim on the protection provider and must be explicitly referenced to
specific exposures or a pool of exposures, so that the extent of the cover is clearly
defined and irrefutable. Other than non-payment by a protection purchaser of money
due in respect of the credit protection contract it must be irrevocable in that there must
be no clause in the contract that would increase the effective cost of cover as a result of
deteriorating credit quality in the hedged exposure. It must also be unconditional in that
there should be no clause in the protection contract outside the control of the bank that
could prevent the protection provider from being obliged to pay out in a timely manner
in the event that the original counter party fails to make the payments due.

On the qualifying default or non-payment of the counter party, the bank may in a
timely manner pursue the guarantor for any monies outstanding under the
documentation governing the transaction. The guarantor may make one lump sum
payment of all monies under such documentation to the bank, or the guarantor may
assume the future payment obligations of the counter party covered by the guarantee.
The bank must have the right to receive any such payments from the guarantor without
first having to take legal actions in order to pursue the counter party payment.

b. Eligible Collateral:

1.

~

o g k&~ w

Cash deposit (as well as certificates of deposit or fixed deposits or other deposits) with
the bank. The banks may only claim these as CRM only if it has specific authority to
recover the amount from this source in case of default.

Fixed Deposit Receipts/Certificates of deposits/other deposits of other Banks and Fls,
who fulfill the capital adequacy requirements, subject to a 20% supervisory haircut.

Gold.
Securities issued by the Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank.
Guarantee of the Government of Nepal

Financial guarantee/counter guarantee of domestic banks and FIs who meet the
minimum capital adequacy requirements subject to a haircut of 20%.

Securities/Financial guarantee/Counter guarantee issued by sovereigns.

Securities/Financial guarantee/Counter guarantee issued by MDBs in the list specified
in3.3b(3&4)
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4.2

9.  Securities/Financial guarantee/Counter guarantee issued by banks with ECA rating 2 or
better. The supervisory haircut shall be 20% and 50% for the banks with ECA rating of
0-1 and 2 respectively.

C. Methodology for using CRM

Step 1: Identify the accounts eligible for capital relief under credit risk mitigation.
Step 2: Assess the value of the exposure and the eligible collateral.

Step 3: Adjust the value of the eligible collateral in respect of the supervisory haircut in
terms of currency mismatch and other eligibility requirements.

Step 4: Compare the adjusted value of the collateral with the outstanding exposure.

Step 5: The value of the eligible CRM is the lower of the adjusted value of the collateral and
the outstanding exposure.

Step 6: Plot the eligible CRM in the appropriate category of credit risk.

The sum total of net amount of eligible CRM as per “Form No.4 Exhibit of claims with
eligible credit risk mitigants” shall be consistent with the “Form No.3 Eligible Credit Risk
Mitigants” prescribed in this framework.

OPERATIONAL RISK
GENERAL:

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people, and
systems, or from external events. Operational risk itself is not a new concept, and well run banks
have been addressing it in their internal controls and corporate governance structures. However,
applying an explicit regulatory capital charge against operational risk is a relatively new and
evolving idea. Basel Il requires banks to hold capital against the risk of unexpected loss that could
arise from the failure of operational systems.

The most important types of operational risk involve breakdowns in internal controls and corporate
governance. Such breakdowns can lead to financial losses through error, fraud, or failure to perform
in a timely manner or cause the interests of the bank to be compromised in some other way, for
example, by its dealers, lending officers or other staff exceeding their authority or conducting
business in an unethical or risky manner. Other aspects of operational risk include major failure of
information technology systems or events such as major fires or other disasters.

BASIC INDICATOR APPROACH:

Under the basic indicator approach, banks must hold capital for operational risk equal to the
average over the previous three years of a fixed percentage (denoted alpha) of positive annual gross
income.

The capital charge for operational risk may be expressed as follows:
Keia = [2(Gl1n X al)]/N
where:
Kgia = capital charge under the Basic Indicator Approach
Gl = annual gross income, where positive, over the previous three years

N = number of the previous three years for which gross income is positive
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4.3

o = 15 percent.

NRB shall review the capital requirement produced by this approach for general credibility,
especially in relation to a bank's peers and in the event that credibility is lacking, appropriate
supervisory action under Review Process shall be considered.

Figures for the year, in which annual gross income is negative or zero, should be excluded from
both the numerator and denominator while calculating the average. In case where the gross income
for all of the last three years is negative, 5% of total credit and investments net of specific
provisions shall be considered as the capital charge for operational risk. For this purpose
investments shall comprise of money at call, placements, investment in government securities and
other investments irrespective of currency.

Similarly, in case of new banks which have not completed a year of operation and whose average
gross income cannot be measured reliably, they shall also be required to compute their capital
charge for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross
income. These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards. But, based
on the reasonableness of the so computed capital charge for Operation Risk, during the first three
years of operation, review process may require additional proportion of capital charge if deemed
necessary.

GROSS INCOME:

Gross income is defined as "net Interest Income" plus "non interest income". It is intended that this
measure should:

a. be gross of any provisions (e.g. for unpaid interest) and write-offs made during the year;

b.  be gross of operating expenses, exclude reversal during the year in respect of provisions and
write-offs made during the previous year(s);

c.  exclude income/gain recognized from the disposal of items of movable and immovable
property;

d.  exclude realized profits/losses from the sale of securities in the “held to maturity” category;,

e.  exclude other extraordinary or irregular items of income and expenditure

Thus, for the purpose of capital adequacy requirements, gross income shall be summation of:

a.  Total operating income as disclosed in Profit and Loss account prepared as per NRB directive
no.4. The total operating income comprises of:

1. Net Interest Income
2. Commission and Discount Income
3. Other Operating Income
4. Exchange Fluctuation Income
b.  Addition/deduction in the Interest Suspense during the period.

Banks shall use the annual audited financials of the last three years for the computation of gross
income under this approach. Hence, the capital requirement for operational risk for a whole
financial year shall remain constant. Until the accounts are finalized for the financial year, banks
shall use the provisional figures for the period, which should be validated by the internal auditor of
the bank.
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Operational risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the operational risk capital charge
by 11 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

MARKET RISK
DEFINITION OF MARKET RISK:

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions
arising from adverse movements in market prices. The major constituents of market risks are:

a.  The risks pertaining to interest rate related instruments;

b.  Foreign exchange risk (including gold positions) throughout the bank; and
c.  The risks pertaining to investment in equities and commodities.
SEGREGATION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO:

Banks shall recognize measure, present and disclose the investment instruments as per the
requirement of NFRSs.

NET OPEN POSITION APPROACH:

Out of the various components of market risk, foreign exchange risk is the predominant risk in our
country. The effects of other forms of market risk are minimal. Thus, a net open position approach
has been devised to measure the capital requirement for market risk. As evidenced by its name, this
approach only addresses the risk of loss arising out of adverse movements in exchange rates. This
approach will be consolidated over time to incorporate other forms of market risks as they start to
gain prominence.

The designated Net Open Position approach requires banks to allocate a fixed proportion of capital
in terms of its net open position. The banks should allocate 5 percentage of their net open positions
as capital charge for market risk.

NET OPEN POSITION:

Net open position is the difference between the assets and the liability in a currency. In other words,
it is the uncovered volume of asset or liability which is exposed to the changes in the exchange
rates of currencies. For capital adequacy requirements the net open position includes both net spot
positions as well as net forward positions.

For capital adequacy purposes, banks should calculate their net open position in the following
manner:

a.  Calculate the net open position in each of the foreign currencies.
b.  Convert the net open positions in each currency to NPR as per prevalent exchange rates.

c.  Aggregate the converted net open positions of all currencies, without paying attention to long
or short positions.

d.  This aggregate shall be the net open position of the bank.
COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Risk-weighted assets in respect of market risk are determined by multiplying the capital charges by
11 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

REVIEW PROCESS
GENERAL:
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The supervisory review process of the framework is intended not only to ensure that banks have
adequate capital to support all the risks in their business, but also to encourage banks to develop
and use better risk management techniques in monitoring and managing their risks. It is the
responsibility of the bank management in developing an internal capital assessment process and
setting capital targets that are commensurate with the bank’s risk profile and control environment
beyond the core minimum requirements.

Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes the significance of the relationship between the amount of capital
held by the bank against its risks and the strength and effectiveness of the bank’s risk management
and internal control processes. However, increased capital should not be viewed as the only option
for addressing increased risks confronting the bank. Other means for addressing risk, such as
strengthening risk management, applying internal limits, strengthening the level of provisions and
reserves, and improving internal controls, must also be considered. Furthermore, capital should not
be regarded as a substitute for addressing fundamentally inadequate control or risk management
processes.

There are three main areas that is particularly suited to treatment under this process: risks
considered under minimum capital requirements which are not fully captured it (e.g. credit
concentration risk); those factors not taken into account by the minimum capital requirements (e.g.
business and strategic risk); and factors external to the bank (e.g. business cycle effects).

In order to achieve the objectives of the supervisory review process, this process has been broadly
divided into three parts:

a. Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

b.  Supervisory Review

C. Supervisory Response

INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS:

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which
requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews
at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk
profile of the bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key
components of an effective ICAAP are discussed below.

a. Board and senior management oversight

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by
the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring
that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with
the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation
for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks.
The board should also ensure that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various
risks; develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a method
for monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills
strong internal controls and thereby an effective control environment through adoption of
written policies and procedures and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively
communicated throughout the bank.

The analysis of a bank’s current and future capital requirements in relation to its strategic
objectives is a vital element of the strategic planning process. The strategic plan should
clearly outline the bank’s capital needs, anticipated capital expenditures, desirable capital
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level, and external capital sources. Senior management and the board should view capital
planning as a crucial element in being able to achieve its desired strategic objectives.

b. Sound capital assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be
able to make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum, have the following:

e Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports
all material risks;

e A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

e A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

e A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

C. Comprehensive assessment of risks

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process.
Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, bank
should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a
comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following
forms of risk.

1. Credit risk: Banks should have methodologies that enable them to assess the credit risk
involved in exposures to individual borrowers or counterparties as well as at the
portfolio level. The credit review assessment of capital adequacy, at a minimum,
should cover risk rating systems, portfolio analysis/aggregation, large exposures and
risk concentrations.

Internal risk ratings are an important tool in monitoring credit risk. Internal risk ratings
should be adequate to support the identification and measurement of risk from all credit
exposures, and should be integrated into an institution’s overall analysis of credit risk
and capital adequacy. The ratings system should provide detailed ratings for all assets,
not only for problem assets.

2. Credit concentration risk: Risk concentrations are arguably the single most important
cause of major problems in banks. A risk concentration is any single exposure or group
of exposures with the potential to produce losses large enough (relative to a bank’s
capital, total assets, or overall risk level) to threaten a bank’s health or ability to
maintain its core operations.

Lending being the primary activity of most banks, credit risk concentrations are often
the most material risk concentrations within a bank. However, risk concentrations can
arise in a bank’s assets, liabilities, or off-balance sheet items, through the execution or
processing of transactions (either product or service), or through a combination of
exposures across these broad categories. Credit risk concentrations are based on
common or correlated risk factors, which, in times of stress, have an adverse effect on
the creditworthiness of each of the individual counterparties making up the
concentration.

Such credit concentrations are not addressed in the minimum capital requirements for
credit risk. Thus, banks should have in place effective internal policies, systems and
controls to identify, measure, monitor, and control their credit risk concentrations.
Banks should explicitly consider the extent of their credit risk concentrations in their
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assessment of capital adequacy under review processes. These policies should cover the
different forms of credit risk concentrations to which a bank may be exposed to. Such
concentrations include but are not limited to:

e Significant exposures to an individual counterparty or group of related
counterparty. Banks might also establish an aggregate limit for the management
and control of all of its large exposures as a group;

e Credit exposures to counterparties in the same economic sector or geographic
region;

e Credit exposures to counterparties whose financial performance is dependent on the
same activity or commaodity; and

e Indirect credit exposures arising from a bank’s CRM activities (e.g. exposure to a
similar type of collateral or credit protection provided by a single counterparty or
same collateral in cases of multiple banking).

A bank’s framework for managing credit risk concentrations should be clearly
documented and should include a definition of the credit risk concentrations relevant to
the bank and how these concentrations and their corresponding limits are calculated.
Limits should be defined in relation to a bank’s capital, total assets or, where adequate
measures exist, its overall risk level. A bank’s management should conduct periodic
stress tests of its major credit risk concentrations and review the results of those tests to
identify and respond to potential changes in market conditions that could adversely
impact the bank’s performance.

3. Operational risk: The failure to properly manage operational risk can result in a
misstatement of an institution’s risk/return profile and expose the institution to
significant losses. Gross income, used in the Basic Indicator Approach is only a proxy
for the scale of operational risk exposure of a bank and can in some cases
underestimate the need for capital. Thus, Banks should develop a framework for
managing operational risk and evaluate the adequacy of capital as prescribed by this
framework. The framework should cover the bank’s appetite and tolerance for
operational risk, as specified through the policies for managing this risk, including the
extent and manner in which operational risk is transferred outside the bank. It should
also include policies outlining the bank’s approach to identifying, assessing, monitoring
and controlling/mitigating the risk.

4.  Market risk: The prescribed approach for the computation of capital charge for market
risk is very simple and thus may not be directly aligned with the magnitude of risk.
Likewise, the approach only incorporates risks arising out of adverse movements in
exchange rates while ignoring other forms of risks like interest rate risk and equity
risks. Thus, banks should develop a framework that addresses these various forms of
risk and at the same time perform stress tests to evaluate the adequacy of capital.

The use of internal models by the bank for the measurement of market risk is highly
encouraged. Wherever bank's make use of internal models for computation of capital
charge for market risks, bank management should ensure the adequacy and
completeness of the system regardless of the type and level of complexity of the
measurement system as the quality and reliability of the measurement system is largely
dependent on the quality of the data and various assumptions used in the model.

5. Liquidity risk: Liquidity is crucial to the ongoing viability of any financial institution.
The capital positions can have a telling effect on institution’s ability to obtain liquidity,
especially in a crisis. Each bank must have adequate systems for measuring, monitoring
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6.3

and controlling liquidity risk. Banks should evaluate the adequacy of capital given their
own liquidity profile and the liquidity of the markets in which they operate. Banks are
also encouraged to make use of stress testing to determine their liquidity needs and the
adequacy of capital.

6.  Other risks: Although the ‘other’ risks, such as reputational and strategic risk, are not
easily measurable, banks are expected to take these into consideration as well while
deciding on the level of capital.

Monitoring and reporting

The bank should establish an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures
and assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The bank’s
senior management or board of directors should, on a regular basis, receive reports on the
bank’s risk profile and capital needs. These reports should allow senior management to:

o Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

o Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital
assessment measurement system,;

e Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

e Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and make
necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

Internal control review

A bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and,
where appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of
directors has a responsibility to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the
various risks, develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s capital level, and establishes a
method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify
whether its system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent
conduct of business.

The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process to ensure its
integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:

e Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and
complexity of its activities;

¢ Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;
e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;
e Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and

e  Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

SUPERVISORY REVIEW:

Nepal Rastra Bank shall regularly review the process by which a bank assesses its capital adequacy,
risk positions, resulting capital levels, and quality of capital held by a bank. Supervisors shall also
evaluate the degree to which a bank has in place a sound internal process to assess capital
adequacy. The emphasis of the review should be on the quality of the bank’s risk management and
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controls and should not result in supervisors functioning as bank management. The periodic review
can involve any or a combination of:

On-site examinations or inspections;
Off-site review;
Discussions with bank management;

Review of work done by external auditors (provided it is adequately focused on the necessary
capital issues); and

Periodic reporting.

Some of the key areas which will be reviewed during the supervisory review process are discussed
hereunder

a.

Review of adequacy of risk assessment

NRB shall assess the degree to which internal targets and processes incorporate the full range
of material risks faced by the bank. Supervisors shall also review the adequacy of risk
measures used in assessing internal capital adequacy and the extent to which these risk
measures are also used operationally in setting limits, evaluating business line performance,
and evaluating and controlling risks more generally. Supervisors shall consider the results of
sensitivity analyses and stress tests conducted by the institution and how these results relate
to capital plans.

Assessment of capital adequacy

NRB shall review the bank’s processes to determine that:

e Target levels of capital chosen are comprehensive and relevant to the current operating
environment;

e These levels are properly monitored and reviewed by senior management; and
e The composition of capital is appropriate for the nature and scale of the bank’s business.

NRB shall also consider the extent to which the bank has provided for unexpected events in
setting its capital levels. This analysis should cover a wide range of external conditions and
scenarios, and the sophistication of techniques and stress tests used should be commensurate
with the bank’s activities.

Assessment of the control environment

NRB shall consider the quality of the bank’s management information reporting and systems,
the manner in which business risks and activities are aggregated, and management’s record in
responding to emerging or changing risks. In all instances, the capital level at an individual
bank should be determined according to the bank’s risk profile and adequacy of its risk
management process and internal controls. External factors such as business cycle effects and
the macroeconomic environment should also be considered.

Supervisory review of compliance with minimum standards

In order to obtain relief as per this framework banks are required to observe a number of
requirements, including risk management standards and disclosures. In particular, banks will
be required to disclose features of their internal methodologies used in calculating minimum
capital requirements. As part of the supervisory review process, supervisors must ensure that
these conditions are being met on an ongoing basis. Likewise, the supervisors must ensure
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that qualifying criteria as specified in the framework are continuously being met as these
criteria are developed as benchmarks that are aligned with bank management expectations for
effective risk management and capital allocation.

Significance of risk transfer

Securitization or credit sale agreements with recourse may be carried out for purposes other
than credit risk transfer (e.g. funding). Where this is the case, there might still be a limited
transfer of credit risk. However, for an originating bank to achieve reductions in capital
requirements, the risk transfer arising from a securitization or credit sale has to be deemed
significant by the NRB. If the risk transfer is considered to be insufficient or non existent,
NRB can require the application of a higher capital requirement or, alternatively, may deny a
bank from obtaining any capital relief from the securitization or transfer agreements.
Therefore, the capital relief that can be achieved will correspond to the amount of credit risk
that is effectively transferred.

Credit Risk Mitigants

In case when the eligibility requirements are not fulfilled, NRB will not consider Credit Risk
Mitigants in allocating capital. Similarly, CRM may give rise to residual risks, which may
render the overall risk reduction less effective. Where, these risks are not adequately
controlled by the bank, NRB may impose additional capital charges or take other appropriate
supervisory actions.

Operational risk and Market Risk

The framework prescribes simple approaches for allocating capital for operational and market
risk which may not be directly aligned with the volume and complexity of risk. Thus, the
supervisor shall consider whether the capital requirements generated by the prescribed
approaches gives a consistent picture of the individual bank's risk exposure in comparison
with the peer group and the banking industry at large. Where NRB is convinced such is not
the case, appropriate supervisory response is warranted.

Market Discipline

The framework requires banks to disclose various key informations about their business on a
periodic basis. It is imperative that the banks discharge their obligations under the disclosure
requirements in order to be eligible to claim benefits of CRM. In line with the utmost
significance of this requirement, the supervisor shall review the adequacy of the disclosures.
As a part of this process itself, the supervisor shall regularly review the website of the banks
and review the contents of the site. Wherever the review process identifies any shortcomings
or non-compliances, appropriate supervisory response shall be initiated.

6.4 SUPERVISORY RESPONSE:

Nepal Rastra Bank expects banks to operate above the minimum regulatory capital ratios.
Wherever, NRB is not convinced about the risk management practices and the control environment,
it has the authority to require banks to hold capital in excess of the minimum.

a.

Supervisory adjustments in risk weighted assets and capital

Having carried out the review process as described above, supervisors should take
appropriate action if they are not satisfied with the results of the bank’s own risk assessment
and capital allocation. In such a scenario, NRB shall be empowered to undertake any or
combination of the following adjustments in the banks risk weighted assets and regulatory
capital computations.
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1. Shortfall in provisions made by the bank against adversely classified assets shall be
deducted from the Tier 1 capital.

2. The loans and facilities extended to Directors, Employees (other than loans given under
Employee rules), Shareholders holding more than 1% percent shares and related parties
as well as loans, advances and facilities restricted by the prevailing rules and
regulations shall be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

3. Incase the bank has provided loans and facilities in excess of its Single Obligor Limits,
10% of all such excess exposures shall be added to the risk weighted exposure for
credit risk.

4. Where the bank has been involved in the sale of credit with recourse facility, 1% of the
contract (sale) value shall be added to the risk weight for credit risk.

5. Where the banks do not have satisfactory Assets Liability Management policies and
practices to effectively manage the market risks, an additional risk weight of 1% of Net
Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year shall be added to the risk
weight for market risk

Where the Net Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year is
negative, 1% of the total credit and investments net of specific provisions shall be
the capital charge for unsatisfactory ALM policies and practices.

6.  Where the bank's net liquid asset to total deposit ratio is less than 20%, a risk weight of
1% (as given in the table below) of total deposit, for each percent or portion of percent
shortfall in such ratio, is added to total of the Risk Weighted Exposures.

Net liquid asset to total deposit| A risk weight to be added to the Risk Weighted
ratio Exposures

19% - less than 20% 1% of total deposit

18% - less than 19% 2% of total deposit

17% - less than 18% 3% of total deposit

16% - less than 17% 4% of total deposit

15% - less than 16% 5% of total deposit and so on.

For this purpose, liquid assets include cash and bank balances, money at call & short
notice, placement up to 90 days and investment in government securities. Borrowings
repayable up to 90 days is deducted from liquid assets to obtain net liquid assets.

7. Where the banks do not adopt sound practices for the management of operational risk,
an additional capital charge of 2% to 5% of Gross Income of Immediate previous
financial year shall be levied for operational risks. However, for FY 2077/78 such
capital charge shall be 2% to 3% .

8.  Where the Gross Income determined for computation of capital charge of Operational
Risk for all of the last three years is negative and where the banks themselves have not
addressed the capital charge for operational risk, 5% of the total credit and investments
net of specific provisions shall be the capital charge for operational risk.

New banks who have not completed a year of operation and hence whose gross income
cannot be measured reliably and where the banks themselves have not addressed the
capital charge for operational risk, shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross
income. These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year
onwards. But, based on the reasonableness of the so- computed capital charge for
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Operation Risk, during the first three years of operation, review process may require
additional proportion of capital charge.

9.  During the course of review, where the supervisor is not satisfied with the overall risk
management policies and procedures of the bank, the total risk weighted exposures of
the bank shall be increased up to 5%. However, for FY 2077/78 such increment shall
be upto 3%.

10. In case the bank has not achieved the desired level of disclosure requirements, the total
risk weighted exposures of the bank shall be increased up to 3%. However, for FY
2077/78 such increment shall be upto 1%.

11. Banks that do not meet the eligibility requirements to claim the benefit under credit risk
mitigation techniques shall not be allowed the benefit of CRM.

b. Corrective Actions for Non-Compliances

1. The failure on part of the banks to meet the provisions of this framework shall be
considered as a violation of the NRB directives and shall attract stipulated actions. The
nature of the enforcement action largely depends on degree of the capital adequacy of
the bank. The trigger points and the prescribed action in case of non-compliance shall
be as per the provisions of Prompt Corrective Action Byelaw 2074 propounded by
Nepal Rastra Bank.

DISCLOSURE
GENERAL:

The purpose of disclosure requirements is to complement the minimum capital requirements and
the review process by developing a set of disclosure requirements which will allow market
participants to assess key pieces of information on the scope of application, capital, risk exposures,
risk assessment processes, and hence the capital adequacy of the bank. It is believed that providing
disclosures that are based on a common framework is an effective means of informing the market
about a bank’s exposure to those risks and provides a consistent and comprehensive disclosure
framework that enhances comparability. The importance of disclosure is more pronounced in cases
of banks that rely on internal methodologies in assessing capital requirements.

DISCLOSURE PRINCIPLES:

Banks should have a formal disclosure policy approved by the Board of directors that addresses the
bank’s approach for determining what disclosures it will make and the internal controls over the
disclosure process. In addition, banks should implement a process for assessing the appropriateness
of their disclosures, including validation and frequency. While deciding on the disclosure policy,
the board should pay due attention to strike a balance between materiality and proprietary and
confidential information.

a. Materiality

Besides the minimum prescribed disclosure requirements, a bank should decide which
additional disclosures are relevant for it based on the materiality concept. Information would
be regarded as material if its omission or misstatement could change or influence the
assessment or decision of a user relying on that information for the purpose of making
economic decisions.

b. Proprietary and confidential information

Proprietary information encompasses information (for example on products or systems), that
if shared with competitors would render a bank’s investment in these products/systems less

AT T FFAIE “F G T T FIE FAGTITII FLEATE TR TRTP THIpe 3977 - 7066 ¥Y



7.3

7.4

valuable, and hence would undermine its competitive position. Information about customers
is often confidential, in that it is provided under the terms of a legal agreement or
counterparty relationship. This has an impact on what banks should reveal in terms of
information about their customer base, as well as details on their internal arrangements, for
instance methodologies used, parameter estimates, data etc. The disclosure requirements set
out below by NRB aims to strike an appropriate balance between the need for meaningful
disclosure and the protection of proprietary and confidential information.

VALIDATION:

The disclosures of the bank should be subjected to adequate validation. In addition, supplementary
material (such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis) that is published should also be
subjected to sufficient scrutiny (e.g. internal control assessments, etc.) to satisfy the validation
issue. If material is not published under a validation regime, for instance in a stand alone report or
as a section on a website, then management should ensure that appropriate verification of the
information takes place, in accordance with the general disclosure principles.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:

Banks should at minimum, disclose the following information at the stipulated time intervals. At
the same time, banks shall be free to disclose any other information they consider important for its
stakeholders as and when they consider necessary, beyond the prescribed requirements.

a. Banks should provide the following disclosures as at the end of each financial year along with
the annual financial statements.

1.  Capital structure and capital adequacy
o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to
be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capital;
o Total qualifying capital;
o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

2. Risk exposures
o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;
o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;
o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)
» Restructure/Reschedule Loan
» Substandard Loan
» Doubtful Loan
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» Loss Loan

o NPA ratios

» Gross NPA to gross advances

» Net NPA to net advances

Movement of Non Performing Assets

Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense

Details of additional Loan Loss Provisions

Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and

Available for sale category

Risk Management Function

o For each separate risk area (Credit, Market and Operational risk), banks must
describe their risk management objectives and policies, including:

O O O O O

» Strategies and processes;

» The structure and organization of the relevant risk management function;
» The scope and nature of risk reporting and/or measurement systems; and
>

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies, and processes for
monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges/mitigants.

o Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM.

b.  All commercial banks should make following disclosures on a quarterly basis on their
respective websites.

O
O
O

O O O O O O O

O O O O

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds.

Deductions from capital;

Total qualifying capital;

Capital adequacy ratio;

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

» Restructure/Reschedule Loan

» Substandard Loan

» Doubtful Loan

» Loss Loan

NPA ratios

» Gross NPA to gross advances

» Net NPA to net advances

Movement of Non Performing Assets

Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense

Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions
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o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and Available
for sale category

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially
in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Disclosure requirements under this framework should also be published in the respective

websites of the banks. Such disclosures of the banks should also be updated to reflect the

capital adequacy position of the banks after the supervisory adjustments under the review

process. Banks that do not host a website yet are required to make the necessary

arrangements to host a website immediately.

Banks are required to report to NRB their capital adequacy computations, according to the

format as specified in Annexure of this framework on a monthly basis within one month after

the end of the month or as required by NRB from time to time. All such returns has to be

validated by the internal auditor of the bank. If the monthly internal audit couldnot be carried

out, it should be disclosed on the monthly returns. But, such returns at the end of the quarter

must be submitted with the validation from the internal auditor of the bank.

Besides the returns specified above, a bank must inform NRB within 30 days of:

1. Any breach of the minimum capital adequacy requirements set out in this framework
together with an explanation of the reasons for the breach and the remedial measures it
has taken to address those breaches.

2. Any concerns it has about its capital adequacy, along with proposed measures to address
these concerns.

Full compliance of these disclosure requirements is a pre-requisite before banks can obtain
any capital relief (i.e., adjustments in the risk weights of collateralized or guaranteed
exposures) in respect of any credit risk mitigation techniques.

FORM NO. 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE (Summary)

(Rs.In .....)
Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Total Capital

Risk-Weighted Exposures

Regulatory Ratios

Current Period

Previous Period

Leverage Ratio

Common Equity Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio
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FORM NO. 1A CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE

(Rs.In .....)

1. 1 Risk Weighted Exposures

Current Period

Previous Period

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
Cc Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non compliance to Disclosure
Requirement (6.4 a 10)

Add: ....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid

Assets(6.4 a 6)

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

1.2 CAPITAL

Current Period

Previous Period

Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1 +AT1)

0

0

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)

0

0

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(Loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Bargain purchase gain

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

""U’_‘Q'OOJB_W'_'_'IO =h|D |Q|O |T|D

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit &
unutilized

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Un recognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

Less: Negative balance of reserve accounts

u
Vv
W
X
y
z

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and
Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Additional Tier 1 (AT1)

a

| Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital
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b Perpetual Debt Instruments

Stock Premium

o

Supplementary Capital (Tier I1)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General loan loss provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

= | T|IKQ|—|o|a|lo ||

Other Reserves

Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier 1)

0

0

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Current Period

Previous Period

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's

adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After

Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

FORM NO. 2: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR CREDIT RISK

(Rs.In .....)
Specific
Provision .
- . Risk
Book & Eligible Risk .
A. Balance Sheet Exposures Value |Valuation| CRM Net Value Weight I\E/Velghted
. Xposures
Adjustme
nt
a b C d=a-b-c e f=d*e
Cash Balance 0 0 0 0% 0
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Gold 0 0 0 0% 0
Invest_rr_]ent in  Nepalese  Government 0 0 0 0% 0
Securities
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0 0 0 0% 0
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0 0 0 0% 0
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -2) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -3) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
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Claims on Foreign Government and Central

0,
Bank (ECA-4-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and on
Multilateral Development Banks (MDB's) 0 0 0 0% 0
recognized by the framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Banks
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entity 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0
Claims on dor_nestlc banks that meet capital 0 0 0 0 20% 0
adequacy requirements
Cla!ms on domestic panks that do not meet 0 0 0 0 100% 0
capital adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region and China operating with a 0 0 0 0 20% 0
buffer of 1% above their respective
Claims on Domestic Corporate (Credit rating o
Score equivalent to AAA) 0 0 0 0 80% 0
Claims on Domestic Corporate(Credit rating 0
Score equivalentto AA+to AA-) 0 0 0 0 85% 0
Claims on Domestic Corporate(Credit rating 0
Score equivalentto A+ to A- ) 0 0 0 0 90% 0
Claims on Domestic Corporate(Credit rating 100%
Score equivalent to BBB* & below) 0 0 0 0 00% 0
Claims on Domestic Corporate (Unrated) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 0 0 0 0 75% 0
Clal_ms fulfilling aII_crlterlon of regulatory 0 0 0 0 100% 0
retail except granularity
Claims secured by residential properties 0 0 0 0 60% 0
Claims_ not fully secured by residential 0 0 0 0 150% 0
properties I :
Claims secured by residential properties 100%
(Overdue)
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 0 100% 0
Pas_t dug claims (e_xcept for claim secured by 0 0 0 0 150% 0
residential properties)
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High Risk claims 0 0 0 0 150% 0

Investments in equity and other capital

instruments of institutions listed in the stock 0 0 0 0 100% 0

exchange

Investments in equity and other capital

instruments of institutions not listed in the 0 0 0 0 150% 0

stock exchange

Staff loan secured by residential property 0 0 0 0 50% 0

Interejsf[ Receivable/claim on government 0 0 0 0 0% 0

securities

Cash in transit and other cash items in the

process of collection 0 0 0 0 20% 0

Other Assets (as per attachment) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

Gross - - . Risk
Specific |Eligible Risk .
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures 3:& t Provision | CRM Net Value Weight I\E/X ;Iogsrl:[feds
a b c d=a-b-c e f=d*e

Revocable Commitments 0 0 0 0% 0

Bills Under Collection 0 0 0 0% 0

Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities 0 0 0 0 10% 0

LC Commitments With Original Maturity

Upto 6 months 0 0 0 0 20% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0

LC Commitments With Original Maturity

Over 6 months 0 0 0 0 50% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter

guarantee 0 0 0 0 40% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% 0

Underwriting commitments 0 0 0 0 50% 0

Lendl_ng of Bank's Securities or Posting of 0 0 0 0 100% 0

Securities as collateral

Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with 0 0 0 100%

recourse

Advance Payment Guarantee 0 100% 0
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Financial Guarantee

100%

Acceptances and Endorsements

100%

Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and
Securities

100%

Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term)

20%

Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term)

ool O |O|o

ool O |Oo|o

ool O |Oo|o

ool O |Oo|o

50%

ool O |Oo|o

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of
1% above their respective regulatory capital
requirement

o

o

o

o

20%

o

Other Contingent Liabilities

100%

Unpaid Guarantee Claims

200%

TOTAL

Total RWE for credit Risk Before
Adjustment (A) +(B)

o ([O|lo|o

o ([Oo|lo|o

o ([O|lo|o

o ([Oo|lo|o

o |[Oo|lo|o

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Add: 10% of the loan and facilities in excess
of Single Obligor Limits(6.4 a 3)

Add: 1% of the contract(sale) value in case
of the sale of credit with recourse (6.4 a
4)

Total RWE for credit Risk (After Bank's

adjustments of Pillar I1)

FORM NO.3 ELIGIBLE CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

Credit exposures

Deposits
with Bank

Deposits
with
other

banks/FI

Gold

Govt.
&
NRB
Securit
ies

G'tee
of
Govt.
of
Nepal

Sec/
G'tee of
Other
Sovereli
gns

G'tee of
domest

banks

G'tee
of
MD
Bs

Sec/
G'tee of
Foreign

Banks

Total

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Balance Sheet Exposures

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -2)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -3)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA-4-6)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -7)

Claims on Other Multilateral Development
Banks

Claims on Domestic Public Sector
Entity

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7)

[ellelle]le]
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Credit exposures

Deposits
with Bank

Deposits
with
other

banks/FI

Gold

Govt.
&
NRB
Securit
ies

G'tee
of
Govt.
of
Nepal

Sec/
G'tee of
Other
Soverei
gns

G'tee of
domest
ic
banks

G'tee| Sec/

of
MD
Bs

G'tee of
Foreign
Banks

Total

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Claims on domestic banks that meet
capital adequacy requirements

Claims on domestic banks that do not meet
capital adequacy requirements

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7)

o|o|o|o|o

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region and China operating with
a buffer of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1)

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2)

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6)

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7)

Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue)

Claims fulfilling all criterion of regulatory
retail except granularity

OoO|Oo|0|O0|Oo|o|o

Claims secured by residential properties

o

Claims not fully secured by residential
properties

Claims secured by residential properties
(Overdue)

Claims secured by Commercial real estate

o

Past due claims (except for claim secured
by residential properties)

High Risk claims

o

Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions listed in the
stock exchange

Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions not listed in the
stock exchange

Other Assets (as per attachment)

Total

Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities

LC Commitments With Original Maturity
Upto 6 months
domestic counterparty

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-
1)
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Credit exposures

Deposits
with Bank

Deposits| Gold
with
other

banks/FI

Govt.
&
NRB
Securit
ies

G'tee | Sec/
of |G'tee of

Gowt. | Other
of |Soverei

Nepal | gns

domest
ic
banks

G'tee of| G'tee| Sec/

of |G'tee of
MD |Foreign
Bs | Banks

Total

(a)

(b) (©)

(d)

€ (M)

@ [

h) |()

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7)

LC Commitments With Original Maturity
Over 6 months
domestic counterparty

o|jo|o|o

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7)

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter
guarantee
domestic counterparty

o|o|0o|O|o

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6)

foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7)

Underwriting commitments

Lending of Bank's Securities or Posting of
Securities as collateral

OoO|0o|0|Oo|o|o

Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with
recourse

o

Advance Payment Guarantee

Financial Guarantee

Acceptances and Endorsements

Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and
Securities

o|0|O0|Oo

Irrevocable Credit commitments (Short
Term)

Irrevocable Credit commitments (Long
Term)

Other Contingent Liabilities

Total

Grand Total

FORM NO.4 EXHIBIT OF CLAIMS WITH CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

(Rs.dn ................)

S.N. | Counterparty Category

Facility

Outstanding

Eligib

le CRM

Nature

Gross
Amount

Haircut

Net
Amount
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FORM NO.5 OTHER ASSETS

S.No. | Assets Gross Amount Specific Net
Provision & | Balance
Valuation
Adjustment
1 Fixed Assets 0
2 Interest Receivable on Other Investment 0
3 Interest Receivable on Loan 0
4 Non Banking Assets 0
5 Reconciliation Account 0
6 Draft Paid Without Notice 0
7 Sundry Debtors 0
8 Advance payment and Deposits 0
9 Staff Loan and Advance 0
10 Stationery 0
11 Other 0
TOTAL 0 0 0
FORM NO. 6: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR OPERATIONAL RISK
Particulars FY FY ... FY ...
Net Interest Income
Commission and Discount Income
Other Operating Income
Exchange Fluctuation Income
Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period
Gross income (a)
Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]
Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c)
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%o) in
times (e) 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]
PILLAR-II ADJUSTMENTS
If Gross Income for all the last three years is negative(6.4 a 8)
Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision)
Capital Requirement for operational risk (5%)
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in
times 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [g]
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f or g)
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FORM NO.7 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR MARKET RISK

S.No. | Currency Open Position (FCY) Open Position (NPR) Relevant Open Position
1 INR

2 usD

3 GBP

4 EURO

5 THB

6 CHF

7 |

8 |

9  |...

Total Open Position (a)

Fixed Percentage (b) 5%
Capital Charge for Market Risk [c=(axb)]

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (d) 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [e=(cxd)]

FORM NO. 8 NET LIQUID ASSETS TO TOTAL DEPOSIT RATIO
(Rs.In .....)

Particulars Amount
Total Deposit and Borrowing (A)
Total Deposit(as per NRB Ni.Fa. 9.1)
Total Borrowing(as per NRB Ni.Fa. 9.1)
Liquid Assets (B)
Cash(9.1)
Bank Balance(9.1)
Money at call and short notice (9.1)
Investment in government Securities(9.1)
Placement upto 90 days
Borrowings payable upto 90 days (C)
Net Liquid Assets (D)=(B-C)

Net Liquid Assets to Total Deposit
Shortfall in Ratio
Amount to be added to Risk Weighted Exposures
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FORM NO.: 9 Leverage Ratio

(Rs.In .....

Particulars

Amount

Exposure Measure

1. On balance sheet Assets(net of specific provisioning and valuation
adjustment)

2. Repurchase agreements and securities finance

3. Derivatives

4. Off balance sheet exposure

Capital Measure

1. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (After regulatory Adjustment)

2. Additional Tier 1 Capital

%

C

Leverage Ratio

Note (if any):
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I A, 1R

Capital Adequacy Framework
2007
(Updated July 2008)

INTRODUCTION
BACKGROUND:

Prior to 1988, there was no uniform international regulatory standard for setting bank capital
requirements. In 1988, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)" developed the
Capital Accord, which is known as Basel |, to align the capital adequacy requirements applicable
especially to banks in G-10 countries. Basel | introduced two key concepts. First, it defined what
banks could hold as capital, as well as designating capital as Tier 1 or Tier 2 according to its loss-
absorbing or creditor-protecting characteristics. The second key concept introduced in Basel | was
that capital should be held by banks in relation to the risks that they face. The major risks faced by
banks relate to the assets held on balance sheet. Thus, Basel I calculated banks’ minimum capital
requirements as a percentage of assets, which are adjusted in accordance to their riskiness and
assigning risk weights to assets. Higher weights are assigned to riskier assets such as corporate
loans, and lower weights are assigned to less risky assets, such as exposures to government.

The BCBS released the "International Convergence of Capital Measurements and Capital
Standards: Revised Framework", popularly known as Basel Il, on June 26, 2004. This framework
was updated in November 2005 and a comprehensive version of the framework was issued in June
2006. Basel Il builds significantly on Basel | by increasing the sensitivity of capital to key bank
risks. In addition, Basel Il recognizes that banks can face a multitude of risks, ranging from the
traditional risks associated with financial intermediation to the day-to-day risks of operating a
business as well as the risks associated with the ups and downs of the local and international
economies. As a result, the new framework more explicitly associates capital requirements with the
particular categories of major risks that banks face.

The new capital framework also recognizes that large, usually internationally active banks have
already put in place sophisticated approaches to risk measurement and management based on
statistical inference rather than judgement alone. Thus, the framework allows banks, under certain
conditions, to use their own ‘internal’ models and techniques to measure the key risks that they
face, the probability of loss, and the capital required to meet those losses. In developing the new
framework, the Basel Committee wanted to incorporate many elements that help promote a sound
and efficient financial system over and above the setting of minimum capital requirements. With
this in mind, the Basel II framework incorporates three complementary ‘pillars’ that draw on the
range of approaches to help ensure that banks are adequately capitalised in commensurate with their
risk profile.

The Basel Committees on Banking Supervision's (BCBS) recommendations on capital accord are
important guiding framework for the regulatory capital requirement to the banking industry all over
the world and Nepal is no exception. Realizing the significance of capital for ensuring the safety

13

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision is a committee of banking supervisory authorities that was established

by the central bank governors of the Group of Ten countries in 1975. It consists of senior representatives of bank supervisory
authorities and central banks from Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the United States. It usually meets at the Bank for International Settlements in
Basel, Switzerland where its permanent Secretariat is located.
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1.2

1.3

14

15

and soundness of the banks and the banking system, at large, Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has
developed and enforced capital adequacy requirement based on international practices with
appropriate level of customization based on domestic state of market developments. The existing
regulatory capital is largely based on the Basel committee's 1988 recommendations.

With a view of adopting the international best practices, NRB expressed its intention to adopt the
Basel 1l framework, albeit in a simplified form. In line with international development and
thorough discussion with the stakeholders, evaluation and assessment of impact studies at various
phases, this framework has been drafted. This framework provides the guidelines for the
implementation of Basel Il framework in Nepal. Reminiscent of the International convergence of
capital measurements and capital standards, this framework also builds around three mutually
reinforcing pillars, viz. minimum capital requirements, supervisory review process and disclosure
requirements.

OBJECTIVE:

The main objective of this framework is to develop a safe and sound financial system by way of
sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. This framework is intended
to ensure that each financial institution maintains a level of capital which,

(i) isadequate to protect its depositors and creditors.

(ii) is commensurate with the risk associated activities and profile of the financial institution .
(iii) promotes public confidence in the banking system.

PRE-REQUISITES:

The effective implementation of this framework is dependent on various factors. Some such pre-
requisites are:

(i) Implementation of Basel Core Principles for effective banking supervision
(if) Adoption of the sound practices for the management of Operational Risk
(iii) Formulation and adoption of comprehensive risk management policy

(iv) Adherence to high degree of corporate governance

RESPONSIBILITY:

The board of directors of each financial institution shall be responsible for establishing and
maintaining, at all times, an adequate level of capital. The capital standards herein are the minimum
that is acceptable for financial institutions that are fundamentally sound, well managed, and which
have no material financial or operational weaknesses. Thus, the financial institutions are generally
expected to operate above the limits prescribed by this framework.

SCOPE OF APPLICATION:

This framework shall be applicable to all "B" Class national level financial institutions licensed to
conduct banking business in Nepal under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

This capital adequacy framework shall be applied uniformly to all national level "B" class financial
institutions on a stand-alone basis as well as on a consolidated basis, where the financial institution
is member of a consolidated banking group. For the purpose of capital adequacy, the consolidated
financial institution means a group of financial entities, parent or holding company of which a
financial institution is a subsidiary. All banking and other relevant financial activities (both
regulated and unregulated) conducted within a group including a financial institution shall be
captured through consolidation. Thus, majority owned or controlled financial entities should be
fully consolidated. If any majority owned subsidiary institutions are not consolidated for capital
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1.6

1.7
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1.9

purposes, all equity and other regulatory capital investments in those entities attributable to the
group will be deducted except otherwise prescribed and the assets and liabilities, as well as third
party capital investments in the subsidiary will be removed from the bank™s balance sheet for
capital adequacy purposes.

APPROACHES TO IMPLEMENTATION:

"International Convergence for Capital Measurements and Capital Standards: Revised Framework"
alias Basel Il under Pillar 1, provides three distinct approaches for computing capital requirements
for credit risk and three other approaches for computing capital requirements for operational risk.
These approaches for credit and operational risks are based on increasing risk sensitivity and allow
financial institutions to select an approach that is most appropriate for the stage of development of
financial institution's operations.

The products and services offered by the Nepalese Banks and financial institutions are still largely
conventional, in comparison to other economies. This coupled with the various inherent limitations
of our system like the absence of credit rating agencies makes the advanced approaches like
Internal Ratings Based Approach or even Standardized Approach impractical and unfeasible. Thus,
at this juncture, this framework prescribes Simplified Standardized Approach (SSA) to measure
credit risk while Basic Indicator Approach and an indigenous Net Open Position Approach for
measurement of Operational Risk and Market Risk respectively.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

All financial institutions within the scope of this framework should adopt the prescribed approaches
by Mid July 2016 (Fiscal Year 2073/074).

PARALLEL RUN:

In order to ensure a smooth transition to new approaches prescribed by this framework, a parallel
run was arranged for all national level "B" Class financial institutions after Mid-July 2010 i.e. from
fiscal year 2067/68 along with the existing framework. The returns submitted by the financial
institutions during this period were minutely reviewed to identify any anomalies. The identified
shortcomings on the returns was advised to the financial institution's management so that they could
be rectified before moving onto full fledged implementation. Based on the findings of the parallel
run, amendments and modifications have been incorporated in the framework wherever deemed
necessary.

IMPLEMENTATION OF ADVANCED APPROACHES:

This framework prescribes the most simplest of the available approaches at the initial phase with a
vision to move onto more complex and risk sensitive approaches as the market gradually gains
maturity. However, financial institutions willing to adopt advanced approaches, even for internal
purposes, should obtain prior written approval from Nepal Rastra Bank on providing evidences that
they have the resource and the capability to adopt the proposed approaches.

A financial institution will not be allowed to choose to revert to a simpler approach once it has been
approved for a more advanced approach without supervisory approval. However, if the supervisor
determines that a financial institution using a more advanced approach no longer meets the
qualifying criteria for advanced approach, it may allow the financial institution to revert to a
simpler approach for some or all of its operations, until it meets the conditions specified by the
supervisor for returning to a more advanced approach.
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2.2

ELIGIBLE CAPITAL FUNDS
DEFINITION OF CAPITAL:

Qualifying capital consists of Tier 1 (core) capital and Tier 2 (supplementary) capital elements, net
of required deductions from capital. Thus, for the purpose of calculation of regulatory capital,
financial institutions are required to classify their capital into two parts as follows;

a

Core Capital (Tier 1)

The key element of capital on which the main emphasis should be placed is Tier 1 (core)
capital, which is comprised of equity capital and disclosed reserves. This key element of
capital is the basis on which most market judgments of capital adequacy are made; and has a
crucial bearing on profit margins and a financial institution's ability to compete.

The BCBS has therefore concluded that capital, for supervisory purposes, should be defined
in two tiers in a way, which will have the effect of requiring at least 50% of a financial
institution 's capital base to consist of a core element comprised of equity capital and
published reserves from post-tax retained earnings.

In order to rank as Tier 1, capital must be fully paid up, have no fixed servicing or dividend
costs attached to it and be freely available to absorb losses ahead of general creditors. Capital
also needs to have a very high degree of permanence if it is to be treated as Tier 1.

Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

Supplementary (Tier 2) Capital includes reserves which, though unpublished, have been
passed through the profit and loss account and all other capital instruments eligible and
acceptable for capital purposes. Elements of the Tier 2 capital will be reckoned as capital
funds up to a maximum of 100 percent of Tier 1 capital arrived at, after making adjustments
referred to in 2.4. In a case, where Tier 1 capital of a financial institution is negative, the Tier
2 capital for regulatory purposes shall be considered as zero and hence the capital fund, in
such cases, shall be equal to the core capital.

ELEMENTS OF TIER 1 CAPITAL:

@ ~o ao

Paid up Equity Capital.

Irredeemable non-cumulative preference shares which are fully paid-up and with the capacity
to absorb unexpected losses. These instruments should not contain any clauses whatsoever,
which permit redemption by the holder or issuer upon fulfillment of certain condition.
Financial institution should obtain prior approval of NRB for this kind of instruments to
qualify as a component of core capital.

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Share

Statutory General Reserve.

Retained Earnings available for distribution to shareholders.

Un-audited current year cumulative profit, after all provisions including staff bonus and taxes
as well as regulatory adjustments. Where such provisions and regulatory adjustments are
not made, this amount shall not qualify as Tier 1 capital.Capital Redemption Reserves
created in lieu of redeemable instruments.

Capital Adjustment reserves created in respect of increasing the capital base of the financial
institution .

Dividend Equalization Reserves.

Any other type of reserves notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Tier 1 capital

AT T FFAIE “F G T T FIE FAGTITII FLEATE TR TRTP THIpe 3977 - 7066 R



23 ELEMENTSOF TIER 2 CAPITAL:
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Cumulative and/or redeemable preference shares with maturity of five years and above.

Subordinated term debt fully paid up with a maturity of more than 5 years; unsecured and
subordinated to the claim of other creditors, free of restrictive clauses and not redeemable
before maturity. Since, subordinated term debt is not normally available to participate in the
losses; the amount eligible for inclusion in the capital adequacy calculations is limited to 50%
of core capital. Moreover, to reflect the diminishing value of these instruments as a
continuing source of strength, a cumulative discount (amortization) factor of 20% per annum
shall be applied for capital adequacy computations, during the last 5 years to maturity.

Hybrid capital instruments. Those instruments which combine certain characteristics of debt
and certain characteristics of equity. Each such instrument has a particular feature, which can
be considered to affect its quality as capital. Where these instruments have close similarities
to equity, in particular when they are able to support losses on an ongoing basis without
triggering liquidation, they may be included in Tier 2 capital with approval from Nepal
Rastra Bank.

General loan loss provision limited to a maximum of 1.25% of total Risk Weighted
Exposures. General loan loss provision refers to the provisions created in respect of
Performing Loans only and it does not include provisions of rescheduled/restructured and
classified loans. The additional loan loss provisions created in respect of Personal Guarantee
loans, third party collateral loan and loans in excess of Single Obligor Limits are specific
provisions and hence cannot be included under this category. Such provisions however can
be deducted from the gross exposures while calculating risk weighted exposures for credit
risk.

However, provisions created in excess of the regulatory requirements or provisions not
attributable to identifiable losses in any specific loans shall be allowed to be included in the
General Loan Loss Provision and shall be eligible for Tier Il capital subject to a maximum of
1.25% of total risk weighted exposures.

Exchange equalization reserves created by financial institutions as a cushion for unexpected
losses arising out of adverse movements in foreign currencies.

Investment adjustment reserves to the extent created out of retained earning i.e. appropriation
of profit.Any other type of reserves notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Tier 2
capital

DEDUCTIONS FROM CORE (TIER 1) CAPITAL:

Financial institution s shall be required to deduct the following from the Tier 1 capital for capital
adequacy purposes. The claims that have been deducted from core capital shall be exempt from risk
weights for the measurement of credit risk.

a.
b.
C.

Book value of goodwill.
Deferred Tax Assets

Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent not written off. e.g. VRS expense, preliminary
expense, share issue expense, deferred revenue expenditure, etc. However, software
expenditure or software development expenditure, research and development expenditure,
patents, copyrights, trademarks and lease hold developments booked as deferred revenue
expenditure are subject to 100% risk weight and may not be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

Investment in equity of financial institutions licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank*.

14

Investment in shares of Rural Development Banks and other institutions, where the waiver has been explicitly provided by
NRB are subject to risk weight of 100% and shall not be deducted from Tier 1 capital.
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2.5

2.6

3.2

e.  All Investments in equity of institutions with financial interest.
Investments in equity of institutions in excess of the prescribed limits.

g. Investments arising out of underwriting commitments that have not been disposed within a
year from the date of commitment.

h.  Reciprocal crossholdings of financial institution capital artificially designed to inflate the
capital position of the financial institution .

I Any other items as stipulated by Nepal Rastra Bank, from time to time.
J- Negative balance of Reserve Accounts

Negative balances of any reserve such as which is recognized directly or through other
comprehensive income on equity such as revaluation reserve, fair value reserve, actuarial loss
etc. shall be deducted from Core (Common Equity Tier 1) Capital. However, the
corresponding assets shall not be exempted from risk weights for the measurement of credit
risk as the loss recognized in equity has already been adjusted in carrying amount of related
assets. Since, full amount of assets has not been deducted from Core Capital, risk weights on
carrying amount of assets shall be applied to measure credit risk.

CAPITAL FUNDS:

The capital fund is the summation of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. The sum total of the different
components of the tier 2 capitals will be limited to the sum total of the various components of the
Tier 1 capital net of deductions as specified in 2.4. In case the Tier 1 capital is negative, Tier 2
capital shall be considered to be "Nil" for regulatory capital adequacy purposes and hence, in such a
situation, the capital fund shall be equal to Tier 1 capital.

MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS:

Unless a higher minimum ratio has been set by Nepal Rastra Bank for an individual financial
institution through a review process, every financial institution shall maintain at all times, the
capital requirement set out below:

a.  ATier 1 (core) capital of not less than 6 percent of total risk weighted exposure;
b.  Atotal capital fund of not less than 10 percent of its total risk weighted exposure.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) is calculated by dividing eligible regulatory capital by total
Risk Weighted Exposure (RWE). The total risk weighted exposure shall comprise of risk weights
calculated in respect of financial institution 's credit, operational and market risks. Methodologies to
calculate RWE for each of these risk categories are described in detail in subsequent chapters.

CREDIT RISK

GENERAL.:
Credit risk is the major risk that financial institution s are exposed to during the normal course of
lending and credit underwriting. Within Basel Il, there are two approaches for credit risk

measurement: the standardized approach and the internal ratings based (IRB) approach. Due to
various inherent constraints of the Nepalese banking system, the standardized approach in its
simplified form, Simplified Standardized Approach (SSA), is prescribed in the initial phase.

SIMPLIFIED STANDARDIZED APPROACH (SSA):

In comparison to Basel 1, SSA aligns regulatory capital requirements more closely with the key
elements of banking risk by introducing a wider differentiation of risk weights and a wider
recognition of credit risk mitigation techniques. The advantage of implementing this approach is
twofold. This approach allows transitional advantage for countries like us by avoiding excessive
complexities associated with the advanced approaches of Basel Il while at the same time it will
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produce capital ratios more in line with the actual economic risks that financial institutions are
facing, compared to the present Accord.

Under this approach financial institutions are required to assign a risk weight to their balance sheet
and off-balance sheet exposures. These risk weights are based on a fixed weight that is broadly
aligned with the likelihood of a counterparty default. As a general rule, the claims that have already
been deducted from the core capital shall be exempt from risk weights for the measurement of
credit risk.

Claims on foreign government, their central banks as well as foreign corporates shall be generally
risk-weighed on the basis of the consensus country risk scores of export credit agencies (ECA)™.
Wherever there are claims relating to unrated countries, they shall generally be risk weighed at 100
percent. However, these claim shall be subject to supervisory review and higher risk weight shall be
assigned where the review process deems appropriate.

All kinds of claims including loans & advances as well as investments shall be risk weighed net of
specific provisions and valuation adjustments which are, directly or through other
comprehensive income, recognized on equity. Generally provision related to any receivable or
investment is not defined as general or specific. In such situation, the total provision against any
claim/exposure (other than the loans and advances) shall be considered as specific provision.
However, provisions eligible for the supplementary capital shall not be allowed for netting while
calculating risk weighted exposures.

In case of loans, advances and bills purchased, the provisions created in lieu of Performing loans
only are classified as General loan loss provision. All other provisions are components of specific
loan loss provision. Hence, general loan loss provision doesn’t comprise provisions created in
respect of rescheduled/restructured and non performing loans. It also doesn’t include additional
provisions created for personal guarantee loans or lending in excess of Single Obligor Limits.
However, provisions created in excess of the regulatory requirements and not attributable to
identifiable losses in any specific loans shall be allowed to be included in the General Loan Loss
Provision.

In order to be consistent with the Basel-11 framework, the credit risk for the regulatory
capital purpose shall be computed by segregating the exposure in the following 11 categories.

a) Claims on government & central bank
b) Claims on other official entities

c) Claims on banks

d) Claims on corporate & securities firms
e) Claims on regulatory retail portfolio

f) Claims secured by residential properties
g) Claims secured by commercial real state
h) Past due claims

i) High risk claims

j) Other assets

k) Off balance sheet items

3.3 RISK MEASUREMENT AND RISK WEIGHTS:

a. Claims on government & central bank

15 The consensus country risk classification is available on the OECD’s website (http://www.oecd.org) in the Export Credit
Arrangement web page of the Trade Directorate. Each bank while computing the risk weight in any claim should use the
updated risk score.
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1. All claims on Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank shall be risk weighed at 0 %.

2. Claims on foreign government and their central banks shall be risk-weighted on the basis
of the consensus country risk scores as follows:

ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3 4t06 7

Risk weights 0% 20% 50% 100% 150%

b. Claims on other official entities

1.  Claims on the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the
European Central Bank and the European Community will receive a 0% risk weight.

2. Following Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs) will be eligible for a 0% risk
weight.

e World Bank Group, comprised of the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (IBRD) and the International Finance Corporation (IFC),
Asian Development Bank (ADB),
African Development Bank (AfDB),
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD),
Inter-American Development Bank (IADB),
European Investment Bank (EIB),
European Investment Fund (EIF),
Nordic Investment Bank (NIB),
Caribbean Development Bank (CDB),
Islamic Development Bank (IDB), and
e Council of Europe Development Bank (CEDB).
3. The standard risk weight for claims on other Multilateral Development Banks will be

100%.
4.  Claims on public sector entities (PSEs)™ will be risk-weighed as per the ECA country
risk scores.
ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3t06 7
Risk weights 20% 50% 100% 150%

C. Claims on banks

1. All claims, irrespective of currency, excluding investment in equity shares and other
instruments eligible for capital funds, on domestic banks/financial institutions that
fulfill Capital Adequacy Requirements will be risk weighed at 20% while for the rest, it
will be 100%.

Banks should make use of the publicly available information of the immediately
preceding quarter of the respective banks to gauge their status on capital adequacy.

2. Claims on a foreign bank excluding investment in equity shares and other instruments
eligible for capital funds shall be risk weighed as per the ECA Country risk score
subject to the floor of 20%. The primary basis for applying the ECA Country Risk
score shall be the country of incorporation of the bank. Where the bank is a branch
office, the ECA score of the country where the corporate office is located shall be used

8 public sector entity (PSE) is one, which is owned or controlled by government or any other entity categorized as PSE by

NRB.
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while in the case of a subsidiary the basis shall be the country where the subsidiary is
incorporated.

ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3to6 7

Risk weights 20% 50% 100% 150%

However, the claims on foreign banks incorporated in the SAARC region and China
which operate with a buffer of 1% above their respective regulatory minimum capital
requirements may be risk weighed at 20%. The banks shall be responsible to submit
the latest capital adequacy position of such banks and demonstrate that they fulfill the
eligibility requirements. Such capital adequacy position submitted by the banks should
not be prior to more than one financial year. Moreover, such claims shall be subject to a
supervisory review and supervisors may require the bank to risk weigh the claims on
ECA country risk scores where the review process deems necessary.

d.  Claims on corporate & securities firms
1. Domestic corporate includes all firms and companies incorporated in Nepal as per
prevailing Acts and regulations. The claims on domestic corporate, including claims on
insurance companies and securities firm shall be risk weighed as per the credit rating score
provided by licensed credit rating agency subject to the floor of 80% as follows:
Credit rating 'tA‘A+ 't°‘+ -,
score AAA 10 0 Unrated
equivalent to AA A below
Risk weights 0 0 0 0
g 80% | 85% 90% 100% 100%
2. The claims on foreign corporate shall be risk weighed as per the ECA Country risk
score subject to the floor of 20% as follows:
ECA risk scores 0-1 2 3t06 7
Risk weights 20% 50% 100% 150%
e.  Claims on regulatory retail portfolio

1.

Claims®’ that qualify all criteria listed below may be considered as regulatory retail
portfolio and risk weighed at 75%, except for past due loans. Such claims however,
have to be in strict compliance with the product papers developed by the bank and
approved by their respective board of directors

Criteria:

¢ COrientation criteria :- exposure is to an individual person or persons or to a small
business. Bank should obtain written declaration from the borrower to the effect
that their indebtedness is within the threshold across all banks and Fls.

e Product criteria :- The exposure takes the form of any of the following:
— Revolving credits and lines of credit, (including overdraft, hypothecation etc.)
— Term loans and leases (e.g. hire purchase, auto loans and leases, student and
educational loans'®) and,

17

Lending against securities (such as equities and bonds) whether listed or not, are specifically excluded from this category.

Likewise credit card receivables are excluded from this category. However, lending against personal guarantee and fully
backed by guaranteed cash flow such as pension etc. that has negligible risk of failure can be included in this category.

18
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— Small business facilities and commitments,
— Deprived sector loans upto a threshold of Rs.10 million (Ten Million only)

e Granularity criteria:- NRB must be satisfied that the regulatory retail portfolio is
sufficiently diversified to a degree that reduces the risks in the portfolio, warranting
the 75% risk weight. No aggregate exposure®® to one counterpart can exceed 0.5 %
of the overall regulatory retail portfolio.

e Low value individual criteria :- The total aggregated exposure to one counterparty®
cannot exceed an absolute threshold of Rs.10 million (Nepalese Rupees Ten
Million only)

2. Banks which have claims that fulfill all criteria except for granularity may risk weigh
those claims at 100%

f. Claims secured by residential properties

1.  Lending to individuals meant for acquiring or developing residential property which
are fully secured by mortgages on residential property, that are or will be occupied by
the borrower or that is rented, will be risk-weighed at 60%. However, banks should
ensure the existence of adequate margin of security over the amount of loan based on
strict valuation rules.

Banks have to develop product paper and get it approved from the board of directors to
regulate this kind of lending. The claims in order to be eligible for this category have to
be in strict compliance with this product paper

2. Where the loan is not fully secured, such claims have to risk weighed at 150%

3. When claims secured by residential properties are or have been past due® at any point
of time during the last two years, they shall be risk-weighed at 100%o, net of specific
provisions.

g.  Claims secured by commercial real estate

1.  Claims secured by mortgages on commercial real estate, except past due, shall be risk-
weighed at 100%. Commercial real estate hereby refers to mortgage of Office
buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction etc.

h. Past due claims

1.  Any loan, except for a claim secured by residential property, which is or has been past
due at any point of time during the last two years, will be risk-weighed at 150% net of
specific provision.

i. High risk claims

1. 150% risk weight shall be applied for venture capital and private equity investments.

2. Exposures on Personal loan in excess of the threshold of regulatory retail portfolio
and exposures on credit card shall warrant a risk weight of 150%.

19 Aggregated exposure means gross amount (i.e. not taking any credit risk mitigation into account) of all forms of credit

exposures availed from the bank .

Counterparty refers to one or a group of borrowers defined by the NRB directives as a single obligor.

An exposure is past due if it falls into any other category other than Pass loan as per provisions of NRB directive on Loan
classification.

20
21
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3. Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are not
listed in the stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be
risk weighed at 150% net of provisions and valuation adjustments which are,
directly or through other comprehensive income, recognized on equity.

4.  Claims which are not fully secured or are only backed up by personal guarantee shall
attract 150% risk weight.

5. Where a loan cannot be segregated/or identified as regulatory retail portfolio or
qualifying residential mortgage loan or under other categories, it shall be risk weighed
at 150%.

J. Other assets
1. With regard to other assets, following provisions have been made;
h. Interest receivable/claim on government securities will be risk-weighed at 0%.

i. Staff loan given as per Employee By-laws and secured by residential property, that is
or will be occupied by the staff or that is rented, will be risk-weighed at 50%. However,
banks should ensure the existence of adequate margin of security over the amount of
loan based on strict valuation rules.

j. Investments in equity or regulatory capital instruments issued by securities firms will
be risk-weighed at 100% net of valuation adjustments which are, directly or through
other comprehensive income, recognized on equity.

k. Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of collection will be risk-weighed at
20%. For this purpose, cash items shall include Cheque and Draft.

I. Fictitious assets that have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital shall be risk weighed
at 100%.

m. Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are
listed in the stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall
be risk weighed at 100% net of provisions and valuation adjustments which are,
directly or through other comprehensive income, recognized on equity.
Investments in mutual fund shall also be risk weighted at 100% net of valuation
adjustments as described above.

n. All Other assets will be risk-weighed at 100% net of specific provision and valuation
adjustments which are, directly or through other comprehensive income, recognized on
equity.

h. Lending against securities (bonds and shares) shall attract risk weight of 100 % .

k. Off balance sheet items

1.  Off-balance sheet items under the simplified standardized approach will be converted
into equivalent risk weight exposure using risk weight as follows:

Off Balance Sheet Exposure Risk
Weight
Any commitments those are unconditionally cancelable at any time by the bank | 0%
without prior notice, or that effectively provide for automatic cancellation due
to deterioration in a borrower’s creditworthiness (for example bills under

collection)
Forward exchange contracts. 10%
Short Term Trade-related contingencies 20%
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Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured
against an underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank
and are short term in nature. This includes documentary letters of credit,
shipping guarantees issued and any other trade-related contingencies with an
original maturity up to six months.

Undertaking to provide a commitment on an off-balance sheet items 20%
Unsettled™ securities and foreign exchange transactions between bank to bank | 20%
and between bank and customer
Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%
Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of
more than 1 year.

Performance-related contingencies 40%
Contingent liabilities, which involve an irrevocable obligation to pay a third
party in the event that counterparty fails to fulfill or perform a contractual non-
monetary obligation, such as delivery of goods by a specified date etc. This
includes issue of performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, indemnities,
underwriting commitments and standby letters of credit in relation to a non-
monetary obligation of counterparty under a particular transaction.

Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%
Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of more
than 1 year. This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving
working capital loans e.g. overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc.
except for trade finance exposures.

Short term irrevocable Credit Commitments 20%
Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of upto
1 year. This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working
capital loans e.g. overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for
trade finance exposures.

Repurchase agreements, securities lending, securities borrowing, reverse | 100%
repurchase agreements and equivalent transactions

This includes sale and repurchase agreements and asset sales with recourse,
where the credit risk remains with the purchasing bank.

Direct credit substitutes 100%
Any irrevocable off-balance sheet obligations which carry the same credit risk
as a direct extension of credit, such as an undertaking to make a payment to a
third party in the event that a counterparty fails to meet a financial obligation or
an undertaking to a counterparty to acquire a potential claim on another party in
the event of default by that party, constitutes a direct credit substitute. This
includes potential credit exposures arising from the issue of financial guarantees
and credit derivatives, confirmation of letters of credit (acceptances and
endorsements), issue of standby letters of credit serving as financial guarantees
for loans, securities and any other financial liabilities, and bills endorsed under
bill endorsement lines (but which are not accepted by, or have the prior
endorsement of, another bank).

Unpaid portion of partly paid shares and securities 100%

Other Contingent Liabilities 100%

22 An unsettled transaction is one where delivery of the instrument is due to take place against receipt of cash, but which

remain unsettled five business days after the due settlement date.

o)
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3.4

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (CRM):

Banks may use a number of techniques to mitigate the risks to which they are exposed. The prime
objective of this provision is to encourage the banks to manage credit risk in a prudent and effective
manner. As such, credit risks exposures may be collateralized®® in whole or in part with cash or
securities, or a loan exposure may be guaranteed by a third party. Where these various techniques
meet the minimum conditions mentioned below, banks which take eligible financial collateral are
allowed to reduce their credit exposure to counterparty when calculating their capital requirements
to take account of the risk mitigating effect of the collateral. However, credit risk mitigation is
allowed only on an account by account basis, even within regulatory retail portfolio.

As a general rule, no secured claim should receive a higher capital requirement than an otherwise
identical claim on which there is no collateral. Similarly, the effects of the CRM shall not be double
counted and capital requirement will be applied to banks on either side of the collateralized
transaction: for example, both repos and reverse repos will be subject to capital requirements.

Those portions of claims collateralized by the market value of recognized collateral receive the risk
weight applicable to the collateral instrument. The remainder of the claim should be assigned the
risk weight appropriate to the counter party.

Where the same security has been pledged for both the funded and non funded facilities, banks
should clearly demarcate the value of security held for funded and non funded facility. In cases
where the bank has obtained same security for various forms of facilities; banks are eligible to
claim the CRM benefit across all such exposures up to the eligible value of CRM.

a. Minimum conditions for eligibility:

In order to obtain capital relief towards credit risk mitigation, there are certain basic condition
that needs to be fulfilled. Supervisors will monitor the extent to which banks satisfy these
conditions, both at the outset of a collateralized transaction and on an on-going basis.

1.  Legal certainty:- Collateral is effective only if the legal mechanism by which collateral
is given is robust and ensures that the lender has clear rights over the collateral to
liquidate or retain it in the event of default. Thus, banks must take all necessary steps to
fulfill local contractual requirements in respect of the enforceability of security interest.
The collateral arrangements must be properly documented, with a clear and robust
procedure for the timely liquidation of collateral. A bank's procedures should ensure
that any legal conditions required for declaring the default of the customer and
liquidating the collateral are observed. Where the collateral is held by a custodian, the
bank must seek to ensure that the custodian ensures adequate segregation of the
collateral instruments and the custodian's own assets. Besides that, banks must obtain
legal opinions confirming the enforceability of the collateral arrangements in all
relevant jurisdictions.

2. Low correlation with exposure:- In order for collateral to provide protection, the credit
quality of the obligor and the value of the collateral must not have a material positive
correlation. For example, securities issued by the collateral provider - or by any related
group entity - would provide little protection and thus would be ineligible.

3. Maturity Mismatch:- The maturity of the underlying exposure and the maturity of the
hedge should both be defined conservatively. The effective maturity of the underlying
collateral should be gauged as the longest possible remaining time before the obligor is

23

A collateralized transaction is one in which: a) banks have a credit exposure or potential credit exposure; and b) that credit
exposures or potential credit exposure is hedged in whole or in part by collateral posted by the counter party or by a third
party on behalf of the counter party.
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scheduled to fulfill its obligation. The collateral must be pledged for at least the life of
the exposure. In case of mismatches in the maturity of the underlying exposure and the
collateral, it shall not be eligible for CRM benefits.

Currency Mismatch:- Ideally the currency of the underlying exposure and the collateral
should be the same. Where the credit exposure is denominated in a currency that differs
from that in which the underlying exposure is denominated, there is a currency
mismatch. Mismatches shall be subject to supervisory haircut of 10%.

Risk Management:- While CRM reduces credit risk, it simultaneously may increase
other risks to which a bank is exposed, such as legal, operational, liquidity and market
risks. Therefore, it is imperative that banks employ robust procedures and processes to
control these risks, including strategy; consideration of the underlying credit; valuation;
policies and procedures; systems; control of roll-off risks; and management of
concentration risk arising from the bank’s use of CRM techniques and its effect with the
bank's overall credit profile. In case where these requirements are not fulfilled, NRB
may not recognize the benefit of CRM techniques.

Qualifying criteria for guarantee:- A guarantee (counter guarantee) to be eligible must
represent a direct claim on the protection provider and must be explicitly referenced to
specific exposures or a pool of exposures, so that the extent of the cover is clearly
defined and irrefutable. Other than non-payment by a protection purchaser of money
due in respect of the credit protection contract it must be irrevocable in that there must
be no clause in the contract that would increase the effective cost of cover as a result of
deteriorating credit quality in the hedged exposure. It must also be unconditional in that
there should be no clause in the protection contract outside the control of the bank that
could prevent the protection provider from being obliged to pay out in a timely manner
in the event that the original counter party fails to make the payments due.

On the qualifying default or non-payment of the counter party, the bank may in a
timely manner pursue the guarantor for any monies outstanding under the
documentation governing the transaction. The guarantor may make one lump sum
payment of all monies under such documentation to the bank, or the guarantor may
assume the future payment obligations of the counter party covered by the guarantee.
The bank must have the right to receive any such payments from the guarantor without
first having to take legal actions in order to pursue the counter party payment.

b. Eligible Collaterals:

1.

o gk~ w

Cash deposit (as well as certificates of deposit or fixed deposits or other deposits) with
the bank. The bank may only claim these as CRM if it has specific authority to recover
the amount from this source in case of default.

Fixed Deposit Receipts/Certificates of deposits/other deposits of other Banks and Fls,
who fulfill the capital adequacy requirements, subject to a 20% supervisory haircut.

Gold.
Securities issued by the Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank.
Guarantee of the Government of Nepal

Financial guarantee/counter guarantee of domestic banks and FIs who meet the
minimum capital adequacy requirements subject to a haircut of 20%.

Securities/Financial guarantee/Counter guarantee issued by sovereigns.
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4.2

8.  Securities/Financial guarantee/Counter guarantee issued by MDBs in the list specified
in3.3b(3&4)

9.  Securities/Financial guarantee/Counter guarantee issued by banks with ECA rating 2 or
better. The supervisory haircut shall be 20% and 50% for the banks with ECA rating of
0-1 and 2 respectively.

C. Methodology for using CRM

Step 1: Identify the accounts eligible for capital relief under credit risk mitigation.

Step 2: Assess the value of the exposure and the eligible collateral. The value of the eligible
collateral is the lower of the face value of the instrument or the outstanding amount
of exposure

Step 3: Adjust the value of the eligible collateral in respect of the supervisory haircut in
terms of currency mismatch and other eligibility requirements.

Step 4: Compare the adjusted value of the collateral with the outstanding exposure.

Step 5: The value of the eligible CRM is the lower of the adjusted value of the collateral and
the outstanding exposure.

Step 6: Plot the eligible CRM in the appropriate category of credit risk.

The sum total of net amount of eligible CRM as per “Form No.4 Exhibit of claims with
eligible credit risk mitigants” shall be consistent with the “Form No.3 Eligible Credit Risk
Mitigants” prescribed in this framework.

OPERATIONAL RISK
GENERAL:

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people, and
systems, or from external events. Operational risk itself is not a new concept, and well run banks
have been addressing it in their internal controls and corporate governance structures. Basel Il
requires banks to hold capital against the risk of unexpected loss that could arise from the failure of
operational systems.

The most important types of operational risk involve breakdowns in internal controls and corporate
governance. Such breakdowns can lead to financial losses through error, fraud, or failure to perform
in a timely manner or cause the interests of the bank to be compromised in some other way, for
example, by its dealers, lending officers or other staff exceeding their authority or conducting
business in an unethical or risky manner. Other aspects of operational risk include major failure of
information technology systems or events such as major fires or other disasters.

BASIC INDICATOR APPROACH:

Under the basic indicator approach, banks must hold capital for operational risk equal to the
average over the previous three years of a fixed percentage (denoted alpha) of positive annual gross
income.

The capital charge for operational risk may be expressed as follows:
KBIA = [Z(Glln X :(l:)]/N
where:

Kgia = capital charge under the Basic Indicator Approach

Gl = annual gross income, where positive, over the previous three years
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N = number of the previous three years for which gross income is positive
o = 15 percent.

NRB shall review the capital requirement produced by this approach for general credibility,
especially in relation to a bank's peers and in the event that credibility is lacking, appropriate
supervisory action under Review Process shall be considered.

Figures for the year, in which annual gross income is negative or zero, should be excluded from
both the numerator and denominator while calculating the average. In case where the gross income
for all of the last three years is negative, 5% of total credit and investments net of specific
provisions shall be considered as the capital charge for operational risk. For this purpose
investments shall comprise of money at call, placements, investment in government securities and
other investments irrespective of currency.

Similarly, in case of new banks who have not completed an year of operation and hence whose
average gross income cannot be measured reliably, they shall also be required to compute their
capital charge for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative
gross income. These banks may use the gross income approach from second year onwards. But,
based on the reasonableness of the so computed capital charge for Operation Risk, during the first
three years of operation, review process may require additional proportion of capital charge if
deemed necessary.

GROSS INCOME:

Gross income is defined as "net Interest Income™ plus "non interest income". It is intended that this
measure should:

a. be gross of any provisions (e.g. for unpaid interest) and write-offs made during the year;

b.  be gross of operating expenses, exclude reversal during the year in respect of provisions and
write-offs made during the previous year(s);

c.  exclude income/gain recognized from the disposal of items of movable and immovable
property;

d.  exclude realized profits/losses from the sale of securities in the “held to maturity” category;,

e.  exclude other extraordinary or irregular items of income and expenditure

Thus, for the purpose of capital adequacy requirements, gross income shall be summation of:

a.  Total operating income as disclosed in Profit and Loss account prepared as per NRB directive
no.4. The total operating income comprises of:

1. Net Interest Income
2. Commission and Discount Income
3. Other Operating Income
4. Exchange Fluctuation Income
b.  Addition/deduction in the Interest Suspense during the period.

Banks shall use the annual audited financials of the last three years for the computation of gross
income under this approach. Hence, the capital requirement for operational risk for a whole
financial year shall remain constant. Until the accounts are finalized for the financial year, banks
shall use the provisional figures for the period, which should be validated by the internal auditor of
the bank.

Y
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Operational risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the operational risk capital charge
by 10 (i.e., the reciprocal of the minimum capital ratio of 10%) and adding together with the risk
weighted exposures for credit risk.

MARKET RISK
DEFINITION OF MARKET RISK:

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions
arising from adverse movements in market prices. The major constituents of market risks are:

a.  The risks pertaining to interest rate related instruments;
b.  Foreign exchange risk (including gold positions) throughout the bank; and

c.  The risks pertaining to investment in equities and commodities.

SEGREGATION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO:

Banks shall recognize measure, present and disclose the investment instruments as per the
requirement of NFRSs.

NET OPEN POSITION APPROACH:

Out of the various components of market risk, foreign exchange risk is perceived as the
predominant at this time. The effects of other forms of market risk are minimal. Thus, a net open
position approach has been devised to measure the capital requirement for market risk. As
evidenced by its name, this approach only addresses the risk of loss arising out of adverse
movements in exchange rates. This approach will be consolidated over time to incorporate other
forms of market risks as they start to gain prominence.

The designated Net Open Position approach requires banks to allocate a fixed proportion of capital
in terms of its net open position. The banks should allocate 5 percentage of their net open positions
as capital charge for market risk.

NET OPEN POSITION:

Net open position is the difference between the assets and the liability in a currency. In other words,
it is the uncovered volume of asset or liability which is exposed to the changes in the exchange
rates of currencies. For capital adequacy requirements the net open position includes both net spot
positions as well as net forward positions.

For capital adequacy purposes, banks should calculate their net open position in the following
manner:

a.  Calculate the net open position in each of the foreign currencies.
b.  Convert the net open positions in each currency to NPR as per prevalent exchange rates.

c.  Aggregate the converted net open positions of all currencies, without paying attention to long
or short positions.

d.  This aggregate shall be the net open position of the bank.
COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Risk-weighted assets in respect of market risk are determined by multiplying the capital charges by
10 (i.e., the reciprocal of the minimum capital ratio of 10%) and adding together with the risk
weighted exposures for credit risk.
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6.2

REVIEW PROCESS
GENERAL:

The supervisory review process of the framework is intended not only to ensure that banks have
adequate capital to support all the risks in their business, but also to encourage banks to develop
and use better risk management techniques in monitoring and managing their risks. It is the
responsibility of the bank management in developing an internal capital assessment process and
setting capital targets that are commensurate with the bank’s risk profile and control environment
beyond the core minimum requirements.

Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes the significance of the relationship between the amount of capital
held by the bank against its risks and the strength and effectiveness of the bank’s risk management
and internal control processes. However, increased capital should not be viewed as the only option
for addressing increased risks confronting the bank. Other means for addressing risk, such as
strengthening risk management, applying internal limits, strengthening the level of provisions and
reserves, and improving internal controls, must also be considered. Furthermore, capital should not
be regarded as a substitute for addressing fundamentally inadequate control or risk management
processes.

There are three main areas that is particularly suited to treatment under this process: risks
considered under minimum capital requirements which are not fully captured it (e.g. credit
concentration risk); those factors not taken into account by the minimum capital requirements (e.g.
business and strategic risk); and factors external to the bank (e.g. business cycle effects).

In order to achieve the objectives of the supervisory review process, this process has been broadly
divided into three parts:

a. Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

b.  Supervisory Review

C. Supervisory Response

INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS:

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which
requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews
at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk
profile of the bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key
components of an effective ICAAP are discussed below.

a. Board and senior management oversight

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by
the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring
that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with
the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation
for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks.
The board should also ensure that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various
risks; develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a method
for monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills
strong internal controls and thereby an effective control environment through adoption of
written policies and procedures and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively
communicated throughout the bank.
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The analysis of a bank’s current and future capital requirements in relation to its strategic
objectives is a vital element of the strategic planning process. The strategic plan should
clearly outline the bank’s capital needs, anticipated capital expenditures, desirable capital
level, and external capital sources. Senior management and the board should view capital
planning as a crucial element in being able to achieve its desired strategic objectives.

b. Sound capital assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be
able to make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum, have the following:

e Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports
all material risks;

e A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

e A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

e A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

C. Comprehensive assessment of risks

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process.
Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, bank
should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a
comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following
forms of risk.

1.  Credit risk: Banks should have methodologies that enable them to assess the credit
risk involved in exposures to individual borrowers or counterparties as well as at the
portfolio level. The credit review assessment of capital adequacy, at a minimum,
should cover risk rating systems, portfolio analysis/aggregation, large exposures and
risk concentrations.

Internal risk ratings are an important tool in monitoring credit risk. Internal risk ratings
should be adequate to support the identification and measurement of risk from all credit
exposures, and should be integrated into an institution’s overall analysis of credit risk
and capital adequacy. The ratings system should provide detailed ratings for all assets,
not only for problem assets.

2. Credit concentration risk: Risk concentrations are arguably the single most important
cause of major problems in banks. A risk concentration is any single exposure or group
of exposures with the potential to produce losses large enough (relative to a bank’s
capital, total assets, or overall risk level) to threaten a bank’s health or ability to
maintain its core operations.

Lending being the primary activity of most banks, credit risk concentrations are often
the most material risk concentrations within a bank. However, risk concentrations can
arise in a bank’s assets, liabilities, or off-balance sheet items, through the execution or
processing of transactions (either product or service), or through a combination of
exposures across these broad categories. Credit risk concentrations are based on
common or correlated risk factors, which, in times of stress, have an adverse effect on
the creditworthiness of each of the individual counterparties making up the
concentration.

(L)
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Such credit concentrations are not addressed in the minimum capital requirements for
credit risk. Thus, banks should have in place effective internal policies, systems and
controls to identify, measure, monitor, and control their credit risk concentrations.
Banks should explicitly consider the extent of their credit risk concentrations in their
assessment of capital adequacy under review process. These policies should cover the
different forms of credit risk concentrations to which a bank may be exposed to. Such
concentrations include but are not limited to:

e Significant exposures to an individual counterparty or group of related
counterparty. Banks might also establish an aggregate limit for the management
and control of all of its large exposures as a group;

e Credit exposures to counterparties in the same economic sector or geographic
region;

e Credit exposures to counterparties whose financial performance is dependent on the
same activity or commodity; and

e Indirect credit exposures arising from a bank’s CRM activities (e.g. exposure to a
similar type of collateral or credit protection provided by a single counterparty or
same collateral in cases of multiple banking).

A bank’s framework for managing credit risk concentrations should be clearly
documented and should include a definition of the credit risk concentrations relevant to
the bank and how these concentrations and their corresponding limits are calculated.
Limits should be defined in relation to a bank’s capital, total assets or, where adequate
measures exist, its overall risk level. A bank’s management should conduct periodic
stress tests of its major credit risk concentrations and review the results of those tests to
identify and respond to potential changes in market conditions that could adversely
impact the bank’s performance.

3. Operational risk: The failure to properly manage operational risk can result in a
misstatement of an institution’s risk/return profile and expose the institution to
significant losses. Gross income, used in the Basic Indicator Approach is only a proxy
for the scale of operational risk exposure of a bank and can in some cases
underestimate the need for capital. Thus, banks should develop a framework for
managing operational risk and evaluate the adequacy of capital as prescribed by this
framework. The framework should cover the bank’s appetite and tolerance for
operational risk, as specified through the policies for managing this risk, including the
extent and manner in which operational risk is transferred outside the bank. It should
also include policies outlining the bank’s approach to identifying, assessing, monitoring
and controlling/mitigating the risk.

4.  Market risk: The prescribed approach for the computation of capital charge for market
risk is very simple and thus may not be directly aligned with the magnitude of risk.
Likewise, the approach only incorporates risks arising out of adverse movements in
exchange rates while ignoring other forms of risks like interest rate risk and equity
risks. Thus, banks should develop a framework that addresses these various forms of
risk and at the same time perform stress tests to evaluate the adequacy of capital.

The use of internal models by the bank for the measurement of market risk is highly
encouraged. Wherever banks make use of internal models for computation of capital
charge for market risks, the bank management should ensure the adequacy and
completeness of the system regardless of the type and level of complexity of the
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measurement system as the quality and reliability of the measurement system is largely
dependent on the quality of the data and various assumptions used in the model.

5. Liquidity risk: Liquidity is crucial to the ongoing viability of any financial institution.
Capital positions can have a telling effect on institution’s ability to obtain liquidity,
especially in a crisis. Each bank must have adequate systems for measuring, monitoring
and controlling liquidity risk. Banks should evaluate the adequacy of capital given their
own liquidity profile and the liquidity of the markets in which they operate. Banks are
also encouraged to make use of stress testing to determine their liquidity needs and the
adequacy of capital.

6.  Other risks: Although the ‘other’ risks, such as reputational and strategic risk, are not
easily measurable, banks are expected to take these into consideration as well while
deciding on the level of capital.

d. Monitoring and reporting

The bank should establish an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures
and assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The bank’s
senior management or board of directors should, on a regular basis, receive reports on the
bank’s risk profile and capital needs. These reports should allow senior management to:

e Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

e Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital
assessment measurement system;

o Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

e Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and make
necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

e. Internal control review

The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and,
where appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of
directors has a responsibility to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the
various risks, develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s capital level, and establishes a
method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify
whether its system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent
conduct of business.

The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process to ensure its
integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:

e Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and
complexity of its activities;

o Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;
e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;
o Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and

e Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.
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6.3

SUPERVISORY REVIEW:

Nepal Rastra Bank shall regularly review the process by which a bank assesses its capital adequacy,
risk positions, resulting capital levels, and quality of capital held by a bank. Supervisors shall also
evaluate the degree to which a bank has in place a sound internal process to assess capital
adequacy. The emphasis of the review should be on the quality of the bank’s risk management and
controls and should not result in supervisors functioning as bank management. The periodic review
can involve any or a combination of:

¢ On-site examinations or inspections;
o Off-site review;
¢ Discussions with bank management;

¢ Review of work done by external auditors (provided it is adequately focused on the necessary
capital issues); and

¢ Periodic reporting.

Some of the key areas which will be reviewed during the supervisory review process are discussed
hereunder

a. Review of adequacy of risk assessment

NRB shall assess the degree to which internal targets and processes incorporate the full range
of material risks faced by the bank. Supervisors shall also review the adequacy of risk
measures used in assessing internal capital adequacy and the extent to which these risk
measures are also used operationally in setting limits, evaluating business line performance,
and evaluating and controlling risks more generally. Supervisors shall consider the results of
sensitivity analyses and stress tests conducted by the institution and how these results relate
to capital plans.

b. Assessment of capital adequacy

NRB shall review the bank’s processes to determine that:

e Target levels of capital chosen are comprehensive and relevant to the current operating
environment;

e These levels are properly monitored and reviewed by senior management; and
e The composition of capital is appropriate for the nature and scale of the bank’s business.

NRB shall also consider the extent to which the bank has provided for unexpected events in
setting its capital levels. This analysis should cover a wide range of external conditions and
scenarios, and the sophistication of techniques and stress tests used should be commensurate
with the bank’s activities.

C. Assessment of the control environment

NRB shall consider the quality of the bank’s management information reporting and systems,
the manner in which business risks and activities are aggregated, and management’s record in
responding to emerging or changing risks. In all instances, the capital level at an individual
bank should be determined according to the bank’s risk profile and adequacy of its risk
management process and internal controls. External factors such as business cycle effects and
the macroeconomic environment should also be considered.

d. Supervisory review of compliance with minimum standards
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6.4

In order to obtain relief as per this framework banks are required to observe a number of
requirements, including risk management standards and disclosures. In particular, banks will
be required to disclose features of their internal methodologies used in calculating minimum
capital requirements. As part of the supervisory review process, supervisors must ensure that
these conditions are being met on an ongoing basis. Likewise, the supervisors must ensure
that qualifying criteria as specified in the framework are continuously being met as these
criteria are developed as benchmarks aligned with bank management's expectations for
effective risk management and capital allocation.

Significance of risk transfer

Securitization or credit sale agreements with recourse may be carried out for purposes other
than credit risk transfer (e.g. funding). Where this is the case, there might still be a limited
transfer of credit risk. However, for an originating bank to achieve reductions in capital
requirements, the risk transfer arising from a securitization or credit sale has to be deemed
sufficient by the NRB. If the risk transfer is considered to be insufficient or non existent,
NRB can require the application of a higher capital requirement or, alternatively, may deny a
bank from obtaining any capital relief from the securitization or transfer agreements.
Therefore, the capital relief that can be achieved will correspond to the amount of credit risk
that is effectively transferred.

Credit Risk Mitigants

In case when the eligibility requirements are not fulfilled, NRB will not consider Credit Risk
Mitigants in allocating capital. Similarly, CRM may give rise to residual risks, which may
render the overall risk reduction less effective. Where, these risks are not adequately
controlled by the bank, NRB may impose additional capital charges or take other appropriate
supervisory actions.

Operational risk and Market Risk

The framework prescribes simple approaches for allocating capital for operational and market
risk which may not be directly aligned with the volume and complexity of risk. Thus, the
supervisor shall consider whether the capital requirements generated by the prescribed
approaches give a consistent picture of the individual bank's risk exposure in comparison
with the peer group and the banking industry at large. Where NRB is convinced such is not
the case, appropriate supervisory response is warranted.

Market Discipline

The framework requires banks to disclose various key information about their business on a
periodic basis. It is imperative that the banks discharge their obligations under the disclosure
requirements in order to be eligible to claim benefits of CRM. In line with the utmost
significance of this requirement, the supervisor shall review the adequacy of the disclosures.
As a part of this process itself, the supervisor shall regularly review the website of the banks
and review the contents of the site. Wherever the review process identifies any shortcomings
or non-compliances, appropriate supervisory response shall be initiated.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSE:

Nepal Rastra Bank expects banks to operate above the minimum regulatory capital ratios. If, NRB
is not convinced about the risk management practices and the control environment, it has the
authority to require banks to hold capital in excess of the minimum.

Supervisory adjustments in risk weighted assets and capital
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Having carried out the review process as described above, supervisors should take
appropriate action if they are not satisfied with the results of the bank’s own risk assessment
and capital allocation. In such a scenario, NRB shall be empowered to undertake any or
combination of the following adjustments in the banks risk weighted assets and regulatory
capital computations.

1.

Shortfall in provisions made by the bank against adversely classified assets shall be
deducted from the Tier 1 capital.

The loans and facilities extended to Directors, Employees (other than loans given under
Employee rules), Shareholders holding more than 1% percent shares and related parties
as well as loans, advances and facilities restricted by the prevailing rules and
regulations shall be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

In case the bank has provided loans and facilities in excess of its Single Obligor Limits,
10% of all such excess exposures shall be added to the risk weighted exposure for
credit risk.

Where the bank has been involved in the sale of credit with recourse facility, 1% of the
contract (sale) value shall be added to the risk weight for credit risk.

Where the banks do not have satisfactory Assets Liability Management policies and
practices to effectively manage the market risks, an additional risk weight of 1% of Net
Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year shall be added to the risk
weight for market risk.

Where the Net Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year is
negative, 1% of the total credit and investments net of specific provisions shall be
the capital charge for unsatisfactory ALM policies and practices.

Where the bank's net liquid asset to total deposit ratio is less than 20%, a risk weight of
1% (as given in the table below) of total deposit, for each percent or portion of percent
shortfall in such ratio, is added to total of the Risk Weighted Exposures.

Net liquid asset to total deposit | A risk weight to be added to the Risk Weighted
ratio Exposures

19% - less than 20% 1% of total deposit

18% - less than 19% 2% of total deposit

17% - less than 18% 3% of total deposit

16% - less than 17% 4% of total deposit

15% - less than 16% 5% of total deposit and so on.

For this purpose, liquid assets include cash and bank balances, money at call & short
notice, placement upto 90 days and investment in government securities. Borrowings
repayable upto 90 days is deducted from liquid assets to obtain net liquid assets.

Note: Aforesaid Provision shall be effective from Falgun end 2066 BS.

Where the banks do not adopt sound practices for the management of operational risk,
an additional capital charge of 2% to 5% of Gross Income of immediate previous
financial year shall be levied for operational risks. However, for FY 2077/78 such
capital charge shall be 2% to 3% .

Where the Gross Income determined for computation of capital charge of Operational
Risk for all of the last three years is negative and where the banks themselves have not
addressed the capital charge for operational risk, 5% of the total credit and investments
net of specific provisions shall be the capital charge for operational risk.
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7.2

New banks who have not completed a year of operation and hence whose gross income
cannot be measured reliably and where the banks themselves have not addressed the
capital charge for operational risk, shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross
income. These banks may use the gross income approach from second year onwards.
But, based on the reasonableness of the so computed capital charge for Operation Risk,
during the first three years of operation, review process may require additional
proportion of capital charge.

9.  During the course of review, where the supervisor is not satisfied with the overall risk
management policies and procedures of the bank, the total risk weighted exposures of
the bank shall be increased up to 5%. However, for FY 2077/78 such increment shall
be upto 3%.

10. In case the bank has not achieved the desired level of disclosure requirements, the total
risk weighted exposures of the bank shall be increased up to 3%. However, for FY
2077/78 such increment shall be upto 1%.

11. Banks that do not meet the eligibility requirements to claim the benefit under credit risk
mitigation techniques shall not be allowed the benefit of CRM.

b. Corrective Actions for Non-Compliances

1.  The failure on part of the banks to meet the provisions of this framework shall be
considered as a violation of the NRB directives and shall attract stipulated actions. The
nature of the enforcement action largely depends on degree of the capital adequacy of
the bank. The trigger points and the prescribed action in case of non-compliance shall
be as per the provisions of Prompt Corrective Action Byelaw 2074 propounded by
Nepal Rastra Bank.

DISCLOSURE
GENERAL:

The purpose of disclosure requirements is to complement the minimum capital requirements and
the review process by developing a set of disclosure requirements which will allow market
participants to assess key pieces of information on the scope of application, capital, risk exposures,
risk assessment processes, and hence the capital adequacy of the bank. It is believed that providing
disclosures that are based on a common framework is an effective means of informing the market
about a bank’s exposure to those risks and provides a consistent and comprehensive disclosure
framework that enhances comparability. The importance of disclosure is more pronounced in cases
of bank that rely on internal methodologies in assessing capital requirements.

DISCLOSURE PRINCIPLES:

Banks should have a formal disclosure policy approved by the Board of Directors that addresses the
bank’s approach for determining what disclosures it will make and the internal controls over the
disclosure process. In addition, banks should implement a process for assessing the appropriateness
of their disclosures, including validation and frequency. While deciding on the disclosure policy,
the board should pay due attention to strike a balance between materiality and proprietary and
confidential information.

a. Materiality

Besides the minimum prescribed disclosure requirements, a bank should decide which
additional disclosures are relevant for it based on the materiality concept. Information would
be regarded as material if its omission or misstatement could change or influence the
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7.3

7.4

assessment or decision of a user relying on that information for the purpose of making
economic decisions.

b. Proprietary and confidential information

Proprietary information encompasses information (for example on products or systems), that
if shared with competitors would render a bank’s investment in these products/systems less
valuable, and hence would undermine its competitive position. Information about customers
is often confidential, in that it is provided under the terms of a legal agreement or
counterparty relationship. This has an impact on what banks should reveal in terms of
information about their customer base, as well as details on their internal arrangements, for
instance methodologies used, parameter estimates, data etc. The disclosure requirements set
out below by NRB aims to strike an appropriate balance between the need for meaningful
disclosure and the protection of proprietary and confidential information.

VALIDATION:

The disclosures of the bank should be subjected to adequate validation. In addition, supplementary
material (such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis) that is published should also be
subjected to sufficient scrutiny (e.g. internal control assessments, etc.) to satisfy the validation
issue. If material is not published under a validation regime, for instance in a stand alone report or
as a section on a website, then management should ensure that appropriate verification of the
information takes place, in accordance with the general disclosure principles.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:

Banks should at minimum, disclose the following information at the stipulated time intervals. At
the same time, banks shall be free to disclose any other information they consider important for its
stakeholders as and when they consider necessary, beyond the prescribed requirements.

a.  Banks should provide the following disclosures as at end of each financial year along with the
annual financial statements.

1.  Capital structure and capital adequacy

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to
be reckoned as capital funds.

Deductions from capital;

Total qualifying capital;

Capital adequacy ratio;

Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

2. Risk exposures

O O O O

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

» Restructure/Reschedule Loan

O O O O
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Substandard Loan
Doubtful Loan
Loss Loan

o NPA ratios

>
>

O O O O O

Gross NPA to gross advances
Net NPA to net advances

Movement of Non Performing Assets

Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense

Details of additional Loan Loss Provisions

Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and

Available for sale category
3. Risk Management Function

o For each separate risk area (Credit, Market and Operational risk), banks must
describe their risk management objectives and policies, including:

>

YV V

Strategies and processes;
The structure and organization of the relevant risk management function;
The scope and nature of risk reporting and/or measurement systems; and

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies, and processes for
monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges/mitigants.

o Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM.

b.  All commercial banks should make following disclosures on a quarterly basis on their
respective websites.

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the

outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds.

O O O O O O O

Deductions from capital;

Total qualifying capital;

Capital adequacy ratio;

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

» Restructure/Reschedule Loan
» Substandard Loan
» Doubtful Loan
» Loss Loan
o NPA ratios
» Gross NPA to gross advances
» Net NPA to net advances
Movement of Non Performing Assets
Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
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o Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense

o Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions

o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and Available
for sale category

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially
in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

C. Disclosure requirements under this framework should also be published in the respective
websites of the banks. Such disclosures of the banks should also be updated to reflect the
capital adequacy position of the banks after the supervisory adjustments under the review
process. Banks that do not host a website yet are required to make the necessary
arrangements to host a website immediately.

d.  Banks are required to report to NRB their capital adequacy computations, according to the
format as specified in Annexure of this framework on a monthly basis within one month after
the end of the month or as required by NRB from time to time. All such returns has to be
validated by the internal auditor of the bank. If the monthly internal audit could not be carried
out, it should be disclosed on the monthly returns. But, such returns at the end of each quarter
must be submitted with the validation from the internal auditor of the bank.

In addition to the returns specified above, a bank must inform NRB within 30 days of:

1. Any breach of the minimum capital adequacy requirements set out in this framework
together with an explanation of the reasons for the breach and the remedial measures it
has taken to address those breaches.

2. Any concerns it has about its capital adequacy, along with proposed measures to address
these concerns.

e. Full compliance of these disclosure requirements is a pre-requisite before banks can obtain
any capital relief (i.e., adjustments in the risk weights of collateralized or guaranteed
exposures) in respect of any credit risk mitigation techniques.

FORM NO. 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE
(Rs.In .....
Current Previous
1. 1 Risk Weighted Exposures Period Period
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Adjustments under Pillar 11
Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non compliance to
Disclosure Requirement (6.4 a 10)
Add: ....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid
Assets(6.4 a 6)
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of
Pillar 11)
Current Previous
1.2 CAPITAL Period Period
Core Capital (Tier 1)
a Paid up Equity Share Capital
b Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares
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Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(Loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

""V’“Q'OOJB_'—'_'ICQ =D [ |O

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit &
u unutilized

\% Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11
Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and
Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Supplementary Capital (Tier 11)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

General Loan Loss Provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

SlQ|=h|o|a|o |o|o

Other Reserves

Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier 1)

0

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Current
Period

Previous
Period

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's
adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After
Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

FORM NO. 2: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR CREDIT RISK
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Specific

Provisio
n& Eligib Risk Risk
5’2& Ié Valuatio le V'!ﬁje Weig | Weighted
A. Balance Sheet Exposures n CRM ht Exposures
Adjustm
ent
a b c dzi-b- e f=d*e

Cash Balance 0 0 0| 0% 0
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0] 0% 0
Gold 0 0 0] 0% 0
Investment in Nepalese Government 0 0 0] 0% 0
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0 0 0] 0% 0
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0 0 0] 0% 0
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0| 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0 0 0] 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0 0 0 0] 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0 0 0 0] 50% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0 0 0 0| 100 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0 0 0 0| 150 0
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and on 0 0 ol 0% 0
Multilateral Develonment Banks (MDB's)
Claims on Other Multilateral Development 100

0 0 0 0 0
Banks %
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities 0 0 0 0 10900 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0| 20% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 1(2)0 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 0 o] o 0| 19 0
Claims on dor_nestic banks that meet capital 0 0 0 0l 20% 0
Adﬂﬂllﬂf‘\l reqalirements
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet 0 0 0 o| 100 0
canital adeniiacyv reailirements Ok
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0| 20% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0| 100 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0| 150 0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region and China operating with a 0 0 0 0| 20% 0
Claims on Domestic Corporate (Credit rating 0
Score equivalent to AAA) 0 0 0 0| 80% 0
Claims on Domestic Corporate(Credit rating 0 0 0 0l 85% 0
Scare equivalent ton AA+ta AA-) i
Claims on Domestic Corporate(Credit rating 0 0 0 0! 90% 0
Scare equivalentta A+ to A- )
Claims on Domestic Corporate(Credit rating 0 0 0 o| 100 0
Scare equivalent ta BRB+ & below) %
Claims on Domestic Corporate (Unrated) 0 0 0 0| 100 0
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Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0] 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0] 100 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0] 150 0
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 0 0 0 0| 75% 0
Claims fulfilling all criterion of regulatory 0 0 0 o| 100 0
retail eveent araniilaritv [0/
Claims secured by residential properties 0 0 0 0| 60% 0
Claims not fully secured by residential 0 0 0 0| 150 0
Claims secured by residential properties 0 0 0 0| 100 0
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 0 0 0 0| 100 0
Past due claims (except for claim secured by 0 0 0 o| 150 0
recidential nraonertiag) Ok
High Risk claims 0 0 0 0] 150 0
Investments in equity and other capital 0 0 0 o| 100 0
instriiments nf inctitiitinong lictad in the ctnck Oh
Investments in equity and other capital 0 0 0 o| 150 0
inctriimente nf inctititinne not licted in tha Oh
Staff loan secured by residential property 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Interest Receivable/claim on government 0 0 0 0| 0% 0
Cash in transit an(_:i other cash items in the 0 0 0 0l 20% 0
nracece nf cnllactinn
Other Assets (as per attachment) 0 0 0 0| 100 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Gross | Specific |Eligib Net Risk Risk
Book | Provisio le Value Weig | Weighted
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Value n CRM ht | Exposures
a b c d_i'b' e f=d*e
Revocable Commitments 0 0 0| 0% 0
Bills Under Collection 0 0 0| 0% 0
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities 0 0 0 0| 10% 0
LC Commitments With Original Maturity
Upto 6 months 0 0 0 0| 20% 0
Domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0| 20% 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 1(2)0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 1(;)0 0
LC Commitments With Original Maturity
Over 6 months 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0| 20% 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0| 50% 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 1(2)0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 1500 0
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Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter
guarantee

Domestic counterparty

40%

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1)

20%

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2)

50%

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6)

100
%

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7)

150
%

Underwriting commitments

50%

Lending of Bank's Securities or Posting of
Securities as collateral

100
%

Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with
recourse

100
%

Advance Payment Guarantee

100
%

Financial Guarantee

100
%

Acceptances and Endorsements

100
%

Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and
Securities

100
%

Irrevocable Credit commitments (Short
Term)

20%

Irrevocable Credit commitments (Long
Term)

50%

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of
1% above their respective regulatory capital
requirement

20%

Other Contingent Liabilities

100
%

Unpaid Guarantee Claims

200
%

TOTAL

Total RWE for Credit Risk Before
Adjustment (A) +(B)

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Add: 10% of the loan and facilities in
excess of Single Obligor Limits(6.4 a 3)

Add: 1% of the contract(sale) value in
case of the sale of credit with recourse
(6.4a4)

Total RWE for credit Risk (After Bank's
adjustments of Pillar 11)
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FORM NO.3 ELIGIBLE CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

Credit exposures

Deposit
s with
Bank

Deposit
swith
other
banks/F
I

Gol
d

Gowt.
&
NRB
Securi
ties

G'e
e of
Govt
. of
Nep
al

Sec/G'te
e of
Other
Soverei
gns

G'tee of
domesti
¢ banks

G'tee
of
MDB

Sec/G't
ee of
Foreig
n
Banks

Tota

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Balance Sheet Exposures

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -2)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -3)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA-4-6)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -7)

Claims on Other Multilateral
Development Banks

Claims on Domestic Public
Sector Entity

Claims on Public Sector Entity
(ECA0-1)

Claims on Public Sector Entity
(ECA 2)

Claims on Public Sector Entity
(ECA 3-6)

Claims on Public Sector Entity
(ECAT)

Claims on domestic banks that
meet capital adequacy
requirements

Claims on domestic banks that do
not meet capital adequacy
requirements

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 0-1)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 2)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 3-6)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 7)

Claims  on  foreign bank
incorporated in SAARC region
and China operating with a buffer
of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates

o

Claims on Foreign Corporates
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Credit exposures Deposit |Deposit | Gol | Govt. |G'te |Sec/G'te |G'tee of | G'tee [Sec/G't |Tota
swith | swith | d & |eof | eof |domesti | of |eeof I
Bank | other NRB [Govt | Other |cbanks [MDB |Foreig
banks/F Securi | .of | Soverei S n
I ties [Nep | gns Banks
al
(a) (b) () [ (d) () | (F) @ | () | ()
(ECA 0-1)
Claims on Foreign Corporates 0
(ECA 2)
Claims on Foreign Corporates 0
(ECA 3-6)
Claims on Foreign Corporates 0
(ECAT)
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not 0
Overdue)
Claims fulfilling all criterion of 0
regulatory retail except granularity
Claims secured by residential 0
properties
Claims not fully secured by 0
residential properties
Claims secured by residential 0
properties (Overdue)
Claims secured by Commercial 0
real estate
Past due claims (except for claim 0
secured by residential properties)
High Risk claims 0
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions
listed in the stock exchange
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions
not listed in the stock exchange
Other Assets (as per attachment)
Total 0
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Forward  Exchange  Contract
Liabilities
LC Commitments With Original 0
Maturity Upto 6 months
Domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
2)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
3-6)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
AT Y FEATE “F, G T T I FATATAII ACAETEAE T TR THFT [T - 2008 R




Credit exposures Deposit |Deposit | Gol | Govt. |G'te |Sec/G'te |G'tee of | G'tee [Sec/G't |Tota
swith | swith | d & |eof | eof |domesti | of |eeof I
Bank | other NRB [Govt | Other |cbanks [MDB |Foreig
banks/F Securi | .of | Soverei S n
I ties [Nep | gns Banks
al
(a) (b) () [ (d) () | (F) @ | () | ()
7)
LC Commitments With Original 0
Maturity Over 6 months
Domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
0-1)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
2)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
3-6)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
7)
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and 0
Counter guarantee
Domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
0-1)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
2)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
3-6)
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0
7)
Underwriting commitments 0
Lending of Bank's Securities or 0
Posting of Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets 0
sale with recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee 0
Financial Guarantee 0
Acceptances and Endorsements 0
Unpaid portion of Partly paid 0
shares and Securities
Irrevocable Credit commitments 0
(Short Term)
Irrevocable Credit commitments
(Long Term)
Other Contingent Liabilities 0
Total
Grand Total
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FORM NO.4 EXHIBIT OF CLAIMS WITH CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

(Rs.An .......oo.......

S. Counterparty | Categor | Facility | Outstandin

Eligible CRM

N. y g Nature

Gross Haircut

Amount

Net
Amount

FORM NO.5 OTHER ASSETS

S.No. | Assets Gross Amount

Specific
Provision &
Valuation
Adjustment

Net
Balance

Fixed Assets

Interest Receivable on Other Investment

Interest Receivable on Loan

Non Banking Assets

Reconciliation Account

Draft Paid Without Notice

Sundry Debtors

OINOO|OID|WIN| -

Advance payment and Deposits

9 Staff Loan and Advance

10 Stationery

11 Other

[ellellollellellelleolleo]llelleo]l o] o]

FORM NO. 6: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR OPERATIONAL RISK

Particulars

Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income

Other Operating Income

Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period

Gross income (a)

Alfa (b)

15%

15%

15%

Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]

Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (d) (average of c)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%6) in
times (e)

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

PILLAR-11 ADJUSTMENTS

If Gross Income for all the last three years is negative(6.4 a

8)

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision)
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Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5%)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [g]

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f or g)

10

FORM NO.7 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR MARKET RISK

S.No. Currency Open Position (FCY) Open Position (NPR) Relevant Open
Position
1 INR
2 uUsD
3 GBP
4 EURO
5 THB
6 CHF
7 | ...
8 | ...
9 | ...
Total Open Position (a)
Fixed Percentage (b) 5%

Capital Charge for Market Risk [c=(axb)]

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (d)

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [e=(cxd)]

FORM NO. 8 NET LIQUID ASSETS TO TOTAL DEPOSIT RATIO

(Rs.In ....))

Particulars

Amount

Total Deposit and Borrowing (A)

Total Deposit(as per NRB Ni.Fa. 9.1)

Total Borrowing(as per NRB Ni.Fa. 9.1)

Liquid Assets (B)

Cash(9.1)

Bank Balance(9.1)

Money at call and short notice (9.1)

Investment in government Securities(9.1)

Placement upto 90 days

Borrowings payable upto 90 days (C)

Net Liquid Assets (D)=(B-C)

Net Liquid Assets to Total Deposit

Shortfall in Ratio

Amount to be added to Risk Weighted Exposures
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1T FHTATAY

oF qur o g trawme fasm

.91/ /. /000

O/ qTICH! TN T AT AT A ST

TG SEAE “F, ‘@Y T T AR SATTATAYT FRATS JATE TTXehl oAl ATITT AR T
ST FEAIT AFTAET B T T SIAETE SRl T T §F U, 304G FT IHT 9
feuat afrsr g T TETEE Meae Sy Ihuar g o
q. HA AR AT

TSSO HEATA TaTE TPl Holl /ATqehl Al a1 AT HAAHl gaa- AT ATerehl sratee
HTIRAT FFIY FSA[ ATICATs 8T THISTH aUR0T T T -

(@) AR FHS (Performing Loan) : AHI FTHT MFEATIARET A T &R MR Foll IS
q. IFAT (Pass) -
(37) WTET FAATHHT T @ AieATI+H AT ATerehl Hli/|M9e,
(AT) HEAT IAFqERT fIAHT TTHT FSAT qAT AT9C,
(3) AT AT GRETIT qAT FATA AT e HUTTR! AT TTHT ol JAT AL,
(%) Tat qRev fag 9fd UTed FerEr 5. 0 AEETH YATE WUH AT FHl |

@, afafees fadr qReror atqa HEdr FEE AT AU WRERE! GRETTT a1 A T AF

HOA fdl TE S GaAE WA AT b qAT S T F Q0 ATGHRT TCIHT FA=ialr

frdT FSIATS W= ST ATE! SATIRAT AT T I |

3. g&H IR (WatchList)

() q HAfedATeRa A AleATaF T AT e Fel/ QI

(A1) TATHOT AWS ALATET TTHT FEMT Q0 fade™ qhrAl AT TRISUHT AedebleAl
AT ATAYS Hol |

(%) ¥ H UM Aok AT AT ARATAT R FATHT AR qURT FOleATs FaTted e |

(¥) 9iar ¥ et TafHa T9ET SRRl STATai @R 5 auerd @8 AEMIAT bl ar

ATqY WUMHE WUH HH, FAT qT LIS FANEd Ha |
W,
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(@) TR sEearT B IRATSTATArs TG RGH FSiR GHAT AIRATSTAT
HMERMAF IR Y& W A R qOF e q9eel fadig feamorar e /e
qr T AR g |

(@) TFFTHT AFTAT T8 AR FAPT THAT T TS 3 Y FIA TRTH F |

() ¥ Q T AT AT AwRT TEI THHBT Te-[axiTaHT HAHT IR THUHT TgeA(hg Fal |

(F) TF Sbel ARSI TS HOHT A€ TaTg qAT TRATSTAT GoaTeAThl ATl FHAR Wbl
HTITHT FoH [ARIAAT T Al (e fGguehr &l |

(F) HAl ﬁ'ﬁuiﬁ AT (Debt to Equity Ratio) §0:30 Hw[ T Eaf T JaTe WY Fol |
(T I Spor A TRINTHD! AT SR AR SATATA FIAH ARET Ho |

(@) TR @l (Non-Performing Loan) : fepa FATATS [RESIGCIECA TR Tl"flﬁ@ ;
(}) FHAA (Sub-standard) : 3 HieATNE & HAIEATHFH W@T ATEHT FHoll /AL |
() STHTEIE (Doubtful) : & AieATRG TEHAT § TITFH AT ATEHT Foll /AL |
(3) GRS (Loss) : 4 TUNRT FEl AT HATGT ATEH Hol /A |
(%) FaT & FHITSTH TARAT AR/ TATHLAAT TRTHT ol

(M) ITLR (F) T (@) A TGP FA IeG AP WCATYH 0% [ HATAAT G a9
TR HTHT T R0 TH AHTIIYATT TATE TUH FOIATS A qaT iy Feamees 099
AR FATIHT FGA GIHT GBI T GG |

R A F G IT AT
TEAT Ueh FUGFH STFAT Al TR =T GOl FollcAls AT Tl A HolrdT FHTELT TH
e @ | SATAAIAUTT FRITA OBl oAl a9 Ta &THaT, qral A998 YaTe, ATl ard
ST Fll JATEH! FATH ATIRESH! [T 9= HeIl GeUaRTRl GEr=radr g+ T AT
FAT AR IS, |

3 T Bl ] g9 T
AT@T ATEHN a7 AATHR] F I FAHT SETAHT FHT FRAT FGUHAT DA FAl JAT AITATS
G FHAHT AHI T TG -
(%) O 1 Tod AT AT aTd Ted bl HTTUT SUHT,

(@) FOT FIAT ACAT a7 R0 HATHH RIS AT,
() FT FEAART HTHT,
(&) RIS/ SHaHTA ool gl AT AT, RATSAT a1 FTHI oo AH THTHT,

(Z) JATAIA, THAT qIT T GG IMIcae® BIY A (Force Loan) &I SIHT HITHT STATRT
FATHT TR AUHT AATITHT I HSAHT TIROTq TUHT Afqer 0 fadaed el THuHT,
(@) FAT AGA g A9H [AATHT GRAT O FUHT 950 faF AT AT FAFAr GOHAT A=A

SATATHI EET ﬂrﬂ(ﬁﬁhl SERSIRIR

(B) FAT LA Brxebl FIAGAHT BAH QHT HUNATS TAT a1 I HoAl TaT BT ST,
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(ST) FRETUThT TSR HeA bollebl Y& g TEe ATHT,

>

(V) @RE a1 fSEhTgva T faedebl AThTHT i (due date) o L0 [ETEF AT THTHT,

(3F) T AR /W /FFIAB] ATHHT TEHhT FAl Ab AT /FH /FFIATA FTANT LT FFETH,
TR UId GHEAT T FH /BT EHAT el YA HTIH T ATl T S,

(@) fe ARHST (Trust Receipt Loan) WThTHI ITH JASAR! AN JACIT GIeaTH q@d Iool@
TRUHT A= F TAT FAT ATET T FaTE TUAT |

(3) Credit Card &SI AT@T ATee el 40 faAfaa uem@d TwHT |

(T) HuTe Uge Al AT sraferepr demT ot faxirer faa=or o1 YT Srar=amHT |

(@) o qa1 AT FTEIE FA1 S TG ARG AT GRATATE FoA(/ATIE FaT IR

fZogoft : 71 oA @ve () B FASTTE AT GEGANT WIS GAITT Gl [rg#E o T

T THH T [TAHT TATME AT FAAT FINT TFE, [THGT T GIRTHTE FHAT

FIRFETE, TGT TIETHE FHAT AGTTIEHFAE TEIANT T THIT AT F1 TIT GIAETH
FETINT TOF THET Te |
¥, IaE F G 99 g
) [FEATE=IHT JaTe TTRTHT ATdfdes el (Term Loan) I EHHT ATl (el ATET
FATRI T IS, |
(R) TG ARATST, =@ 9 AT (Transmission Line) Hade® AT IIATSAT I
TATEATT I IRASTATAT TATE STUHT Bollehl BHAT bl [ehedTel Q0 faworear oéiet
HIEGT ATSAT T&AT [hedT IhAArs @RIE avdl auieeul T [HEarel Tauiaerd &ef
AT ST FIH T I |
T gATE TR FAl GTIEATE THET T |
¥,  gEEiar o R 99 AT
TETIHT AT TAT O R T FA=ral fadr @l ol G T Al G -
(%)  HEATH! Pl A /[ SATTAHTEAHAT FA=ral faqr g o1l Y2 T4 qa@r i@ AUl 87 9,
(@) FETA GAAGID FA1 FREAR T M AATH  GREAT TALAT, FIEMH HATSHA
LT, hal STHT qIT SATerehl qI=d| FaedT Tl g 9,
() o qar faxir RaTeRd H AThars qAATEl Fo JATe &l el Hoirer faareasy fauest
A AT G A T FHAT AT TeRT AfFT I AT FoAT GaATE T TG | T oAl
JaTE &l WS frdl w@e U 9 a1 AT USd IefTHT AMEUeRT guns; | FEaTe
F el (ST THIwRT TEr Iefes a1 UhwaT J¢] deiles AMGUehl Tl Iefl AT forer
M AT FAATGIRT TV ST A GAATGT boll FaTe AUHT XA HSIAT TAA(ALT Bofl
AT e T 998 |
% ARG AT AT T TMEFH! GIATATE Fiar A7 AT AYASIR TH A1

ATAYGTIE ATHT AT T YTEehebl Fecil QGIATale ATAYSA (Overdrawn) TRT Heifehl diaT qAT AT
AGASTR T TS ST |
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WwwnﬁwamwWwwaﬁmﬁ@verdrawn)ﬁ%w
TR YT H"WQ_OF[ YUgHT W’?f HAHASHC AHUchl dN'HS('HI c'fll*l(S"i TR_OFT ?T|_°|T <chH ('H-ICI GMﬂl(‘ll
WWW&TﬁWW@Wﬁﬁ@W@H@WWW&TW
g | OR, AW AL UTEhH! GIATET Tl HoaTd @F T qiar Ja7 a7 JGAIIR T
TS ATTHT AT & |
o, | Faly T T
(F) FTHATHTAT Tk FUFT a6 T9 A @1 ATdId F0 Y& T qeT & | a¥, FAqqd q90
qRATSATR THIG ATAR AT =T del IF Fafd G THa TOAT &% H(q BRI T FF E SATIRAT
IET T AATT BTAH TR BT APl AERT GeATs Holl TBiTPl THIAT TT FoAl TThd T
AETAR ITq ATIFIRT =T U g ANl ATIare @eed RIS I°g | T8 TATSTHH AT
=T HIfTedd] TR =T AATT g7 |
@) PSR B FRO@ foarqar wEw TRCH I @ty B SR v R e
H/GATAT g Aabhl ATCITHT (AT T8 g/ FATATHT AT AT 99 FHY qfebe T
TTEheh! IAAGHT o6 T FiiT YLATH T TIHHT N 090 ST HATTAFHAT SEATHINAH
U9 AT 99 T FFaS |
F. PHS-9R T AT T A=A JATfedq FoArerg § aW, HEAH TG AFTAT Falled Feirerg
AfEAT TAT <A JATET SFTAT JAfea FoliaATe & AfeATa ST AT I afr a9 T4 g |
W, T HEaE AHETIT THEFEIT Bedd! FHAT ATHAH I IR AT I
Aty 99 T FqiFn |
AT, T9d A &ty 9q T g FF qar i e srifatr e deee atafqeare
Epd TE 0] T g 7 A9 Aty gu ARt Feteenr wfae fEror a9 Sear a9
T T |
3. QA 99 TUH AW AT ATTATS GNP RN I aty 7 FRIAT 3 FFm™T Swm
g T STl AGLAT T g T APUH AMABEHTH BT T HURET H fepferaep
YTl SATST/ Y[eh /FATHT /AT AT (Interest on interest) flr qrae & |
T I FAAT T Foll GATE ¥ AU (HITRG Foliebl el Shrr T 9% & [Afd
IHRA TG, |
5. FHIB! TALANABIGI T TAREHIAAT qoIwel g
Q) U T WH Afgd T AT IfedAtad IETAHT SATIRETHT SATSTATTITG T

faeasd AT FeAEedrs TARANARIRI AT TAREAAT TH o B | ol TARATTABIRIT
A1 [ARETEAT MRUH] T ATIREE Jcddh Bl BIGAAT A g T8, -

(®F)  HS FEE BETSAT qAT FREAMEE T HUHT FHIW,

(@) TARAIABIRT AT [ATELAAT HUHT Foll AqA g TFATAATAR SoTTqTTIT  FEaT
v ATINES, T

() HATATE TARANARIRIT AT TARELAAT T feAfgd HTEFTSTAT 997 gt Afdieeh cer
FAT qAXANABIRL AT AT Talehl [aTae APA §T bl SATSIbl HRIHAT

oI T =TS ThH A IR U |
(R) TANAUANTE 5% a9 iy Tere yare ARuHr F=i 967 Hi9e-92 a1 afeq qsr
HEAH GATad &7 YaTH KUKl FHA(ehl HAT HUNR! TRATTAT a7 STITTAT
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TRl JATT TAT I ATRATRT HeATSeh T Hehl fafaga wradis=r aqar
ATTSIHT JANT G FSATATHT TS AU =HT g FaaT ok qar faeira dwem
HTYFET AUHT FHfead AR ATRIGHT TF Gehebl AT AT J¥RTIAIA
TSR 90 YIANT IHA AGA IIW T S@TTHR] AAevehl AUTHT el Boliehl
WWW?/ﬂWWW&I

($)¢@Wﬁmt/wm?00®ngrﬁmmﬁa|

(@) T TIRANABIF /AT TAELEAT TN 0% [H HAATTHAT AHT Folgwed! AT
ATH ¥ FITIT HAT AT AALAT FAH T HAA AT S I AbAe |

(M) I FAT IRATABIHRIT /AT TAEAAT TR T ATIREE TAF Bl BIGAHT
T g T |

(&) W AER foAT RATAPEH T/ TACEAAT MRCHT METHT §.91. e .
/0% BN T 7. X BN ST ¥ (F) ATAR Hol AR TN AW T TG, |

(3) IUFET () () THITTH FHR0T TRTHT FoAleepl (a0 Gg TAR T I, |
fagofy:

*qq gATTE TN GACANTRIFT” AT TEFA [T Fl/ GEEaT#E AT T
AT AT TETTT TIHATAE THET T8 |

* ‘qeReedT” AT Forl/ GIAETE FET T SAHT GRAdT T, TREe q9he 7 a7 THT
HIHATAT E7HY 7 GRATATE THFT 96 |
R.  HAT A AMqA HEAH T I Faedr
Q) 79 L T a¥ieeor Tieuet Heil q4r foaeq @itaert AT ST aiar TehHew

Tt AT ATH FAT ATl SFqeT
(®F)  qbd q gfeera

@)  g&Hq frwrEr Y gfcerd

M  FHEA Y, giderd

I Car Yo gfqera

@ qo0 giqerd

@) Tq S {qT 4.9 B ITHRT (M) THIAH FAA GEAT G HUHT qR, W@l
ATEHT SARIPT SATEARHAT 000 AR AATRTAT Toll AT FI(HRI T T BTl AT
HIFTHT ¥ FIET Folt AT T FAR T I |

() 0% TA HAATKIAT A TAT FH0T TRYHT FoArerrs qq eyt sar .9
SYHET (@) T (@) THIWH TEE TR QEEHIA Hol Aaardl gaedr Had
TS |

(3) ITLET () FTAR Y FAAA Bl AT qqAT TR AT (a0 It qqR
T 79 FHAT A7 T G |

() UTF a¥ W[ G AF FATT HCH It AMIqbT AR AT Featteaa IR aedr

YaTfed A FAEeH! I AATGHH AP a4 GHIANGS ST FHAl ATl SqaeqT T

AT ad q JIAET AHI o1 AR AaedT A T Fip S |
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FIAERIF T, T FAF AT FAT ¥ T @G §7 I FoAw AT G 75 0.7
g, FI9T 95 o.Xo IR, A& W 0.6y v 7w FEely 9 IRV AERT
F TFITH FTET FTH T+ FbT g1

3 WM, &, YW AEAGH BN A T FIQUAE TYHT TRA A9, A, AR, AEH,
gfedr au 0. yiawrd, TR a9 0.% Fawa T qAS qushg § Fiqerq AR HWAA A

AW FEAA T F(bAa, |
(%)  JAETHAT AT qRATAHIRT TXhl FHollehl AT AT ATId I@Td STHITH Holl AT
AT FAA T TS,
(F) IRELEAT AT [ARANASIRIN T THTET A GIHT FUh0T ATEhT FoeATg
qRETET a1 TARANASIET & =AqH |ig g (1Y) Iaerd ol A
ZET T U°g, | FHA, AHRIE qIT @IS N a0 TAhF FAETATS
QRETEAT T TARANABIRT &1 qaad HIAH TRUH ol ATl HACTHT

AR TEATTEN (HATHT qUST ATATAT T8k e GATATT T qTgT G |

fpeamar a1 99 wifg® & (Equal Monthly Installment, EMI) T J&TH TR
AT ARG AT [ARATABIRRY TRE AT ol AT AT HIAT T TS |

(1) HAHl fhear AN ATl FUHT (Prepayment) HIRITA fhecTawalel ThH TaH
fheaT TEaT ®H qUHT |

(A1) gRAATMNA SATIER AUl Fo[ebl ATAGY GRAAT WUl FRUTSTE  Holehl
JUATET quT fher THH qREdd WUHT | 9 YEIHT AT d&7 hollehl
FHEATEl q9T R " T afd TUHT Fel Wl T GHAAT R TRusE
fFedT Y| HaTST UTeH 99 | A&y, SATSEY W WS deliel qHATAT a9l
fepeaT FeIT Tad AT i ol Wrehd T SATHT [Heied fhear T#d garsd
e B |
(@) TARERHAT AT GARAIABIRRIT XU HoATehl ATaT (el TAT TSP HhRTAT AATR
T2 AU AT FUHT FGEATHT AT Bolels qTqA Bl AT IRUT 9 Alh B |

M) Sk qar faxig TRATAE FAT GATE AURT TRATSTATR! SATTHAT Fhg, IATET SHAT
(Production Capacity) f&R 7§ TRAT g Jfg aT I ANTIHT Jhg & A
ARHT ?‘ﬁi}d'?‘l_oﬁ G| ‘ﬂTFIT-'ﬁ T Aty (Repayment Schedule) AT ol ohl T T
fegfq e HOUNHLA ATTT WTATHHATHT IEH ETegMITaR, HAARR, [qHe T q
qagR e @R afdeeeears @Ee ad W/ T4
WTWUT/www-ﬂ YT AFITHT q FIATT AT ol AT TaedT Hraq
T AT | T ARATTAR IR/ TARERAAT TRUHT FHoA[ells AqA Hollehl TTHT

TR0 T Hib 3 |
(1) OfeaTSTT fafsha 998 Foaed § W@ a1 oA 9% g FHHAT T@Hl g,
T

() qEHT FAT YATE &I (AR TARUHT IF  (Moratorium) afd H=aT  qfehl
HATITHT YTebebl SATS Goilebd T ATFRTAT aTed AT |

(&) Sp qar fad WA FEIITAA AT AT JATE T FAl TSHT TR
FRUT FTaehebl ATRTAT AT(AHT AT 9T THISTH =hT T Tdd Hg Bl qaeaadT a1
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QARANASIERT T YA Tb Gedbarrs Rl A0 v fafad s, faar dzerore
qATAAT T AMTTHT WO AT T TR ATIRHT TAELHAT AT AT A [T
T FALATHT § Giqerd HTA Fell Al SER T HAH T da T
AR AT A RO/ TARERAAT T b G | T (XA AIhR 0T/ TAEAAT TR
FAETATs ATA HoATehl TTAT ANTHIU T b B |

(%) IR FIdaTHT eI TR FoATeTs ARG AT TARATASIRRT T qra S |

(F) T AHRA AT IASTTTHAT FHTA T FUNTRT TARAIAT TAT IIIH  [ThTeh]
AT TR el ST LT T JHARTHT TFI=HT (A SaTe gae giaem qwaed

wrdfaty, 000 (@rEfafs -3.9) FERTH g T FAT ARATASIRT a7 TARELAT
TET RATH T=ArE gfqerd Fell A SERT T 9Hs, |

TAAUAYTE SF q9T faiig TeATT YATE BN bl (HET JAT FAT GREAW BT
TREAT TRTTHT T ATHT TRITHT AATATAT XAl GIEAT BT HoATebl AT T I ol
T ST (Loan Loss Provision) AT 94 gfderd ge fag arer W gfdqera @ =gan
W I G |

SThAT / FEAWTT STHTAT Bl Y& Tl HORl SAfRId STHAT TRA SRTERET A
FHF! FMEAT TAN FEAAep! [qaRor qfard a9 faq 99 | Afda / J=amrd ST
A gaTfed Folfes 9 SUIRRTAR ¥R T q7d, FHAA T AHBIT FHAMAT I9 AT
T AT dlfpusdr gfqerde Afdfeh R0 gfqerd g9 T FSl Al ATl HaH T
TG | A A, A Gl EUA @ s 99 FRETI A19d AfhId /IR
SHAT FHA (a5 Fol JaT8 Tl AaTATHT FRET T@IHE FSHT FHA Afdh R0
greTeTd il AT SE=AT T |

TR, ATHTT /TIWTT THFMAT FATE ATHT @TTRT HATHT qT oAl AT FaedT HTH
T A= g B
(%) hige HIS Holl |

(@) T e 7. 3 F FST 7. 3 F @US (@) T I AATATE T&TH TXehT ol |

(W) S T A RIS ATHIT THIMMET JATE Tgedl RIS Fel qdqr o@F A
Wwwwmﬂwwmmmmmw
THNTH TMPTRT AT AT FILITAT AfqRTh R0 WAL 99 o ATl
AT T T |

(%) FETIHT 0 AT g TR TaTg AUHT & {4, ATGHFHDT AThiTd Hl |

() SSSTATAITL HEATH FSAl ANTAT T [HAHBT FoAl TATE, ATTHA TAT AFA
FE[EHT T Joei@ TN g |

(3N T FRfHeT FST TaATEdT AN SSATSTATAIT FEATH oAl rAfqare gad
wsqdwwmwmrﬁaﬁmﬁiaﬁnwwmww
AT Tl A |

() AU AFRAID AIqd oAl AhTAl TH T L AR gAd | gl
ATEETHIT AT HUTR ofb FT faxiiar FRATHT TEepl GraTene Tehie TLehl gd |
QY O AfarERTH T J@r TR (PAN) AR g |

(%) 9" Wifa® fHET (Equal Monthly Installment) HT il AT g1 T R
AT TF gAI | TXAT Follehl ATIhaH FHATATT ¥ qUGHH AH g8 | X,
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0.

FATTATAYT WL ATEHT &, Y AT@h AT TET TEHT 3.4 ATGTEHRT
Revolvingqmav_vﬁwﬁ“ﬂ?ﬁ&?[l
(F)  TEAT FHAT A Bof(ebl Y TAATHRT FEl TaTE T TS |
() U (%) T () THNTHBT ol 0 [& AT TEI ATl ATl HTEAT @IS aiHT
TR TR 9T ITLTT Fofl AT SAaedT HIAH T |
(&) TEAT PPl (a0 Gg TAR T B |
TATTAIAITT FEIT ITART AGLATAT AT ddl T&Thl [IdTHT WA GaTied Holrdrs a9
freee gwifew afferer T 99, FHEA T RIS HAHT 9 AT TT GIAT (BT
gfqerdeal afdfess R0 UfTed 99 Fol AT FERT FIAH T IHG | HOUNH AT
T A TG qE 99 R ATqq J9T TEH faar THd [dg F gAe TH
HIITHT HUH q7 FHITGRT TRETA TGTHRT ST FAH] AT Iooi@ 9T FHITH o9
FAT AT STERAT T TS, | TXAT Fofiehl Gg (qaR0T qIR T I |
(1) ol At AUHT ot THTeR qiRaReT Gaehl ATHHT YU foar |
(A1) AU ®H JUAT AT HHR GITSaY, ATHER a7 (bl ThreR URAREBT a2kl
ATHHT UHT fodr |
(%) SO THET T FWRATH ATFAMIE HW, I I I A Goaqad T
YERIAT ATAH faeT FEiae! YRETTAT JaT TRTH i |
@) TEF FISHHE AT RS FaTe ST i |
@, fAfd R0%R/03/3% wwT g yaTled sMafd® el gHAT AfH fhEr SRl
AR T 99 S AT AT T B & o |
STSTAYAIT FEATA SATEHT Aol av bl Foll ATIaes qecl a¥THT AT TH F
geaS] TSUH] Al FEEXUHl AN A Hofdls hMEIe ] @ HSHT T
QTeRTRIEEATS @RI HATHT FHTHIT T U o |

TSTSTATAYT AT SATHT Follehl (AT &4 T e HT dIehUehl —IATH Foll AT
TRUERT F1 GTAEe TE GATST T, |

(q0) ST/ ATYE A= fored @ie qa1 feweprgve THaATE avhd I7% |

(General Loan Loss Provision) ” ¢ /7 &l &7 TRTH &l 7IFGTH FaITATE
“froTe FAT TIFITHT SFFT (Specific Loan Loss Provision) ” @& SY4T fe17 & 1

FAT A IS GHEEE T qreA AAQT ol ATl TICATATS GBTdhl ATET
Tk FHATSTT T qre" & -

(%) AT U@ SUHT,
(@) FATR] AThTAT [FEATawal aT AT FTHT TUHAT ol ANHBIU AATTR! oIl ATFATAT LT

FTIH T AR TUHT ETTFHER] HoAT aTId TR Holl AT AT,

(A1) ATETHAT AT ARANARIRIU TRUHT FHSiiehl FlaT AT TSR] ThTAT AR g5 TG

frafaa vuar 7

(51) T F[<hT ATHAT |
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1.

) QUL HHAT IRGUHT PRAATEE TAMTATT T G AR TR AT FasTwT

fereasy W

R Sfepy qmafa TR, AT Sae < e foety awamm

Q@

SATTATAYTE TEATS Bl ol AT THUHT GRETUHT TEeh! foal Saferaw Ty afehr qram ¥
TS IS THSG | AT Foll AFA T (qaArqer r far faarr &l faam fasnr
TACAT AThel TFR T 48 | R &1 faarel gafad gk qed a1 fgdr Fer 19
wferedtt faaeTepl TEUT oFT THH T T FH g5 AEl HAH HATsd T 995 | A(G
Rrdresl a8 e FSlibl oAl THH T2 FH HUAT HH AUSd IHH el ATdsd o

(SN

ATRT/ AT fedmad T @< e RRT @l AIqHT Jooid T T |

TR, T HAT3T & AT IR by qedta arqael wH Feu w99 feqma faar
THUHFH AT THHALID] AT ThHATS ATRT/ AT [EETedT Al SHrST 9re+ &9 T
AT THAATE TR Afebg Teafaq aTacder! AT aATET I a1, |
THTSTATAITE  HEIT bR TRbl AT siiehy GPITHT GhR T [AfqerE o gfqerd
AT SHaedT F1H T I |
AR AALAF (EqratAer T T |

SSISIAIAIT FRATS AT qRETUEATS TR Sifeby TATepl TUAT bR I&T JAT FHR TN TR
%ﬁ ﬁﬁ ﬁ?‘lﬁ ;mmaﬁmﬁﬁa

(@) & U AEIRT TE FAT THH TR EH Tehel AT qrafqars IR éﬁ%ﬁ
THIAP! FTHT THR &1 FHET Jeldls ATTAETH ] FAGAH GHET T T |
T, T W ATE T FAE FEUT GEtAT 5F A7 AT e ¥tk Wy
FAGHAHT FHEL TH THS |

(@) AT FETHT ATHAT TEHT TR Afepg qrarderl faard TH9a @de FeArsaahdrand
AR E AATFA RIS I |

@@ fadr wEer/ R Afey gt e e sereaTTe e aReeft T T
a1 T S qdn faxirr G fed @werwr g W far T o |

(@) FE IR Cifbg grafd Ger M GET far g TEehe qRe ard AEud e
qeafaers J fa orw, Aifires somr 9 foe aree e |

(@) T FER W (U arraars I Eer omhr T 998 | Soeauaure JEme]
A FATSTATE ATE9TF TTHAT T HT FTANTHN AN FoATelh ATATaTE Wb RIS
7Y ApATE FHA SRR IS I3, |

@) TR dfeg Frafaer soAr S/ faxia gearer gER TR gt frdr qRew aer (TR
T a1 fRal Teidr T @A TR W (AT T e SiE) " I T6
TG W THHAl U T gEgd HE1 ¥ gErgd R gAraradl  ATadl
ATAGRT FFEtegd A getars d faar/qReaw fRdl T9 99 a1 e ardr
TATTHT AT ST |
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®.

Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase T9T Takeover ¥l aeT

9.

TG el ATebebl YWY TATE THURT b JAT (AT FEATA T Sebebl I TTp(q Aot
o H U S qar fair GRAmare e fRtaHeEr o, F s @ivg I fa|, Discount
T {9 q9r Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase ¥ Takeover (CS,CP,RP & TO) T qre S |

TG Fehel AT AT TAT HUHT i q47 fa<irg FRAT CS, CP, RP & TO &l IeTIeh

oTq SvaSTehl AATTHT TEl T T B |

(%) oep/faira FEATT CS, CP, RP & TO TRI foe wiferepl srareamar q¥d & Siebel cilebepl
TSfTeRIS I T g IS, |

(@) CSCP,RP&TO TR fomi/faq gvavgsr o/ fadia Gearel ATMT o1l AlqHT T
AT T IS, | 7T FXAT BRIER T e S |

(M) oM el AT HIEATAT CS, CP, RP & TO I¥a=dl &1 I qree & |

(*) &Sl @RE (Credit Purchase) TT&T AT Fll UTBHATE FHASIX T4 Fd AfTPR @R
T fAq 9N | AT FRT AN gEafed Mededl GeRta aHd faq 99 |

&) HAT @ikg T fervrer 91 @iig TR e ATET feareaT qeatead ofrdeer
FoAl AT IT-9f AT F@T3T T I |

(3T) ATl 9T T AARATHT fawqa fqaror faquz 7r9 #=11 @fg T 91 |

(@ ol @ik T faq & qur faxi derer gt woiter b fager fafy,
FAhl (BT, AR AT, [aITART FoAl FRIAIH! AT, STHAADATH]
efeamra, et affeeret feafq enfe faarores fafaq saar faq o |

(%) ol @RE T o q9T fadiid FEATT Holl a¥i[ehTUTehl [T qaedm qaT ol
AT AT FTHITSTHB] Holl AR AL HAH T I6S |

(F) Fol @RE T T F&AT Fol WG wHT JIT HXATATS BISSAE AT/
TATH Y AT g ATIR Gorl BESAEE FFaiedd il RIgAAT FAATaaD
T TG, |
(3) CS, CP, RP & TO FRIAReb! Aeallteh faaer srgariier srafd THTG AUH fHfde 94
feeforT a9 Sepept TFafeaa qUicaeror fas AT 9orsT e |

o aar fair Ferer 97 He @ivg /fhT (Purchase and Sale) TaT FE®a=d @RaHar
TRATT FAT ISTST AGHAT AT Holl IH: Al @G T (Credit Repurchase) T TET
qFTT fehihal XTIl @il Repurchase 9T&>W<T Contingent Liability T FTHT
AT i foaroreer gwdtia atfoea ¥ @ gweredl fewoiiel g d@rgTad T
&1 Contingent Liability @S ISITebT TUAT T FATSTHAH! AT 00 Ffqerd A1 SAfEH AR
EEHERI e

FA A JAT AT FEAEEAE AR Ak FRIER AR (GUHT ATILT AT AHT SF AT
fairar AT Tl [HET THIAT T JUR g Adhd] ATTATHT I ATqel ar fqerdehr
JqraT JAT AT FqA IIX T TATTRT AT ATIET a1 8T o gafeaq S a1 faia
AT YaTg THl F1 @RE T gogeb A19dl fad a7 e ey §F ar faxdi g
raferd qTedkd! Tenfdar a9 dodl q9 TiEa g s ubear saeved T w
gng T T B
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(@) FoI @RE TR FA AGA IR T A(ebl F(AT FAT AT IHABN a6 Feal HH g
T il @ig T I |

(@) FI @G T T Foll forahl T F¥dT A= AT R Fgiieafaar w1 afe
e foshT T I |

(M) T @ig TaT AifeE SRt T T E ffaaer we @fve T argd 3

93. foia St smaRET Feit o qur MY R T AIey IR g

TEITHT TTYAT S FoATTTAT TEhT b qdT (adi T2l F7 TRl faiig STHET (Financial
Guarantee) T ATITIHT & II ofep e fairr Feamer spoti/giaem fam g (e R T aey
ST | TR, “@” AT A7 qTeRT FAT AT ST AT Sehel ST q9r Jiqaa Sy
T STET O S

9¥. &Y & qAT FoAiR FRIER T GEEHT

1.

TATTATANT o a7 fadiia Gearel e aar fadia de el U9, 2093 dwd 4
T BT THISTH T IREATAT qAT Foliehl HRIAR TRTEH] GLATAT (HETT I q«r
AT BRISR T g8 S |

b g fairr W FERET U, 2093 ATed A GEiAd Hed ST aud G
TAT PRI PRIEAR TRIEGH FLAT TH AhaTe ESATSTT AT S qar fadim Hwarar
e et ¥ e Aaesr famr & o9 ST I9ear & FaedTd REUEER
WM%WWWW%WW/WW%W T A EE
W/WWWWWWWWW|

TATSTATATS ofeF qar faxiir g=arer Hedt (e e 3 awrd qreqorasrer fardmr it
JaTe W& #fehd SATSIEY (Coupon Rate) WWal &H SATSEX AgH I HEITHl ol AN
faferepTepr afefafaa X #SI1/AT9e ITeed TS TS |

9%. Margin Lending THEA®! I Y& TEl TATE g FAlbl THEHT

(<P)

fordiro fafaeer e g GRareRr JuRe faarr S qor faxd @warare yaw g

AT TBITebT Follehl TrIm W JETAHT 9T Tl TRX ATH AT ATARH Bl Gard T

afereeg |

Q) FEO YATE g F(hl FHAT FREAT a9d A HIAZH HATT Al AqTd e
TFE fAfAegare gHira afger R0 FE fader i qead d|d 1
TIRHT JATAd TR HAHED T FH g7, Al THHB FTGH] 80 Yqerd AT
AT TR TIar 0 9aTe T Aiches | THUCH TaATe Tl TXAT Holiehl FLETUTHT
TEH AR TATHATST T HIehl ATIRAT g9 Foll AHT FEAH T a7 99 Hal
Y& T e B |

() YH TR HAHAT g1 qRATAR PR AR Il GREATH HAHT FHT SATTAT
qEfead S qar ol =TS AT OB HeA AEIHA T g9 fadieer o el
TehaTs Frard T 978 | Margin Call T&T I AT YT g+ Afhd TUH 86T T
I SOREE FATHELI THUH FALATAT FHA fdreT MGl F2R H-ATHT 01 T
Tfereeg |
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&

(3) T GATE TR FAThl AAfT Teh TTT T&T g4 S | JATHT fararar et

THAR AT JTANT TN HUl AR [TUT FlhT TR FRIAT AT
ARTAT TR il [HATAT &bl ATEITHT ARAT ol AR T (b |
frdiTepr gFAT AT HERAT AR g G | gEatedd o/ faia GRS sl JureTe
JE=IAT ATaeTF o1, qTAF I [qaRo qeategd Ho(l RIgAH] AAEIF TR
TS, | AT FEeEr 99 faar areveaey fag @edr R, afatees fadrer s
AE e B |

TETHRT FACATHT &bl ARATEEH! YATHT FIATAT Hl F&Td T qTe" B |

(F) TG ThATE THTATYET EIT0T FUHT a7 L9 THISTH Gofl T I FTIH
TCH SF q97 fair qRATE

(@) FIad HUMCHE TUHT FLTET,

(M) AU TEF TR [AiHdSd GRIRUAe 8ergUehl (Delisted) HEIATES,

() AT a9 FATG HUHI Th a9 qatd qR7 gal qHd dAfqd @l GRIeqor 79
TqIES,

fercirory fafaeer aoiAT Afersdd TeaTess JaTE! GMT F Ya= T GHeH S6

e faxirar Fearer ATHT ol At/ fARRTEMT T aedr % q7 w9 GG\ MW

YT AAAFIA T T GO JipaAT qRT TN & IS, |

FEAT AT Il il oiep qAT fairg GeaTel STFT yrafes Goi (Core Capital) T

FEHT YO YIAMTAF AT JaT8 TH TSl 9 FASTHR AT Grafie 980 (Core

Capital) 9Tl 3k ATeedil FTTHTHR! ATARE A@IIIEAN TUH! G (Gaurer

HTIRHT FIAT g ATTHT Grafies Ioi qhd 948, |

(9) FrdraT 2@Arde T Margin Trading ¥l FRIAR FATAd BT AEITHN AITHHT

W@ Fare fadme dredr Aifd/MEem e T 8 1 s fadee sEarars
T WF THIAS (ATAdSH [ARREHT a9 Jhare ST A §F TA, 045 B
THRT 9% {7 HUH FALAT FHITH HTR(d Jad TRAS, |

@) o qar faxir Ferer frdr qrer fauer Jawer T

9.

el

&% qur T TR GEIe AR cae M) Bl T8 T TRl
TETIHT qAEE W T oF JAT faxi ARATeTHT FRATE TR fIdamad T w9 g4e T«
Jipg |

(<P)

(@)

M

FEITIE JAY TIAT TG ol JATE &1 ATSa SAEH M= TaH AT T AT
IUTIEE Aqe I T I |
TATSTAUAIT & qar fadrd S=arepT q Uiaerd Weal oel i 9u% gRu T

AT /FLATF GHEH! YAGAeed AT IR TRehl FEITqEF GITHA 40 qiqerd
q=aT & YR faar T Fer fae qre g | Rt e 8 afyere e S a7 faxi

AT TG HFALITHT ITAAT g T ATF T IehpT eI s; |
F UM TSI TR FATH R IRTA AT W AT T YA GRO T GRATIE

YIRS I9 depepl i (TR A ATRAT ATHST I FT JbAT Raciieras TeT ar
fohr T qEe |
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o,

(%)

T (1) SAARSPT THT AN &l 7 FeaThl 4a% ot afes & |9 demer fere 9ax
@A 9T faY I8 TRed! fFawer TRa T T Higla AN T 991G |

T ATURY AR Iigedl 450 T faqb FEd APl e Yo gtaerd §ed ar
FETIF FIRFN ATH FRIEARE FATH [T HH g7, Alhl ATARAT i FAH T I7, |
MWWEWWWWQWWWW%W§|W
& FEH T AT AT FA GET T TEA BT | ¥, AN A FH TG oot g
AT HATATHT IT FRETR] AT T IS, |

FLIE JIR fadiadae T HAT JaTg TE AT YIRS X offeby T (Non-Banking
Asset) HT ST e & T TG0 fadiaead ARGl Feardes Ja3 AT+l atd AT &
AT Jferd FIHA T T8 Sehebl (STl AATFHT TET bl T o I |

T TR Taarasad T@l Fll JaTe WUHl AGEATHT AT Bofibl ARl At fhard
T g ¥ AT AT Tb a9 TeaT TEl & S |

FEIIE TR AT avaE €l FS GATE & AT HoAhl AAGRN QT TAEREAT ¥
TRATAPIET T T S X, 0.4 TRTITTae FeATTH AT T T FeIHA
R T TR A ST ARRERT WA FoAET T AR T AR S At
frafaa T SETAT AT FAT AAHLOT T A= T S |

TEIIF IR e IM@l wol Jag el 9 holl digeh oOed ATETAT A9
FAT AR SFFTEAT T T |

) BT AR AATTHT HSAT hT ANHT LTI/ AeATARATS FIATTATHT FHTALT THIA

(@)

=

(<P)

FRU Aeq 3 feTer gEer fog qovera o feata afear s seEE e wer
AT FRells [qRIRET T I°g | A1 GFaedl Aawl Foll YaTg &l o g &l
FERIAT (Loan Deed) AT i@ I I |

aifa ) W@ &) g Sfeafga aawaes & qur faig garesd arEr o Hifa/
fafaae e Fo9T Io@ T T |

S (Bank Guarantee) /AT

b e faxiTa TRATES FRT THT 6 STHA (Bank Guarantee) ATAqD THH Beneficiary
AT IR f& O AGATHT |T STET Xl AT b1 [GArgs qehml fagaes avis | a1d,
International Chamber of Commerce, Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantee -758 (URDG-758)
N T S THIAESH! EFAT T URDG HT TUHT AAEAEEHT AHTHT TET qhTHT
T O T 9 |

T STET GBI AT FA GATTTHT S FTHM FRI T FEATT Beneficiary ATg SRTAT
fod oF STERATAT TATT AR AAT YRl ARRHT qEEivad S a9 faxde gwdrer a9
FRHT TEHT @TAT/ TF Sebel ATIT [GUBT Sebebl @IATENE gl T AP Beneficiary &%
AR T b 3 |

T THIAIHT AN AT TR STHAT ATAAH] AR QA ATs GotebIoehl  ard
U T GATSHAHT AT 300 FiAerael FAME@H AR J&H T I8, |
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qs.

R®R.

RO.

.

HARSb BRI /YIIE /T T

ZATHATAYT FEITH THATTIHT Y&TH 9 Jradrelrs (Fafqd el 19 (Regular Credit Facility)
HT TTAT A9S =A< HRIETR /ATl (nterbank Transactions/Borrowings) T TTHT ATA FANT I
ITEA; | AwaRaeh ISl At aerar @ feaaes ar g7 |

g e RSN AT Fot TaT8 THIH GFIEHT

ERYSS  Fl dled  AF9A g faar J@r FSl YATE el XAl el fadr ¥
QRIS / SF@Td ATHT ST FTAEEArTT ga-e | HRIided FAerT afes el Fedl &l
AFA AT 0T F(qLTT HoAl ATRIAT AT HTIH T I, |

fe M FWT (Trust Receipt Loan) J¥wHT

a2 Rfg< Fl (TR Loan), faewr fewprafes a1 = Taider omamd ol Y& &l affasad
930 feraeaeT safusr it AT FAT FaTE TH S |

AFHH! RIAT/GRATAT Bl TaTe TH IS (AT

FATTAIAIT TSl bl qfT FeRfqwerT =rehept ferdt/ GRETOMET ol JaTe T qrge & | 9,
el Fepept faerafey aife famr 7 aferm uarer o = @itg T wgT B9

R. faeelr Rt/ qReATHT FT YaATE T AAEA FEERAT

R

RY.

TOTAAIT T YT §F HIAH T AGEA (BIaHB! [AIHT Wbl AT/ REIIHAT H<tt qare
T 9Te & |

ATy (Overdraft) ATAAHT FATAT AGART ATRIA BAThl THIEHT

@) % qur fiw dwEes R TEee Tgeer Sfafaey el (Overdraft), faar #t
(Mortgage Loan), R Hof (Property Loan), T Safe® F91 (Personal Term Loan),
YT T gam IR FoAT I A Mfwwr AT Foles IR AEF 3. YO
AEEH A TAE TH qaa |
W, TACAUAN T AT qEeh Hag W, T A6 0@ A PR a1 A I
Jepepl HUGTH! AT FAT Y@ T, T A GG G ARATAT FTHAG QA A q
AT AT AT AR S |

(3m) S qar Fefrr S 090 FUR ARG T FAT SUET () AT AfpTHr Frsrr
& YATE BT HTAT 0R FHR AATKANT HfHF TTAT AfPTHT FHATTT ATSIF] TS, |

(3) % qur i gee R wEe TEReT eI Feiel fHaRer A..S% I B
Y THINHST AT TR T AW S WU 9% feafr aw e awtua
QUkaaw fAmTHT I3 T T

oS ST w7 TFR [T ga= aFwaHT

Sp g faxirar TRaTEeel T Y AT THHAK T & YO WG AT AT val F&l ThHebl Foll &l

haTs JATe T TLAT TEAT AThel AT SOHT TATAT <@l T¥% (PAN) fu®r g | ard

Tehehd [AaeTerl Mae™ 7 3 &1 987 7 & A aR Hl U3 FHE A=A I FOHT &l THeA

T YO WG AT AT SvaT &I THHPT Foll [TTHT AATATHT ITh THE A= qhl Fel AThaTs 2.

YO ATE HT FH IHHH HoIl JaTe Tl AGLATHT FHA AT FTAT T F@l THR

PAN) feaTepT gu+g |
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R4

K.

R,

R%.

R

Risk taker (¥59Te®, YHE@ FEASRI JUERT a7 FGLIT JBl TRIUHN) AE Ta6 g Hol
TR

Q) SATSTATAITT AT Bl FTATTATTIT ALATHT qoaTeAh, @ FIAFRT ATdehd a1 Foof
AL TEhl TRNIRIATS (W& eoAl, BTAX Y=ol o, U Bl a7 URIAGT FATSTAH
TN FAT ATe (AoTewdl AATHIT ATHAT A= H [HIGHET Pl JaATE T T I |

AT AIHRI HTA, HEl IA9E, GAa(are! [gardr a7 Credit Card Fll (a9 & SadTel
TN TATTHT AT S |
3% T8 GraFE U7 GRT TRE GRIFRIAE TATIAE |

() TOTAATAIT  FEATA FAU  FATTAATAIT  FEATHT BTAFR] THE a1 G Teohl
qRTerepTETeRT SAfepieT THeT TEehl ®H, FFIAT a1 FEATHT B I (haHepl FoIl JaTE T
A A | AT ME9H ST §9d WATE HEHehhl Follehl ghHT TR watd qHTe 9%
Qb TATHLOT T qTg ST | TF FATSTART AT ARIB9T TATH TATel O Ffqera waT
IET AT TUHN FH, FFIAT a7 FAT THRT T4 |

THSEAAT b ATHA ol THH HHTET T I qGeaH T

F O FEA/RH AT A (od W/ HIATATE g Felll THEH (A &l gwEfed

% /fairar FRATAT T @rar @refl S T e | A1 aTedhel AERdTHT | FEET /R A

TOfed e/ FEATRN ATHAT THTIwudT =reh /97 / faeira Arendane 9iéh arafead Hofre! ardrr

STFHT g TTRT ol TRH T T 99 |

AR JAT FAITTE SREHPT [FRATT TR ATH FAT FaTg T G

(%) AT T GEATEEA HoAl AT T{IF IRASAT/ FHNTB! AT b AT EArera
/W/?#l’ﬂfd’ f7 Initial Environmental Examination (IEE) ¥ Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) 3TAI® I QRATSAT/ SURTH FHAT qAtga Hargare @ qicera
HT TS ATATCAT AT IEE / EIA ATAYAEF TG IRGSAT/ SHRTH! THAT SSATSATAITG
T AT Hol T THYF GAERNT THFH ANy I8 it Jare TS, |

(@) T FEEAT, AATEOT YT A, R0, FArERer IR0 HIAmeedl, 0%, 57 A, o0y
AAT A THAT FTTHT AT FELTHT QY Fba1E A Guideline On Environmental &
Social Risk Management (ESRM) For Banks And Financial Institution, 2018 &l 9T Eﬁ’T&
TOEAYT T GO ATEEAF ANA AT T ANGEYAA Fod ] ATHIHT aTara<or
qAT QIHISE IHTSE SR GRS (AN RN Bl JATbA T T Gral THITH
FTTHA qAT feqifde T =Ee s T 991 |

() Guideline On Environmental & Social Risk Management (ESRM) For Banks And Financial

Institution, 2018 ® FTLAT 99 THITHS! Ffqead ofded a§ G WU 30 feq

T GARSEA T I TR es |
B Pl STOTAT ATABT FEIHT

B FATHT b el Gl SRhTAT aTferedt AT W&l fFarer geared T arelr faare e
THT T FHSATh! FFEar qRTAT 9 GHT G qobaed qrade (He fepfeser fammor e |
AT (ST ATEIHT THAITAT Iodg TR IHHGHH AT [HER g

THMET  fGURl AT FTHHIGTHAT Joof@ Tehl THATRT dal ThHebl TN STHT=T  fae
Afth /BH/ FEAT/FRATATS H U AT (HEaR TRST SHHOT JaR &0 o AT

AT T FFAIE “F G T T FIE FAGTITII FLEATE TR TRTP THIpe 3977 - 7066 990



.

THH, HUH FA, HUHI TASH, THE RO, A6, STHEARATR ATH, SET, G0 H aarEd
AR [qITEE T FIAT i@ g IS, |

TEfATqIUT ol QT SHaT:

&) “FE AT FATHT ATNT AT STARTTAFI=AT Teblep FrATafe, 09" (FETART 2.3 AT Feli )
FHINTH FaTled HIHT I GRHRATE GG TRUH AT IHH I dobel ITAed RIS G |
Ih FEEl FHINH HA1 A8 T F97d XFRATE T3 I TS AT ATIAH! ThHATS
WWWWWWW@WQWW&WWWW
T A |

@) T Frafarar Ifafea FEaaqel Foies HeY FHY AT IYAH FoAl dled AT FHoAl
Wi I geTeRTaTE Tt Y 095 AR AATAEEIHT AIved SHA Koo AT
ATH Fiq T 90 qUT ARTATARET b Jobey 300 T ~HAH Tiey MET X We [ e
TS TETHINA FEfaaaqul ot YaM T TS | ARIRaeEE A 3% qur
FHAIS FHH: YATH 00 T 00 T FEfAaqqul ol I T I, |

) S gar i dee SEfeEaqe e Wi TR WU faaRer TR AaHrge e
FAMGF TTHT AEATE T T4 |

FX T[hT /AT THAOT

(@) b qdT fadra Tl BH a7 FFIHAESATS T YO AR FEHDT Holl TaT &l a7 TAThIul Ta[
HORRT Iigead] &Y =[hT TATIIS /3T AATEId FL F<hT/TMGar FHOIT (o= Afard g+
Eull

(@) ¥ 4O TG Sval el T & 3 FASAVHH HW, TIIH UIH AT qAT ARIAT JHART/ 97/
ST TR &7 TR FESAAET ATARAT FA T/ TAETOT T Iip; |

(W) IR (F) AT (@) AT TIT TAH &, X PFAS Tval TEH FoAT o/ FATRr F 9f ®F ar
WWWWGTWWWHI&MIWﬂ@IWWWW
U a7 FATR0T T, |

awﬁw&rwﬁmmﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁwmwwmwﬁwmm
JUITET (Integrated Tax System) T Tl FHEad BH A1 HEIAE! A (qaRe qwewr et
THAATE  ATUR g T e | AY, Sekd WO IR qd1 (6iT IH qummedrEr gfaee T
FET qHT T TS, |

(3) Tk quT fa<ira TRATST IH TUTCATHT GEeehT WATRT AT IAH T qrEas qd1 o+ 99
AT AT TAT Tehl HY HRATAIAE I T e |

R fee ey

R

TATTATAIT SeF qT fadig FEarer & Yo FRI AT | AT FEIHl Holl SIANT T HUTATS
FN FATE AT FATHT &7 HUll FEATHT hige ey Towirare MRuEr Aegars w11 Tearsaer
ATIRHT TIHT fa o B |

Rrdr wegaT TEET

S AT faxiTT WA AT TXHT BT AT THITH JGA SR T I G ThH A I
qhaleg TR AIq AMEUH! faar X BAGATHT FeRarsdl AN Feaiead Hardaadl d@l Tor3T
g, |
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3. TSN TERTHT Foll GrIel SHae:

Q@

TG SFATE FANTATIAIT b qoAT fa<iir T=aTer gaTe T AT TN TeBicehT FoAl (At
ST, =T ISil Holl, FTT FSIE holl, [SHIVS AM, I KRG FoAl, dAqBIATT ol MG T
“F" FHE FEATH! FHAT EEUNTFAT FAl GHA) ITART I, MEFeTdE g1 Tga1hg
(Multiple Banking) FRTATRATS AR TH FETTRT HE9T™ TR TRUHT 3 -

(F)  TASAAIANTT FEATA oIl JATE@ a1 FATH I Teehard Aard Tl Holl HRIER
TRl WHE A ASFE T WA & SEiGHE g fqg S @Ewen
ATARH! [qER0 T Foll ol g (AASae Wl faaxor fere Ueswhd fausr &e
AfF TS, |

(@) FTASTATAIT FETA . § FRAS AT AT TwaT q&T THHP AT Yoil Teh{qHT ol Jare qar
TATHOT T BT FHISTHET T TAT Trasiebl FAUTAT T2l T T |
() UEHAd TF T Al TASTATAN  FLIEE A ISl THIAH Foll  ITART
T /THT GUAT T (HGHFT Foll TATe /TATR T I TTebells bl
YATE T TLATEE A< Ueh ATIGHT I FHAIAT TI, |
LT AERIATHT qHEivdd FETe YaTe T ol Akl 9T, frdreer faawor qun
Tedhd YaE T fdmr Jefead Gerdl @nfaEd @ 99 garsd g |
FAFRTAT Foll AGAT THTHAT ATATSH HoAl AT, Iar e qor foarg Favem
TEIT AT THA ITh GWRIATHT Seoid T I, |

() FHEIET AT UehdTe YaTe T ollepl 39T TR &7 Stock TAT Receivables
ATE IR HHT JATAd AT 9T AT ol ATHT TEehT T STHITH Boll
AT HEH T TS |

@ 79 fEfauar agafey FRER T FAT STANT TF YTeheeh (G0 77 5%
fTEeT ®IA. Y THITHE! SATHT F¥afead qUivaers fa9RmET Juias a6
TeT T I |

@M &Y FIS AT HH THHAB = Gl TR HoAl JaAT8/TATHO T A THT A
WWWWWWWWW%W%
YIS AT TS No Objection Letter [T AT FT FaTE / TATBRI TS, | A9,
No Objection Letter HINT RUHI FEATH QT FHHT T TG TRHT ¥ FAGAHT
Iqe RIS T9E | No Objection Letter IIAH RIS STHT W FHIET AR T
HAET T HEATETE IUNKE GHATAHT | ST TRIST I & |

Stock AT Receivables &1 @Il HFIHT Y I /AH HieATHT I T 998, | 4T fq@wor
T AT 9l STTAUAYT GRATA UTEehehl Stock T4T Receivables T fEI&T0T T Stock 4T
Ageing AfET®T Receivables YT fqaed TaR THIAE ¥ & Ydaed agaibgadl ShHl
qIETATEAT FHTALT ST AT A= ATTIHT ATIF G T FAT A3 I
| Stock TAT Receivables [RIETOT &1 %A ol JMHATH AT ATG9TEF 99 Stock T
Receivables T Hed bH g TUHT AT ATl Holl AT TARTEATe TR AT FAT FHT
FIH T TG | TaTE HHBH THH del J@UHT AT AT T4 |

T Y FUSHRT IR ATAIS TRITHT Follee TAlehd qAT TATHII TaT TeAteaa Holel JeT
T AT G TAT AR [TaR0Ee q@rIieThare JHIG IRIST I7E, |
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EL e

ELS

(%)

Q)

AT Stock HT AT T Jae IH WUAT H GO FHAT AT g T FIATHT TERT
qrfcrel AT ATHaTd $9 TRIST I | a%, STAT A1aege THUHT Stock &% W& Iron Rod,
Steel Billets, Bricks, Clinker STGEEHT SARTAT, GG, SHFT AT FMGHST AT SAT T4
iward g S |
ARTHI 3 FUGFAS] ATHIT faira foeror, Jesd 991 Wbl AEdnad Arear  Alaw!
HTITTAT I I, |
el fad g T g J9e fae feuwr @ar fadi faaror qor W @eifea
Aifthedl T9T fod Afpd g T a9, O AT AT SUN/ ATATATS 5. L0 ATGAFHH]
“g” I W FANHT fAi HEATETA BTSUITHLT Holl TaTE T qTSH i |
FIHS-9Q AT TAMGT AN FAATIATE FATE TH FESATHLI T FATSTAHT ATNT FOTTehT
ATAYTRAT T FANT/ AGITIHR] ARITAATRT [FITTI T 098 = HATTAT HTTH boATehl
ATHTHT T Taehepl oATHT AT GoIr ot STANT TRET U §HAT AT Yol oAbl Afepas
R0 YIAIAEH T AT Yo boll STANT IREBT HUNP! FHAT ATAF Fo(iebl ATIbAH 90
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Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Ason....... Asar 20.......

Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3
Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Other trading assets 45
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6
Loans and advances to customers 4.7
Investment securities 4.8
Current tax assets 4.9
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10
Investment in associates 4.11
Investment property 4,12
Property and equipment 4.13
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14
Deferred tax assets 4.15
Other assets 4.16
Total Assets
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
Derivative financial instruments 4.19
Deposits from customers 4.20
Borrowing 4.21
Current Tax Liabilities 49
Provisions 4.22
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15
Other liabilities 4.23
Debt securities issued 4.24
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Total liabilities
Equity
AT Y FEATE “F, G T T I FATATAII ACAETEAE T TR THFT [T - 2008 %o



Share capital 4.26
Share premium

Retained earnings

Reserves 4.27

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28
Net assets value per share

Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Interest income 4.29
Interest expense 4.30

Net interest income

Fee and commission income 431
Fee and commission expense 4.32

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income 4.33
Other operating income 4.34

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other

losses 4.35
Net operating income

Operating expense

Personnel expenses 4.36
Other operating expenses 4.37
Depreciation & Amortization 4.38
Operating Profit

Non operating income 4.39
Non operating expense 4.40
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 4.41
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Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Name of the Bank or Financial Institution
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group

Bank

Current Previous
Note Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
e Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
o Gains/(losses) on revalution
o Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
e Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehsive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehsive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period
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Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Group
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share Capital
Share
premium
General
reserve

Exchange
equalization

reserve

Regulatory

reserve

Fair value

reserve

Revaluation

reserve

Retained

earning

Other reserve

Total

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions
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Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....
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Bank
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share
Capital
Share
premium
General
reserve

Exchange
equalization

reserve

Regulatory

reserve

Fair value
reserve

Revaluation

reserve

Retained

earning

Other
reserve

Total

Non-controlling

interest

Total equity

Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......
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Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....
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Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended ........ Asar 20.......

Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Fees and other income received

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 20.......

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 20.....

Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended

1 Reporting entity

General and background information of Bank or Financial Institution and its subsidiary. This shall also include
the principal activities and location of the head office of the reporting entity.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

24 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

25 Changes in Accounting policies

2.6 New standards issued but not yet effective

2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted

2.8 Discounting

3 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

3.2 Basis of consolidation

a. Business combination

b. non controlling interest (NCI)

c. Subsidiaries

d.Loss of Control

e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

f.Transaction elimination on consolidation

3.3 Cash andcash equivalent

3.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities
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Recognition
Classification
Measurement
De-recognition
Determination of fair value
Impairment
35 Trading assets
3.6 Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
3.7 Property and Equipment
3.8 Goodwill Intangible assets
3.9 Investment Property
3.10 | Income tax
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
3.11 | Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
3.12 | Provisions
3.13 | Revenue Recognition
Interest income
Fee and commission income
Dividend income
Net trading income
Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
3.14 | Interest expense
3.15 | Employees Benefits
3.16 | Leases
3.17 | Foreign Currency translation
3.18 | Financial guarantee and loan commitment
3.19 | Share capital and reserves
3.20 | Earnings per share including diluted
3.21 | Segment reporting
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Cash and cash equivalent

4.1
Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Cash in hand

Balances with B/Fls

Money at call and short notice
Other

Total

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

4.2
Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Statutory balances with NRB

Securities purchased under resale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

4.3
Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Placement with domestic B/FIs
Placement with foreign B/Fls
Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

Derivative financial instruments

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other

4.4
Bank

Current
Year

Previous

Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Total
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Other trading assets

45
Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Treasury bills
Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Loan and advances to B/Fls

4.6
Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Loans to microfinance institutions

Other
Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Loans and advances to customers

47
Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost
Less: Impairment allowances

Collective impairment

Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL

Total

AGTeT I FFETE “E, G T T TR SATATTIT GLIEEAE TR TRYPT Gabiape 97T - 7066

1=



4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Group

Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Product
Term loans

Overdraft
Trust receipt/Import loans

Demand and other working capital loans

Personal residential loans
Real estate loans

Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased

Staff loans

Other

Sub total

Interest receivable

Grand total

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

Group

Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

Total

4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Group

Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Secured
Movable/immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/FIs
Government guarantee

Guarantee of international rated bank

Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Government securities
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Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee
Other collateral

Subtotal

Unsecured

Grant Total

4.7.4: Allowances for impairment

Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous

Year

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement

Balance at Asar end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end

Total allowances for impairment

Investment securities

Bank

4.8

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous

Year

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

Total

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous

Year

Debt securities
Government bonds
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Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unqguoted equity securities
Total
4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value

Investment in quoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Investment in unquoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total

Current tax assets 49

Group Bank
Previous Current
Current Year Year Year Previous Year

Current tax assets

Current year income tax assets
Tax assets of prior periods
Current tax liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities

Tax liabilities of prior periods

Total
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Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in quoted subsidiaries
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount

4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries

4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

4.10

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Bank

Current Year Previous Year

Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value

Bank

Current Year Previous Year

Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value

Bank

Percentage of ownership held by the
Bank

Current Year Previous Year

Group
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Current Year

...L.td ...Ltd. Ld L Ltd.
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI
Previous Year
...Ltd ... Ltd. Ltd ... Ltd.
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI
Investment in associates
Group
Current Previous Current
Year Year Year
Investment in quoted associates
Investment in unquoted associates
Total investment
Less: Impairment allowances
Net carrying amount
4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
4.11.2: Investment in unguoted associates
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
............................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
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4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Group

Bank

Percentage of ownership
held by the Bank

Percentage of ownership
held by the Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Group
Current Previous
Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
Total
Investment properties 4,12
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Sawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year
Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer
Net amount
Investment properties measured at cost
Balance ason Sawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss
Net amount
Total
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Property and Equipment

)
=
o
c
©

4.13

Particulars

Land

Building

Leasehold
Properties

Computer

&

Accessorie

Vehicles

Furniture

& Fixture

Machinery

Equipmen
t & Others

Total Asar

end 20X2

Total Asar

End 20X1

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Bank

Particulars

Land

Building

LCCASCTTUT

Propertie

Compute

r&

Accessori

=1
Vehicles

Furnitur

e&

Fixture

Machine

ry
Equipme

nt &

Others

Totarl
31st Asar

20% 2
Total
Asar End

20X1

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
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Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Group

4.14

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

Developed

Other

Total
Asar end
20X2

Total
Asar end
20X1

Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Bank

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

| Developed

Other

Total
Asar end

Total
Asar end
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20X2

20X1

Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Deferred Tax

Group

Bank

4.15

Deferred
Tax
Assets

Current Year

Deferred
Tax
Liabilities
Deferred
Tax
Assets/
(Liabilitie
Deferred
Tax

Current Year

Tax

Deferred
Liabilities

Deferred

Tax

Assets/
(Liabilitie

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties
Investment securities
Property & equipment

Employees' defined benefit plan

Lease liabilities
Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences
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Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on sawan 1, ........

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

Previous Year

Previous Year

8.2 8.8 B_ w2 B.2 3.8 B_niE
S5 CXE SE8E LX% CXE CX%3E
wq—Jl—g wq—_)l—g E'_é’f-g El—g wq—_)l—g 3|—3§
o o 3 Q 4 QO QO 3 0 <
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers
Investment properties
Investment securities
Property & equipment
Employees' defined benefit plan
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on sawan 1, ........
Origination/(Reversal) during the year
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity
Other assets 4.16
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Assets held for sale
Other non banking assets
Bills receivable
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Accounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments and deposit
Income tax deposit

Deferred employee expenditure
Other

Total

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Group

Bank

417

Current Year

Previous

Year Current Year

Previous
Year

Money market deposits
Interbank borrowing

Other deposits from BFls
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other deposits from BFIs

Total

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Refinance from NRB
Standing Liquidity Facility
Lender of last report facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase
agreements

Other payable to NRB

Group

Bank

4.18

Current Year

Previous

Year Current Year

Previous
Year

Total

Derivative financial instruments

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other

Group

Bank

4.19

Current Year

Previous

Year Current Year

Previous
Year
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Total

Deposits from customers 4.20
Group Bank
Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year

Institutions customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits
Saving deposits
Current deposits
Other

Total

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers
Group Bank

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee

United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan

Other

Total

Borrowing 4.21
Group Bank

Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Institutions
Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial
Institutions
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Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institutions
Sub total

Total

Provisions 4.22
Group Bank

Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contracts
Other

4.21.1: Movement in provision
Group Bank

Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year

Balance at Sawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Asar end

Other liabilities 4.23
Group Bank

Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service leave
Short-term employee benefits

Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit

Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant income
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease
Employee bonus payable

Other

Total

4.22.1: Defined benefit obligations
Group Bank
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The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Previous
Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Present value of unfunded obligations
Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

4.22.2: Plan assets
Group

Bank

Plan assets comprise
Previous
Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other

Total

Actual return on plan assets

4.22.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Group

Bank

Previous
Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1
Actuarial losses

Benefits paid by the plan

Current service costs and interest

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end

4.22.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group

Bank

Previous
Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end

4.22.5: Amount recognized in profit or loss
Group

Bank

Previous
Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Current service costs
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Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total

4.22.6: Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Total
4.22.7: Actuarial assumptions
Group Bank
Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year
Discount rate
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate
Debt securities issued 4.24
Group Bank
Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortized
cost
Total
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 4.25
Group Bank
Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year
Redeemable preference shares
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component)
Other
Total
Share capital 426
Group Bank
Previous Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Year
Ordinary shares
Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component
only)
Total
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4.25.1: Ordinary shares

Bank
Previous
Current Year Year
Authorized Capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Issued capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Subscribed and paid up capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Total
4.25.2: Ordinary share ownership
Bank
Current Year Previous Year
Percent Amount Percent ~ Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other Institutions
Public
Other

Foreign ownership

Total

Note : Name of each shareholder alongwith their holding percentage who holds 0.5% or more share shall be disclosed in
above format.

Reserves 4.27
Group Bank
Previous Current Previous
Current Year Year Year Year

Statutory general reserve

Exchange equalization reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Investment adjustment reserve

Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
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Actuarial gain
Special reserve
Other reserve

Total

Contingent liabilities and commitments 4.28

Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Acceptance and documentary credit

Bills for collection
Forward exchange contracts

Guarantees

Underwriting commitment
Other commitments

Total

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

Undrawn limits of guarantee
Total
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4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial
statements

Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total
Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of each bank

Interest income 4.29
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash and cash equivalent
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
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Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other

Total interest income

Interest expense
Bank

4.30
Group

Current Previous
Year Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Total interest expense

Fees and Commission Income
Bank

4.31
Group

Current Previous
Year Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Loan administration fees

Service fees

Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees
Prepayment and swap fees

Investment banking fees

Asset management fees

Brokerage fees

Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts issued
Commission on share underwriting/issue
Locker rental

Other fees and commission income

Total fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission expense
Bank

4.32
Group

Current Previous
Year Year

Current Previous
Year Year
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ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense

Total fees and Commission Expense

Net trading income 4.33
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction
Other
Net trading income
Other operating income 4.34
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Foreign exchange revaluation gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver
Other
Total
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses 4.35
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties
Total
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Personnel Expense

Bank

Group

4.36

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity expense

Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRSs
Other expenses related to staff

Subtotal

Employees bonus

Grand total

Other operating expense

Bank

Group

4.37

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Directors' fee

Directors' expense

Auditors' remuneration

Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense

Office administration expense
Operating lease expense

Operating expense of investment properties
Corporate social responsibility expense
Onerous lease provisions

Other

Total

4.37.1 Office administration expense

Current
Year

Water and electricity
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building

Bank

Previous
Year

Current
Year
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(b) Vehicle

(c) Computer and accessories

(d) Office equipment and furniture
(e) Other

Insurance

Postage, telex, telephone, fax
Printing and stationery

News paper, books and journals
Advertisement

Donation

Security expense

Deposit and loan guarantee premium
Travel allowance and expense
Entertainment

Annual/special general meeting expense
Other

Depreciation & Amortization 4.38
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets
Total
Non operating income 4.39
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Recovery of loan written off
Other income
Total
Non operating expense 4.40
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Loan written off
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring
Other expense
Total
]2
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Income tax expense

4.41

Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current tax expense
Current year
Adjustments for prior years
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses
Total income tax expense
4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Profit before tax

Tax amount at tax rate of.......... %

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Add/less: Tax effect on other items

Total income tax expense

Effective tax rate

AGTeT I FFETE “E, G T T TR SATATTIT GLIEEAE TR TRYPT Gabiape 97T - 7066

RRY



Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......
(As per NRB Regulation)

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:
a. General reserve
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund
e. Employees' training fund
f. Other

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)

Distributable profit or (loss)
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5. Disclosure & Additional Information

5.1

Risk management

Credit risk

Market risk

Liquidityrisk

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

52

Capital management

Bank or Financial Instituion shall disclose following information in regard of capital management:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Qualitative disclosures

Summary information of objectives, policies and processes for managing capital, terms and
conditions of the main features of all capital instruments, especially in the case of innovative,
complex or hybrid capital instruments.

Quantitative disclosures

1.

Capital structure and capital adequacy

o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, and amount raised during the year and amount eligible
to be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capital;
o Total qualifying capital,
o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Risk exposures

o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

Compliance with external requirement

Whether during the period it complied with any externally imposed capital requirements to
which it is subject and the consequences of such non-compliance in case the institution has not
complied with those requirements.

53

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General information

(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Particulars Reportabl | Reportabl | Reportabl | «==-«« All 1 ol
e Segment | e Segment | e Segment | - Other
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(a) | Revenues from external customers

(b) | Intersegment revenues

(c) | Net Revenue

(d) | Interest revenue

(e) | Interest expense

(f) | Net interest revenue(b)

(g) | Depreciation and amortisation

(h) | Segment profit /(loss)

Entity’s interest in the profit or loss
of associates accounted for using
(i) | equity method

(i) | Other material non-cash items:

(k) | Impairment of assets

() | Segment assets

(m) | Segment liabilities

An entity shall disclose the following about each reportable segment if the specified amounts are included in the
measure of segment assets reviewed by the chief operating decision maker or are otherwise regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

(@) Investment in associates accounted for by the equity method

(b) Amounts of additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-
employment benefit assets and rights arising under insurance contracts.

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.

(b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ profits or losses and the
entity’s profit or loss before income tax.

(c) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ assets and the entity’s
asset.

(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment
profit or loss and the effect, if any, and

(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(a) Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments XXXX
Other revenues XXXX
Elimination of intersegment revenues (XXXX)
Entity’s revenues XXXX

(b) Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments XXXX
Other profit or loss XXXX
Elimination of intersegment profits (Xxxx)
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Unallocated amounts:
............ XXXX
............ (Xxxx)
Profit before income tax XXXX
(c) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments XXXX
Other assets XXXX
Unallocated amounts (Xxxx)
Entity’s assets XXXX
(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments XXXX
Other liabilities XXXX
Unallocated liabilities (XXXX)
Entity’s liabilities XXXX

5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above

(@ | e XXXX
(D) | e XXXX
(C) | crerrren XXXX
6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas
(a) | Domestic XXXX
Province 1 XXXX
Province 2 XXXX
Province 3 XXXX
Province 4 XXXX
Province 5 XXXX
Province 6 XXXX
Province 7 XXXX
(b) | Foreign XXXX
Total XXXX

7. Information about major customers

Information about the extent of its reliance on its major customers, if revenue from a single external

customer amounts to 10 percent or more of the entity’s revenue.

Particular Revenue Segment
Customer 1* XXXX Segment 1
Customer 2* XXXX Segment 3
......... XXXX Segment 2
Total XXXX

* The entity does not need to disclose the name of the customer
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55 Share options and share based payment

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

5.7 Related parties disclosures

5.8 Merger and acquisition

5.9 Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities

5.10 | Events after reporting date.

5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

1. Reconciliation of equity

As at
01.04.2073 As at 31.03.2074
S «
g (End of last
g § TEaDnaStﬁigfn) period presented
u% > under previous

GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan

Lease accounting

Measurement of investment securities at fair value
Revaluation of property & equipment

Recognition of investment property

Amortisation of debt securities issued

Deferred tax

Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain

Interest income

Other

Total Adjustment to equity

Total Equity under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which transition effect has been
arisen

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

For the year ended 31.03.2074

Explanatory (the latest period presented
Note* under previous GAAP)

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Previous GAAP
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income
Impairment of loan and advances
Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan
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Defined benefit obligation of employee
Operating lease expense

Amortisation expense of debt securities
Other operating income

Interest expense

Depreciation & Amortisation

Other

Total Adjustment to profit or loss

Profit or loss under NFRSs

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which transition effect has been
arisen

3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

As at 31.03.2074
(End of last period
As at 01.04.2073 presented under previous
(Date of Transition) GAAP)
£b 22 S2f 24235 23 Eg28 533
Particulars 82 3% Q%L ¢Epses 5% 2@o8L Saofk
©2 B0 §EZ gL5EB EBc ELEZ Ls:
mw= e WEe o0Z£EE &7 Jorg <
)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to B/FIs
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in susidiaries
Investment in associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions
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Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

* Explanatory note is required for each line item which has been impacted by transition
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4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under
previous GAAP)

Particulars

Explanatory Note*

Previous
GAAP
Effect of
Transition
to NFRSs
Amount
as per
NFRSs

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other
losses

Net operating income

Operating expense
Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit

Non operating income
Non operating expense

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which transition effect has been
arisen
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5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under previous

E\

S GAAP)

T %

)

8 > . Effect of Amount

: [S) Previous L
Particulars o GAAP Transition to as per

NFRSs NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

* Explanatory note is required for each line item

Formatof Interim Financial Statements

Format of Interim Financial Statements to be published in News Paper

.......................................... Ltd.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Ason Quarterended ...... ............. 20.....
Group Bank
This Immediate This Immediate
Assets Quarter Previous Year Quarter Previous Year
Ending Ending Ending Ending

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to B/FIs
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
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Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Quarter ended ...... ............. 20.....
Group

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Corresponding

Particulars Upto Upto
This This This This

Quarter  Quarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter

(YTD) (YTD)

Corresponding

This
Quarter

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission
income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans
and other losses

Net operating income

Operating expense
Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortization
Operating Profit

Non operating income
Non operating expense

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit/(loss) for the period

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Profit/(loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Total

Ratios as per NRB Directive

Group

Bank

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Corresponding

Up to Up to

This This This This
Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter
(YTD) (YTD)

Corresponding

Up to

This  This  This Uglt;r:ehrls
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter
(YTD) (YTD)

Capital fund to RWA

Non-performing loan (NPL) to total loan
Total loan loss provision to Total NPL
Cost of Funds

Credit to Deposit Ratio

Base Rate

Interest Rate Spread

Note: Bank and financial institutions shall clearly mention in the interim financial report published in news paper that detailed
interim report has been published in their website.

Details about the distributable profit

Net Profit for the period end ......

1. Appropriations

quarter

1.1 Profit required to be appropriated to:

a. General Reserve

b. Capital Redemption Reserve
c. Exchange Fluctuation Fund

d. CSR Fund

e. Employees Training Fund

f. Other

1.2 Profit required to be transfered to Requlatory Reserve:

a. Transferred to Regulatory Reserve
b. Transferred from Regulatory Reserve

Net Profit for the period end ......

quarter available for distribution

Disclosure as per other regulatory requirement

XXXXX

XXXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX
XXXX

XXXXX

XXXXX
(Xxxx)

XXXXX
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Format of Interim Financial Statements to be Uploaded on Website

.......................................... Ltd.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As on Quarter ended ...... ............. 20.....
Group Bank
This Immediate This Immediate
Assets Quarter Previous Year Quarter Previous Year
Ending Ending Ending Ending

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Quarter ended ...... ............. 20.....
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Corresponding Corresponding
Particulars Upto Upto Upto Upto
This This This This This This This This
Quarter  Quarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(YTD) (YTD) (YTD) (YTD)

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission
income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans
and other losses

Net operating income

Operating expense
Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortization
Operating Profit

Non operating income

Non operating expense

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the period
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Corresponding Corresponding
Particulars Up to Up to Up to Up to
This This This This This This This This
Quarter  Quarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(YTD) (YTD) (YTD) (YTD)
Profit or loss for the period
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
-Gain/(loss) on revaluation
-Actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans
-Income tax relating to above items
Net other compressive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
-Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
-Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
-Income tax relating to above items
Net other compressive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equity method
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest
Total
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Annualized Basic Earnings Per Share
Diluted earnings per share
Ratios as per NRB Directive
Group Bank
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Corresponding Corresponding
s The  This  The  Ths  Ths  This Uglj‘;rfehr's
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter (YTD)
(YTD) (YTD) (YTD)

Capital fund to RWA

Total loan loss provision to Total NPL
Cost of Funds

Credit to Deposit Ratio

Base Rate

Interest Rate Spread
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For the Period (............. {1 T, ) ended 20.......
Group
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
(@]
o > o S £ 5
— FR— L= 9 < ] .2 o L= 3B .
8 o5 £2 282 22 22 T2 22 5% < 5T 3 Totalequity
TS = < o & c N o 8 S S 5 S5 = <o = A= —
c 2 £ £ c @ c=un = O ) > o T S S o rS) = c
] o o 9D S © O 7] =9 Sy B8 08 = S =
wo v e < 3 = e s 2 >0 oF L o
o I o c L o 7] o
) 2 x

Balance at Sawan 1, 20X0

Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Contributions from and distributions to owners
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at .......c.cceeeennen.. end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20X1

Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Contributions from and distributions to owners
Share issued

Share based payments

Dividends to equity holders
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Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at ...........c......... end 20.....

Bank

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share
Capital

Share
premium

General
reserve

Exchange
equalization

reserve

Regulatory

reserve

Fair value

reserve

Revaluation

reserve

Retained

earning

Other

reserve

Total

Non-controlling

interest

Total equity

Balance at Sawan 1, 20X0

Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Contributions from and distributions to owners
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at ..ccvveeeneinnennnn end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20X1

Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive income

n
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Total comprehensive income
Contributions from and distributions to owners
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at .........cceeeen..... end 20.....

n
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For the Period (............. | (1 TN )ended ...ceuv vinninnnnne 20.......
Group Bank
Up to Corrgspondlng Up to Corrgspondmg
. Previous Year . Previous Year
This . This .
Quarter Up to this Quarter Up to this
Quarter Quarter

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Fees and other income received

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities

Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
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Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 20.......

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at ......... end 20.....

Details about the distributable profit

Net Profit for the period end ...... quarter XXXXX
1. Appropriations
1.1 Profit required to be appropriated to: XXXXX
a. General Reserve XXXX
b. Capital Redemption Reserve XXXX
¢. Exchange Fluctuation Fund XXXX
d. CSR Fund XXXX
e. Employees Training Fund XXXX
f. Other XXXX
1.2 Profit required to be transfered to Regulatory Reserve: XXXXX
a. Transferred to Regulatory Reserve XXXXX
b. Transferred from Regulatory Reserve (Xxxx)
Net Profit for the period end ...... quarter available for distribution XXXXX
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements
1. Basis of preparation
2. Statement of Compliance with NFRSs
3. Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments
4. Changes in accounting policies
5. Significant accounting policies
6. Segmental Information
A. Information about reportable segments
Particulars Reportable | Reportable | All Other Total
Segment 1 Segment 2
FIIT TG G “F, G T A FHE FATATTIT TETETAE AT TR TR 39T - 2066 K




2 © 0o~
Ro e

S S S S S
S B>g S |e>gl S|g>s5| S>>y S|e2>5
O ut O |cuEl OO|lcut| Ot O|c v
o 295 ad & |93 38| o | 93 38| o S5 - | &3 ®
S gL23 € |83 s |83 |83 < |g23=
g €50 g €50 8 |€850C| €50 o |2850C
5 |62 5 | & 5|8 5 68 5|8
o P& o |0 o |0 opP* |o |0
Revenues from external customers
Intersegment revenues
Segment profit (loss) before tax
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
B. Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss
Correspondin
; Current °sp 9
Particulars Previous Year
Quarter
Quarter
Total profit before tax for reportable segments
Profit before tax for other segments
Elimination of inter-segment profit
Elimination of discontinued operation
Unallocated amounts:
— Other corporate expenses
Profit before tax

Related parties disclosures

Dividends paid (aggregate or per share) separately for ordinary shares and other shares.

Issues, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities

Events after interim period

Effect of changes in the composition of the entity during the interim period including merger and
acquisition

Brief explanations on accounts head of the Statement of Financial Position
Assets Side
1.
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Cash and cash equivalent

This account shall be used for presenting the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other
bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets
with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the licensed institution in the
management of its short term commitments.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased
from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and receivables from
Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this account head.

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original
maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this account
head

Derivative financial instruments

¥




Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract
etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented under this head.

5. Other trading assets

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term
profit shall be presented under this account head. The other trading asset includes non derivative
financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury
bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading purpose.

6. Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as well as other bank and financial
institutions shall be presented under this head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank
and financial institutions shall be deducted.

7. Loan and advances to customers.

Under this head, sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the
customers other than BFIs as well as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of
impairment allowances shall be presented. Loan to employees provided according to the
Employees Bylaws of the licensed institution shall also be presented under this head.

8. Investments securities

Investments made by the licensed institutions in financial instruments shall be presented under
this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment other than those measured at
amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and changes in fair value shall be recognized in
profit or loss, or other comprehensive income as per the business model adopted by the financial
institutions for the specific securities. Where income from the investment is received in the form
of bonus shares, the valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares
only without changing in the cost of investment. The financial institutions shall disclose following
particulars in respect of investment in shares and debenture/bond.

a. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in shares of other
companies
(1) Name of the company
(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including the rate of
dividend.
(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received).
(4) Face value per share
(5) The cost price to licensed institution.
(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.
(7) Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has not
declared dividend for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same.
b. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in debentures and
bonds of other companies
(1) Name of the company
(2) Rate of Interest
(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed.
(4) Face value per debenture/bond.
(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond
(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond
(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value
The financial institution shall recognize impairment loss if any on the investment instruments
measured at amortized cost. The calculation of impairment loss shall be as per requirement of
NFRSs.
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The financial institution shall recognize, measure, present and disclose the investment instruments
as per the requirement of NFRSs.

9. Current tax assets

This will include any advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income tax
liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.

10. Investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the bank. Investment made by the bank in its
subsidiaries shall be presented in this head under separate financial statements. Since, the
investment amount is eliminated in consolidation process, no amount shall be presented under
group financial statements.

11. Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the bank has significant influence but not control over the
financial and operating policies. Investment made by the bank in its associates shall be presented
in this head under this account head.

12. Investment properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non current
assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard shall be presented under this account head.
This shall include land, land and building acquired as non banking assets by the Bank but not
sold.

13. Property and equipment

All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, building, IT equipment, fixtures and fittings,
office equipment and appliances, vehicles, machinery, leasehold developments and capital work
in progress owned by the licensed institution shall be presented under this head.

14. Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally generated,
trade mark etc. shall be presented under this account head.

15. Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward
of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. shall be presented under this account head.

16. Other Assets

This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above. Assets held
for sale, non banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted deposits with central
banks, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments and deposit are
some of the items to be included under this head.

Liabilities and Equity side

1. Due to bank and financial institutions
The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks and
financial institution shall be presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit,
balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial
institution shall be presented under this account head.

2. Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount
payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of
last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.
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3. Derivative financial instruments

It includes all derivative liabilities. Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap,
forward foreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall
be presented under this head.

4. Deposits from customers
All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB shall be presented
under this account head.

5. Borrowing
All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing from
Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from Nepal
Government, borrowing from other domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign bank and
financial institutions, multilateral development banks etc.

6. Current Tax Liabilities

The liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties shall be
included under this head.

7. Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision for redundancy, provision
for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal issues and tax litigation, credit
commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under this account head. Followings are the
additional clarification on accounts presented under this account head.

(a) Provision for Redundancy

It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based on a
dismissal plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees' termination benefits like
voluntary retirement scheme shall be presented under this account head.

(b) Provision for restructuring

Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business locations
or relocation in a region, changes in management structure, fundamental reorganizations that
have a material effect on the nature and focus of the bank’s operations etc. The provision of
restructuring that is recognized as per the requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this
account head

(c) Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters shall be
presented under this account head.

(d) Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
licensed institution from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligation under the contract. The provision amount that is recognized for onerous contract as
per NFRSs shall be presented under this heading.

8. Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of
taxable temporary differences, shall be included under this head. Deferred tax liabilities that are
recognised as per requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head.
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9. Other liabilities

Any residual liabilities not captured above, shall be presented under an appropriate head in this
account. Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation
gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave, cash settled share based payment
liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, Interest payable on deposit
and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. shall be presented under this account head.

10. Debt securities issued
Debenture, bond or other debt securities issued by bank shall be presented under this broad
account head.

11. Subordinated Liabilities

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt securities
issued and other creditors shall be included here. It shall include redeemable preference share,
subordinated notes issued, borrowingsetc.

12. Share capital

The amount of paid up share capital of the licensed institution shall be mentioned under this head.
Amount credited in share capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the accumulated profit and
reserves shall also be disclosed under this heading. This shall include paid up amount of ordinary
share capital and equity component of preference share capital. The convertible preference shares
which includes an option for the holder of the shares to convert the preferred shares into a fixed
number of ordinary shares at any time after a predetermined date, irredeemable preference share
and perpetual debt instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per
NFRSs as equity as well shall be presented under this heading.

13. Share premium

The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented
under this heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for
distribution of cash dividend.

14. Retained earnings

The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed
back in the licensed institution’s operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the
shareholders shall be presented under this heading.

15. Reserves

Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or retained
earnings in connection with maintaining reserves or created from any other process. Normally,
amount shall be credited to this heading having debited the accumulated profit and while using
these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall have to be debited. Followings are the
additional clarification of account head under reserve.

(a) General Reserve:

General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed from
appropriation of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall
be included. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be distributed from the amount
in general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be required in order to use the amount
in this reserve.

(b) Exchange Equalization reserve

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A bank which has earned foreign
exchange revaluation gain on foreign currency other than India currency has to allocate 25
percent of such revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of the Bank and Financial
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Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization reserve as per the provision
of the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be presented under this heading.

(c) Fair Value Reserves

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial
assets that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other
comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of
changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be presented under this account head.

(d) Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible
Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves
often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb
unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax
consequences of revaluation.

(e) Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital
and which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share
forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants
received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc should be
presented under this heading.

(f) Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or
special instruction of NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated to this
reserve by debiting retained earning account shall be presented under this heading.

(g) Capital Redemption Reserve

This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards
Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares.

(h) Dividend Equalization Fund
For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit
during the year of profit making may be transferred shall be presented under this account
head. Dividend may be distributed by debiting this account with the approval of the Board
of Directors and endorsed by the General meeting.

(i) Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund

Any amount that is allocated from the amount retained profit to a reserve that is created for
the raising capital of the Bank as well as calls is advance amount to make up minimum paid
up capital amount shall be presented under this account head.

(j) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit shall
be presented under this account head.

(k) Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

() Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value
employee obligations shall be presented under this account head.

(m) Regulatory Reserve
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The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as
per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which shall not
be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be
presented under this account head. The amount allocated to this reserve shall include
interest income recognized but not received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per
NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRSs (in case lower
impairment is recognized under NFRSs), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss
recognized in other comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs
etc.

(n) Other Reserve Fund

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) shall be
presented under this by disclosing accounting heads.

16. Non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary not attributable
to the parent company, which has a controlling interest and consolidates the subsidiary's financial
results with its own. The bank who has a subsidiary and consolidates the financial statement of
subsidiary in its own shall present the equity portion of the subsidiary that are attributable to the
shareholders other than the bank under this account head.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Profit or Loss Account

1. Interest income
The interest income recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. This heading
shall include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those
investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and and cash equivalent,
due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc.

2. Interest expense
The interest expenses recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. The interest
accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained, subordinated liabilities,
amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc. shall be presented under this
heading.

3. Fees and commission income
Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the bank to its customers. Fee
income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision of services like
asset management, portfolio management, management advisory and service fees etc. Loan
documentation fee, loan management fee, consortium fee, commitment fee, card issuance and
renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, investment banking fee, asset
management fee, brokerage, commission on letter of credit, commission on guarantee, locker
rental income, etc. should be presented under this heading. The fees and commission income that
are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial assets are included in the measurement of
the effective interest rate and shall not be recognized as income, however immaterial amount can
be recognized in profit or loss account as income.

4. Fees and commission expense
Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank shall be presented
under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees, guarantee commission,
brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that are integral to the effective
interest rate on the financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate
and shall not be recognized as expense

5. Net trading income
Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes
all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in
fair value of trading assets and liabilities shall be presented under this account head.

6. Other operating income
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Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads above
shall be booked and presented under this head. This shall include foreign exchange revaluation
gain, gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available for sale securities,
gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, operating
lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, finance income of finance lease etc.

7. Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses.
Impairment loss recognized as per NFRSs on loan and other losses shall be presented under this
account head. It shall includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers,
loan and advances to bank and financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank
and financial institutions, property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investment
properties etc.

8. Personnel expenses
All expenses related to employees of a bank shall be included under this head. Expenses covered
under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident
fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRSs,
cash-settled share-based payments etc.

9. Other Operating expenses
All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented
under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head shall include office
administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors' emoluments,
remuneration and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, branch closure
cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non financial
assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc.

10. Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life.Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs on property and equipment, and
investment properties, and amortization of intangible assets shall be presented under this account
head.

11. Non operating income/expense
The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions shall
be presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this account head shall include
loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of restructuring etc

12. Income tax expense
The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under this
account head. This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax
expense/deferred tax income.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

1. Fair value reserve relating to investment in equity instruments
Net changes in fair value of equity instrument that are measured at fair value and the changes in
fair value is required to be recognized in other comprehensive income shall be recognized and
presented under this account head. The changes may be subsequently reclassified to profit and
loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be deducted from the fair value reserve.

2. Changes in revaluation reserve
Changes in revalued amount of property and equipment, and intangible assets shall be presented
under this account head.

3. Cash flow hedge
When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in cash
flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in the
fair value (losses) of the derivative is recognised and presented in Other comprehensive income
under this account head. The changes may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss in
accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be deducted from the fair value reserve.
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4. Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans
Re-measurement gain/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income and shall be presented under this account head.

5. Income tax relating to these items
The income tax relating to the items shown in other comprehensive income shall be presented
under this head.
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HATsT GATSAId Fel SM@H HeAT$T YUTET (Credit Risk Rating System) &I faehra
Trafead T @A R g I°g | T JUTerel Teeh ¥ ATAIH @ TaH
faeaaf aarars gHEERr T FHIH g1 U@ | %Al Hearsaars HUTE Due
Diligence &1 ATIReT TTHT [aTIg | FLATT TN AT JUTAl JAR &I AT
IR ARTHEEATS AR TH HoHe |

(9) eIl FEIRAT FUTATA, Holl THATIH] THA, HAl Rled TIAH GIET  FFET
FETATAEEH] AT TIT SATRITT GAATH AATAIE ATTerE HTIH T FATSTAHT ATHT
LT I TebRebpT ol T =l H1d (Credit Administration Function) STaeT&ere
T 97 |

(5) FFIU FoIEedhl Thd a9l &a0d IqHT AEfgd [AEdidd gq gaedl T e, |
A TIRIAATRAATS TEhETh] TFed LTI AR] IO TS(HT T ATIRBT FTAT
fa s |

() IATH! FodATeAE AT TT TRT “Tg T ARl ANTGH” (Risk Appetite) TaT UTed

g |1 (Tolerance Limit) Ta¥ [HIHA F¥e=l SUades THAATE Fresd TR FEITel
AR b ATHTES (S &FETd, Jeeavd, sk sl drar enfe) faRer = a#@q

gfea ifvwar B
(q0) FEITHT KA FATRl AT FALATAART ATNT I Al TAT IRAT HTATEATHT
WH g |

Q) FEfaAIHT FATH! TFAT SANGHET (GG T YHE (THEHART F{[ET Sl g7 |
Fniftr, T SehEeel AT-ATHI AT AMGHDT [FIATT T TS |

Y. TSI SEH SFEYT T G Sqaedr

(®) HART SAMh, THAT, TSl TAH aAed HeArdl HRU fafsd gsered Sies
EARIAHET A Ifad Aifd qur Frfats wETEIT T 998 | @, gEar gtat,
TR TAH R q97 Sfhy BRER AT G GoATA SHGEEH] S g
SfgwHaTs T&dr Afad aHed 1, |

(@) T ATFT PRI T T goared AgaaTg SAad= T TAFH AT h
=T qurell qour gEAr YUl faRE THuHE | ATReE d@radiadd g
9T/ fa AT/ BTl ETae  GiAae AT ot SIgHATg YRR gt
AT T AqAra AUH IUTeeH TATAATR qear=gdl qHa  faoroir / gfdeasan
THTALT T IS, |

([  FEAT giatgare g9 q Foarad SaHdTs FATE0 T AAEATdTe del A
AT bl [ARIE0T 97 qURAEuars SFaedd T gaar gfaly e Anee
Information Technology Guidelines) ST Tlﬁ"l?ﬁ T | G ANRE FHItH aiiie e
AT JUMATR] A@TILNEV TAI FTEIT FUSHINSH (AAd $TA] XA @&
RIS T, T Tl UfTaad a9 Sepepl FFAfead GUAE0 faaqmTaT 997 T 9, |

(F)  SIfgH FaIIA FAAE oA q¥6g SMaHesdh TTHA Mafad ¥98T g saawd
qfed Afdl TeAEea e QU JAAES: (T UHATR Yehid, TR J9ene
AU faxira &t anfe) safeaa are @ Jume aard T 998, |
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() I Disaster Recovery ¥ Business Continuity PlanaTrl'ﬂT T fatg=T fpfawer geragsadt
TS FAA (RARATR! AR T | T&T ATSTAEs dlftie FqHT 9T
(Drill) TR ST=ATATIE T I, |

(=) B FEERT G Al FERAT, TSe FHEE ATH THA T TIAHT @R B A qeq
FHAT JGEATIT UaH T&AT AMATHT I FAFHRI g7 T |

(@) TIHTH THT FEAH TEARA [aaid JUTee! AEANIF FI<ardr = ao
IR AERATE SR T A SPAE TOOAUAN  LAEEd  Contingency
Management Framework TR IR KNS ‘Tﬁt g |

(W) FoAEd AGH FH NS AEFeeeTs A(pg AT TANTHT RETH Fearsfa feemsr S
qar fair YWEFA Chip Based Sfoe, Hfee, fide snfs F€es A At 1w |

% OREAAT SIRaH ST T qEw AT
Q) I AEANIF Thld, ATHR TAH BREARE [GfTedrdl AR wrfa qar
ARSI Aiede! IUITh aRaAdl SAMgH Az Al =g T, |

() TXAAT FFERAT FM@H ATHLOT T AT AT G qAT qacaedrs SehTl satd
(Maturity Period) T STITRAT afT= THT A=A (Time Interval) AT FRTHIT T I |
TH GATSTH! AT T FHaerd ®A. L9 FTHISTHS! daRadT [9a30 (Liquidity Profile)
I FAU AR T ATAE (FEE, [F, AT ¥ AAR AGTA) FATT TR T
fedforT a9 SepebT TFafedd QURAETTT fT9TTHT T3 I |

(3) W gEfd do7 FAAH] TRIAT HAAMIH ATIRAT [AHATTER AT AARTAD]
AR T I, |

) R0 T&d FFHH! AR AAtd AUHT FHATT qdT e

) %0 fad 91 F&l 950 faaaFHe®! YR @l AUHT F¥ara q9r I

) 950 fad AT FET 90 TSI qRMI AATT AUHT THATT qdT Taca

) R0 fad WWRT FGl | a9 TEART TThIAT AT FUH THIT qoT I

¥) 9 A9 WeRTEE WRIAT Al WU TR q4T e

(¥)  TAR=a qehml qatd AU R q97 INIcadls SUaar (3) THITTHES THT AATAHT
THTALT T I |

(%) FEaTRl MR=d TRl afy T9UHT el AT a=d Mg ST qifacaHed qrdiw
FEMTeRT TMT TEHT T FIAAH FIAH TIT HISETdH] ATATHHT THH Teh qUTET TEl
HATIHT THT FAATATTT THTAL T IS, | Tl qAT T [AETTHT Ih AR TATS
AIAE T WA T TS | AT T FOAT Aeved Aol (Herder sferers
grafae e Faer g o |

(%) FEITH! qRAAT T SAGHATS FATHRLIT T Ieead i afearear @aell qem
JdTE AU FSAT ATTE R AU (Credit to Core Capital and Domestic Deposits Ratio — CCD
Ratio) 09c FARTFHHI AT ¥ Fqerd ATgd g4 T AT AMFTH G | @,
T/ IRETET ATIT (CCD Ratio) VT &7 Awiele (HETeTg 9T I=TA=aT
U T qrgT T |

T

(&) TF TSR AT g aR=me " Tl @t qeman f@gar e, grafaes e,

el AT SRy MRS [T T § 99 ar | 92T qe0 Fatgesr faaeit qema
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(@) T¥ YATSHHT N7 “Arede (Heq” 9eel & SoaduauTe 9egrel el
STATTATAITT FLIATATS [GURT oAl /IATIT TehH TTel FLATHT (Fardel FqHT ARgTep!

THHATS SIS |

(M) ¥ FEAHTAR T IR el FRAT Fa@ HIHT Holl ArIaehl A
(Credit to Core Capital and Domestic Deposits Ratio — CCD Ratio) Ieerd Eﬁ EERUIE
HTH S g fadry Seumeser HiHe TIAT 008 T TR AfFTPT ST
FEH TREF TS |

(9) I/ HTT IREATAT FATATT (CCD Ratio) I FTHA TAT BT AFIAT ST

(%) Tl /GI I=Tas 91T CCD Ratio T HFTHT i TIHT TS, |

@) WfgE AT ATIRET AT AATT AT R gaRaser faemr Avha
EAAT TS |

() g% HAiedATHl § TAeMg AT T P! T HrAad (ATasiAe faar ared)
HTIRAT WIGE FFT AT (RO TR |

(&) ATPUHT AT ATEERT EHAT FUTA AT o U, 045 P THT % AR AT
TAMEAS, | AL BT AMSaT T ThH FAFTar e T |
(JeeF WigwTH! HITF AT FoI TR THH — 50 YT HIAH g AT

qrad THH) X d 7T
q00 X 9%

THT .

T gFedrE gaioTT# T CCD Ratio 779777 & griia Gl ZFAT Aleer
TTATTAT FITH TUH GIHF [oAlcis Taq F1 TI7 qr9e 7 @9 [7e9@ %07
GIET feaerl eFaenrs g gie | a7, FIHIR GEICT YUl §#YE 497 UaH FPO @
FISHEIS WE & ATTTH G GIIT 9E Goft FhE 7 TTHT GrAHE GoAl T GIITTE
FINT T THT FTHFT T Glpd & /|

(5) HHITHT TRAATH FHY FALATATAHT AN FH-aMdcd FHIG  (Assets Liabilities
Committee - ALCO) ST&aT faferse =T #1EH Whl gAug | FeaThl aeaan feafdasr

ARTAATR I J&T AT 56 FMATHd AwaRTerdT o] g ¥ Jeaal siaw Jre
AT T8 T ATFYTF ITAEEH AT bl g |

(%) T ARAATHT =TT Y¥eh] THAAT ATAeTF FIT SE139 Contingency Funding Plan TSTHT
RPN F T |

(q0) T=ATAF ATAIG T I=d AFLIMIAA AT qIT AAAT ANMGH FFAT qiqaed Hatda
TOHT FFIT q91 GARA T UGG | GET QU awarad  AfAfaer o
BARAR [qUIET T (HUTEe SARAH! AT SAGE TTAT FooTeer AT THET 9T
T 98 |

19) FEIATS FoATAE  AAITATE ik “ded T =ATaehl SIM@H” (Risk appetite) T9T ITe
%'T'T M| (Tolerance Limit) 4T ﬁTJﬂToF feprrer dreer T IHAATS HeAHWR T
AR STAETIE ATERE T G AR aRed e (e qi e A 6,
FATF TRAAT TAT FAT /AT IRATAT AT ST W) FHiRor 19 Jieet TRuern 3 |

©, IR SIEH FYA T T Tt

) eI TIH ATSER & IRYHAFEEHT ATIH JARFAGTAR] HRUT (ST g7 g AT
TR SATGHH HATEITIART AT FEATIT ATALAF A T FEAEY TS, |

() HY FFLIIA (Treasury Management) A FE(ET S@H  ATHA, |9 TR
feroeraurer @it "% a¥ieRr anforsyr SbEsel Middle office TTIAT ﬂ—rrq—;i& | TJEAT Office
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B HARATIT AT FA (Treasury Functions) ST Td=T T&+l ITI Ih Office o
SGH a9/ Sehrgars a0d Rulfds T 9 |

5. SToEX WIGH FATIT T GFT FqeT

Q) AT T IARAREAT (oAl g AGHATe JTIHT EaTd FFArae T Fael T
TearE T taa Aifq qar swfafs g1 o

() AANEIEE IA~ g S@HdTs AT T @ THISTHET IJIUEE qqas T
TG -

(F) SATSIGIAT HUHI IRATAH HRI IAGT g1 THIaes qdl SMacaes (Interest
Sensitive Assets and Liabilities) @Ts HTT FFIM qAT FTEHT THTAL T T |

(@) AH AR 9T TAcdl IRl ddtg (gdrT Jg9 (Maturity Mismatch)
HALITHT A (9T (Gap Analysis) &1 G HIsZTd (Cash Balance) ¥ TS
AT f& T (Non-interest Bearing Account) GTATHT THH TR T T S |

(W) TSR ARGHATS FAEIT TIT FATHLT T "ol (Aeerd F1F Y R awitTeen
foamr Jwifas (969, 99, O T d9R WET) THAT GAR T ATHE FH
qUr U feafas a9 S grafraa quivaeor FaRmET Jo7 79 99 |

(3) =TSR SAM@HS AFHA T [dgqad FAT A=A (Time Interval) 1 a0 TaT
A Fop I BILA. L. AR TR GH AT AABT THITH T T |

(¥) TAR=a qRTT Aatd (Fixed Maturity Period) F¥THT F¥afq 9T IMTcadTs Se1d aHItsTH
THTELT T TS, -

(&) A= AhTAl g AT GHAEs

Q) STataed FAHT AT FHATST g T YA TRTHT FSI1 (Floating rate loan
with interest adjusted periodically) @Ts S FATIHT TG FHRNH TS,
TAET FAT A=A FATEL T I |
() H =ATSEY (G99 ARATTIT THTATT g (T TN [Tl ATEY) A
TaTE TR ATEId oAl qaIdwel &7 Al U AwaRre
AT T I |
@) =g e saly v sifrcags

ATSIEIAT AUH qRATAR FRO JATEd g1 MR=d qhrl Fafd  THIH
HIRICEE (Interest Sensitive, Floating Rate Liabilities) KIERIE] S HATIHT =TGR
AT TRwg, el T ARIATTT FAELT T T |
(%) ¥R (Gap) ATIH BT FHISH T 94 -
(@) fafd=T I9 a=REH Fa THAaE & QMG "X Al FHT AIRIeAh!
THEIT 9T MAcad] AR (Gap) MR I | Ih A=Y (Gap) dATCHE
(Positive) FIAT HUTCHE (Negative) I &7 TS, |

(@) e SIEH =9 T GANAE MET gde FHT AeRiedl giead dw
(Cumulative Gap) FHT [HEART U | Aioad =X MaRT & T TH7T
FTAR] Aioad A=Y (MR THIA &1 I 0T q=RIash AR (Gap) Aled 4l
=T AT qHT TR ARdTs TH SR & I |

() SATSIEIHT & T FPATIad qRAdAATs ATHTT (Estimate) T | AT TATSTHAHT
ATNT TATATAT q G SATER IRATHATE T A FARATE & A(hAS; |

(F) 9REdT g1 ATHE TRUH ATSER ITE@UE () FHISTH Jdd THT ATeehl
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g—:r UM SATeeR giead= (Interest Rate Change - IRC) ATE TETAH ﬁd'1l+|dc:1
T T I, -
THT AATAAT el e /38y faq

N

ST&T o~ 9 gfqerde SATeeR aRkEadd 9UAT, 40 faddr aHT d=e gat

Interest Rate Change (IRC) = R0 /354 X0.09 = 0.00%Y
() SATSIETHT WUH] GRATAHB! HRI bl ATRI-AFATHAT I TUH] AHITATS &

fafaer T\T Al Ifsara dvaTed (Cumulative Gap) @18 SYEUE (F) FHINTH
famRor wTfeuert saTSTEReT UM TR e T T |
(%) @ AT Sfehg FAT (New Product) T HTARUT TR &N SATHGIHT FARTAGIAHT FIRIT
TR ATAATTHT Tl Sfhg ATl HRY T AT GeATgT IS | TG
SfeHeTE 3ftasTd I ARATEFATS Pricing ¥ Repricing @V ITad Jiareqdicdes fargerao
(Competitive Analysis) T¥=dT fafyr qoT TOITdEs qS(HT TN AR 9 GRT TRUH 3 |

faaely fafrwa Sifew s = ST Sgan

Q) faeeft fafaa <A1 g9 SaR=eEae I SIEHATs AR 9 ST Ited
T AT FATET FAS | [aTHIEE! IARACEANE HXATH! AT TIH YSIHT g
FHATIaT SREHET FFI e T HeaTed T |

(k) faelt fafrwa e s e Iigq aREddare dRml A ERdar 99 "ae

HIRATS ATTHA 1 I F a9 ®LA. L3 FHITTHP! foaror wifges FoHT
HigaT facert @ feafaT a@ et arafead quicasror faanraT 9ored 91y |

(3)  Heure faaelt fafqwa & e afvadaere IO gAdd SifaHdTs AR T
TG ool ST TPl F@T ¥l AMq qor fairg faaruees g awwdr e (
.7 Hae 7. %) |1 Iei@ AU FHITHP! Teel Hede BN HAH e I |

(¥) FIATA ATRIAA JAT AT ARl ateerl e faaelr fafamaars qemma
TAHT FHOT LT T AATIHT GF AALAT (Net Position) TETST T, |
THFT: T GIITAH AT “SHFAT” ST J=TT 9 FEAT aT G=T FH Farr
THET TE |

(W) Fearer faweft fafawaerr 3fve gx e aemT wrafaes Iofrer 30 giqeraas gq o
AHT HIH TRUH @ | G& AGLAT I<h GIHTTRT T¢1 g4 TUHT ST T@hol oa&dl
HALTATS GAMAT TS JATE T Toe | § HiEANAT O Heel g3 AqedTerg
AT TATTHT A9Te AT S UA, 0%s THINH FRATE! 98 | g3 AawdT O
el gfeacd fageft Ha1 & it (Foreign Currency Deposit Liablility) T9T st fageft
fafraa @fvg/fash! FRad 9= Derivatives B&T ITHH THAAS THATST T I |

(%)  FH AFATAHT T FTedl FRERAE AT gq g faqell fafara dween
Sifgwer Fefifard J@rsin T8 AT HedaTsd TaH qaeardd 9 qeafead a1 qad
g1 TS |

IR GH T T Il SqaeqT

Y Ioot@ TI'F(‘Q qTehehl A SMGH T Reputation Risk, TN SAEH (Strategic Risk),
THET QTG / ATA BB %mrawcrm fa=ira e v tﬂﬁfﬂ (AML/CFT Risk) STEdT

EES



9. Sifaw EeaT FFET AR
Jq Spare “F’ AR AMUIST ShEehl SIEH FALATAATS qad g ST RTH
Sifgd  aead  gFeEl AWEeE  (Risk Management Guidelines) @MW TRU&  I<h
HANTGYTHATE T AT FIHT fae] I |

9R. TATT & T ARG
TG SRS FOTAATAIG S qAIT faT YA el AT Tare THE0 WG (Stress
Testing Guidelines) FHINTH AT TIHT Ta@ AT (HF dfdy) TH AT FHATEIA
T /TRIST I, | A ARG SHINTH Ta1d qRE0 9 FeaHH ] (7 FHIHR 99 Aaedn
R g -
(F) IqHEEId I T [adT [gerorsr daRear @e qReu W Al IR

IR R FoaTdd AT TIT 3= FTLIIAH FATRA TS, |

(@) AT TATd ULERT AN TY Sebel qAR Tl Spreadsheet TH Siehebl TETeId
QUL faqRTeRT -2 HETeTETHT q¥% T o i, |

(M) @IS (@) FHINTHH! Spreadsheet AT Ifeaifgd TATE TRISURNT Fraferd q2aT3 TAH
qfkoTH 2% A At 30 feafas geafeaa quivaeror faamrer TR-wraEra gahrgar

SIS RIS TG, |
. GRS T TS
Q) TG Fepare T RN TRTEHT TeTdHT (HHES @R TR 3 -

THIRd a9, 0% &I AT FRIERAT Mied JAMEH FATHT T FHedl qagan
TS A W/ 0% FHINTHS! e d97 &1 g9 (4 098 Wl 3 TaEE
ST AR T faTaET FrEfead G 9iTTes |

() TIHET (9) THITH @IS TRUHT MG TAT IRTT THIAH T TLHT FH FRATET T
e I\ 9T R "1 |
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@ yitsieh

= sraferept faawon
qrIAIA AT S FHIHT TS I & &I, Al GHa%] dar-gd Bucket AT e |
R Rt ATl AT ATHRS] FFafead Bucket HT e |
JITegar St A7 | 7 qHAAT GledT o g AUET TRUHN B AEl qHAH] gEaread Bucket AT A& |

>

FH. 20, 34 T R &

SHIAA dTed A7d GTdTEed] BHAT AR datd AR g¥diad Bucket AT T

GIEEIEAR ARl STHTAAE! BFHT 9 aUH=aT deidl Bucket AT & |

=g ofwee U@ MaeHaE! (e § Y A7 s9aedT TR FHtd T |

TiIa

qugT higad q 3R %0 fa7@ Bucket AT & |

AR faqa o AR oAl ATaRE Feafead Bucket AT e |

ATHTAT faqa =aTe AhTI FAAT ATARE] FFi-ad Bucket AT & |

AFTATEE* MY=ra ARl Fald qURT AT Flel FHINH ¥ AU AedT 9 df@ 0
fa@! Bucket HT & |

gfqagar seaiid a=a | fav @t Trend fsioviaTe WRTET Pattern AFHTT T GIET ATERET dEEed

LRSI CE L] Bucket AT & |

SUART HSTqdH] fora@t Trend f<iourE@Te ARTET Pattern S(THH TRT |I@l SATARE dFai-ed

g gfagres Bucket T 7% |

qIAqTT /ST (@3) | HATTAHT FHAT AHAT AAd ATAREF GFairgd Bucket HT T STHMAAH EHHT
feRTa®T Trend fasworame Claim Pattern TMUd TR TS I6H STHEAHT AT
AT 8 Bucket HT & |

R ATHIAT Al ATARG qeaiead Bucket T e |

F.I 19 qeaas TRTHT odfd AaRa geareaa Bucket AT e |

GIEEIEI ARl

ER UL ETAd THIHd (MG Qe 7 % AT sJaedr TRy STHIH T4 |

X grfya AR AT FE TR ARIEE SREE @ ITEGT G FaIE |

J.30. d eI wrA 4R

SATSIGY. FFET SGH AT AT

SOTSTAY AT FEITehl ATH:

Aafy (&, ATEHI)
Fafg | 9-%0 | %9-950 | 959 -390 | R - | TG q_T | FHA
feramor feq fer fer 3’y fe Er| T

e R
T MIT*

9
R
ES
¥, gisad awaad
4
%

AT (9 = %)

UG ATET (IRC)***
Fwifaes HATRT feafqmr gara
(@fs=ra == x IRC)

o FfEd HATHT fefq R
(F.9. & F S TE A)
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g |

** FA AT AR ATSTETAT HUHT TRATAHT FRO Foaa g+ araca (Interest Sensitive Liabilities) HTT

T T TS, |
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Q)  SOTSTAYAYT TEITHT TooTeldhel ~qAaH TRRANT AT FIIH T I
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@) F Ak FSATARAT A WUAlE FAER GEETeTAT Ofed ST SRATET
foxirg @Md 9U T9UH BT FoATAF AAAATS [@Ed FTH SAEERT RIS

TS, |
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go |

(%) oATAhd ATHT AR &F ATEl TRl FIHERATEIIT oaTas @d TaThael
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Tiafafr T /RS & |

() SOITSTAUAYTS TRl fed faadraert Mafafadr I g7 dg+

() FoTAd T AT AIHL THHT GRATH fed fauid gq w9 fepfewe
fafaferar o & e |

@) FeATdE ARl fadie @rd R AERATR] FRIGRHAT Jeael a AqAeT FTHT
Wﬁﬁ?lﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂww FoATARE! H U fplaHer T,
AIHER T FHAAHAT A5 O fa a1 foo faoemn Py e TR & A
ST I==Tele GHT ST T8 ARG A

()  FoATAE QAT [AeTepl faxira @rd Tiauer @ 991 THG WRaFH drasiae
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Detail of Branchless Banking Centre

Institution Name: *

Related Branch: *

BLB Agent . . )
Name: * Agent Citizenship Num:
Agent Citizenship .. . .
Issued Date: Agent Citizenship Issued Dist:

Agent Citizenship

Agent PAN Number: *
(Blb PAN Number should be

Issued Auth: exactly 9 digit)
Zone: Province: *
District: Province District: *
VDC: Local Bodies: *
Ward/Tole: Localbody Ward: *
Address: *

House Number: Nearest Landmark:
Phone 1: Phone 2:

Mobile: * Email:

BFI BLB Agent
Code (Internally
used code): *

Unique Individual Code:

Status: * Operation Date: *
Pos Enable: Mobile Enabled:
Tab Enabled: Others Enabled:
Latitude: Longitude:

e * Mandatory fields

e Latitude and Longitude are Automatically updated from adjustment on map marker

7 dF [T LA 2 94-7

Detail of ATM Location Centre

Institution Name: *

Related Branch: *

BLB Agent . . )
Name: * Agent Citizenship Num:
Agent Citizenship . . .
Issued Date: Agent Citizenship Issued Dist:

Agent Citizenship
Issued Auth:

Agent PAN Number: *
(BIb PAN Number should be exactly
9 digit)

BFI ATM Code
(Internally used

Related Branch:*

AT T FFE “F G T T FIB FAGTITTIT FLIESAE AT TRTHT THIFT 3977 - 7066
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code):

Institution Name:*

Province: *

Zones: Province District: *
District: Local Bodies: *
VDC: Localbody Ward: *
Ward No/Tole: Nearest Landmark:
Address:* Number of ATM:*
ATM Operation

Date:*

Latitude: Longitude:

e * Mandatory fields
e Latitude and Longitude are Automatically updated from adjustment on map marker

Account Detail - BLB Wise 9.15A
Institution Name:

Statement of Account Details BLB wise

7T [T BT T 2 9KF

Payment
Termina
| Last
Auvailabl | transacti
e on Nu
Br at the Date mbe
an | B BLB BLB | BLB Yyvy/ rof | Numbe | Num | Numb No
ch | L | BLB | Locate | BLB | Loc | Point mm/ Numb | Fem | rof ber | erof Of Numb
Bran | N B | Loc |d Loc | ated | (POS/ dd) er of ale | Third of Grand | Activ | erof
ch a C | ated | VDC/ | ated | Stre | Tablet of the Male Acc | Gender | Joint | Total e Total
Cod | m | od | Dist | Munic | War | et/T | /Mobile BLB Accou | ount | Accou | Acco | Accou | Acco card
e e e | rict ipality | d ole /Other) Point nts S nts unts | nts unts | issued
7T qF [T BT A 2. 94T
Electronic Transaction (9.15 B)-BFls
Institution Name:
Monthly Statement of Electronic transaction institution wise
Total Amount of transactions (Reporting
No. of transaction (Reporting month only) month only)
Channel Used | Form of Rs.5000- Rs.5000-
for transaction | transaction <Rs.5000 | Rs.10000 | >Rs.10000 | Total | <Rs.5000 | Rs.10000 | >Rs.10000 | Total
Withdrawal
ATM On Us
Withdrawal
ATM Off Us
ATM Bill Payments
Transfer (Alc
ATM to A/c)
3

AT T FFE “F G T T FIB FAGTITTIT FLIESAE AT TRTHT THIFT 3977 - 7066




Other
Transfer
(Cardless or

ATM OTC)
Deposits - On
BLB Us
Deposits - Off
BLB Us
Withdrawal -
BLB On Us
Withdrawal -
BLB Off Us
BLB Bill Payments
Transfer (Alc
BLB to A/c)
Other
Transfer
(Cardless or
BLB OTC)
Merchant
Point Bill Payments
Customer
Initiated (Not
Covered
Before) Bill Payments
Customer
Initiated (Not
Covered Transfer (Alc
Before) to Alc)
Customer Other
Initiated (Not | Transfer
Covered (Cardless or
Before) OTC)
Mobile
Banking
Transaction
. Internet
m&e:zt’ and Banklng_
electronic Tran_sactlon
Debit Card
card -
Transaction Trangactlon
Credit Card
Transaction
Prepaid Card

Transaction
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G HTATAT AAT AT AT HTATAART [0

(FTATAT F=ATAT AUHT TAfTHT TeT )

BFI Code
(Internally used Branch Name: *
code):
Institution Name:* Phone 1: *
Branch Email: * Phone 3:
Phone 2: Province: *
Zone: Province District: *
District: Local Bodies: *
Vdc: Localbody Ward: *
Ward/Tole: Address:
House Number: Branch Type: *
Landmark: Branch Manager: *
Operation Date: * - Email:
Longitude* - Phone:

Latitude: *

e * Mandatory fields

e Latitude and Longitude are Automatically updated from adjustment on map marker

7 dF [T39T7 BT T 2. 95%

......................... fatads
& T FSreel amEnNTd faaRr (\ifEa)
R0 . e wfedrerr  faazo
Deposit
Branch | Branch Loans & Money | Certificate

SN | Code Name Advances | Current | Saving | Fixed | at Call | Of Deposit | Margin | Others | Total
1
2
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Total Assistent
Branch | Branch Number | Officer Level Contract Other Third
SN | Code Name Of Staff | Level Staff | Staff Staff Staff Male | Female | Gender
2
7T dF [FET BTA 2.9
FITTF ARG (a7
....................... fafaee
a-artes faawr
...... et ... HEAT (HET)
Occupati (For Remar
Address 5 on Institutional) | ks
e
=
=
<
= aw
< E S |2 S S
— [ - o =
L S < | .2 = =
S | @ 5| | © IS = =
S| € > o | o | o 2 = S
< b [= D [ = P = n
e - o | @ § > a a o S | S E =
3+ fen) e LL o) = = 8 (@4 € [l = g L
z S| s |« 3 ole| e 3 S < | = 24
S S | Z |5 o c || < g 2|12 = S — —
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g s|3|88|5|8|S|R|8|XN|2|RB|E| G| E|€E| S| E
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Headings LCY Amount FCY Amount
Fiscal Year*

Reporting Date*

Deposits
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1.1 Fixed Deposit

1.2 Saving Deposit

1.3 Current Deposit

1.4 Call Deposit

1.5 Margin Deposit

1.6 Cashiers Guarantee Deposit

1.7 Others Deposit

Interbank Deposit ( As per NRB
directives )

Loans & Advances and Bills Purchase

Cash Balance

Balance at NRB (As per NRB
Statement)

Bank Balance and Money at call

Placement and lending to other BFIs (
maturity up to 90 days )

Investment in Government Securities
(including Reverse Repo)

Short Term Borrowing

Balance at Commercial bank for CRR
purpose

Cash In Transit

11.1 Cash in Transit Deposit Chest

11.2 Cash in Transit Withdrawl Chest

11.3 Other Cash in Transit

Reimbursable Amount from NRB for
govt security Investment

Total Borrowing

For CCD Purpose (Previous date data is automatically loaded. Please edit as per
requirement)

Core Capital (as of Previous Quarter)*

Refinance

Debenture/Bond (having maturity 5
years or more)

Foreign Curreny Borrowing (having
maturity 3 years or more)

Specific Borrowing from
Government/International Institution
(having maturity 3 years or more)

Special Arrangement

a. Resource Arrangement

b. Loan Arrangement

Remarks
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qRTHT FAT JaTTFewhl Settlement GTATHT &bl i HIaTd q¥avdl (e
M
S Name of | Account Cash Balance Deposit Lien Marked
N PSP Number Account Against The Settlement
Account
1
2
7. 7T &eF [A3977 BT €. 37
Y i qRg=ehE ekl Wiiad fqaror
Institution Name:
Year ... Month.........
Statement of Principal Indicators institution wise
Indicators Unit Amount Remarks
Adeguacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted Assets
Core Capital NPR
Total Capital Fund NPR
Risk Weighted Exposure NPR
Earning Per Share (Average share outstanding) NPR
Market Value Per Share NPR
Book Net Worth Per Share NPR
Net Profit Per Staff NPR
Per Employee Staff Cost NPR
Number of Promotor Equity Shares Nos.
Number of Public Equity Shares Nos.
Number of Permanent Staffs Nos.
Number of Branches Nos.
Number of Extension Counters Nos.
Number of ATM Machines Nos.
Price Earning Ratio Times
Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent
Net Profit / Gross Income Percent
Net Profit / Loans and Advances Percent
Return on Total Assets Percent
Return on Equity Percent
Interest Income / Loans and Advances Percent
Exchange Gain / Total Income Percent
Interest Expe